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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited focuses on infrastructure investment

in, and the operation of, bulk cargo ports and logistics facilities in the Yangtze River
region of China. It also engages in land and property development in association with
port facilities. In addition, PYI provides comprehensive engineering and property-related
services through Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.

RESEARAPNEBREN  EINHBERLRE —SARMEEQ LYRRIEN
EERE MER - REINMESEE ORI L M EERBESR - WaBRERE
SEERAR - EHEmH TR LEHEHRRRS -



CONTENTS

H ok

02

04

06

08

12

22

26

38

42

51

72

OUR PRESENCE ALONG YANGTZE RIVER

REEERITHE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

MAJOR CORPORATE EVENTS
AEOREE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TEREE

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT
BEREE

FINANCIAL REVIEW
B TE MR

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
ESV e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BRERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEERWE

PYI AND SHAREHOLDERS
PREEERRR

77

929

101

102

104

106

109

224

225

226

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
E=RmEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBE RS S

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
fRalaE R

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
FEEERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RAReRER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE M IRER M

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TEYMEFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEER



Henan

Gansu . SR
Shaanxi
HR o

Yichang Port Group
HEEBKEHE

Minsheng Gas

Three Gorges
" Dam
Fengjie 5T =ik
i K
Sichuan

gl

Guizhou

=0

Yunnan

OUR PRESENCE ALONG

YANGIZE RIVER

REEERIEE




Shandong
IJ_I % Lianyungang

Bms

=8

Jiangsu

»

Yaginou Taizhou

- 1 Yangkou Port
: 08
An h ul Nanjing

5

Maanshan Changzhou ;
Tongling BERIL
i . Jiaxing

Jivjiang

T

Jiangxi

AN

Yellow Sea

Yangtze River Region —
The most prosperous region in China

IR
& = A & i




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

I RE

2009 2008
Turnover (HK$m) EXH(EEERT) 4,835.9 5,502.5
Gross profit (HK$m) EF(EEBT) 360.1 427.2
Earnings before interest and taxation (HK$m) RiFERBAZBF (EEBT) 654.2 886.5
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) BREGZEF (BEBT) 138.8 360.0
Shares outstandings (m) BTG (B BR) 1,508.4 1,507.1
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE (BT)
As at 31 March M3A31H 242 2.24
Adjusted due to rights issue in July 2009 I FE20094F 7 A 2 fit A% ifn 38 0.88 0.82
Earnings per share (HK$) BRAEM GET)
As at 31 March M3A318 0.092 0.240
Adjusted due to rights issue in July 2009 & fE20094F 7 A =z # A% i 38 2 0.039 0.103
Dividend per share (HK$) TS (BT) - 0.024
Total assets (HK$m) #wEEBBET) 12,315.9 10,361.5
Quick assets (HK$m) RPEEAEBRET) 3,789.6 3,797.0
Net current assets (HK$m) MBEEFE(EBETL) 231.9 136.9
Net debt (HK$m) FRE(EREL 1,717.5 1,143.8
Shareholders’ funds (HK$m) BEES (BEBT) 3,646.6 3,377.1
Current ratio ik Ul S 1.05 1.04
Quick ratio EELL & 0.88 0.99
Net debt/equity ratio FaE BRLE 0.47 0.34
Gearing ratio BARBELX 0.83 0.61
Return on equity PR AE W 4% 1%
Total shareholder return PR CE -81% -46%
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
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MAJOR CORPORATE EVENTS
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This year, we achieved several milestones, including the soft opening
of Yangkou Port, the operation of the Yellow Sea Crossing and

investment in Yichang Port etc.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to report our annual results for the year ending 31
March 2009, which are satisfactory amid the downturn of global
economy. Our net profit after taxation is HK$139 million (2008:
HK$360 million), a decrease of 61% year-on-year. The Board has
resolved not to declare final dividend for the year (2008: one
warrant for every six PYI shares).

The year 2008 marked an important time in the history of
contemporary China. The progress of our nation’s modernization
was fully demonstrated by the successful Beijing Olympics and the
timely crisis management of 512 massive earthquakes. The RMB4
trillion program launched by the Central Government in the third
quarter, in response to the global financial crisis and fallen export
trade, was also an impressive move.

2008 has been equally important for PYI, having achieved several
milestones, including the soft opening of Yangkou Port in October
2008 and operation of the Yellow Sea Crossing, and the investment
in Jiangyin New Port District. We also extended our foothold to

the middle reach of Yangtze by acquiring the Yichang Port Group.
These motivating achievements mark the fruit of our persistent
effort in implementing our Yangtze Strategy over the past few
years, and are also expected to contribute profit in the near future,
enhancing the profitability of existing ports by forming an efficient
bulk cargo network. A detailed review of our operations during the
period is set out in the Managing Director’s Report.

Further good news include the Group’s rewarding title of
“Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service,
in recognition of our consistent efforts in building a charitable
community. Our efforts in building harmonious communities
are extended to all the communities where we have business
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRHEE

engagements with sponsorship to education activities and
environmental measures in construction projects. We also

maintain high standards of corporate governance across offices in
the Mainland with the implementation of consistent internal audit
programs and the provision of relevant training for our Mainland team.

In a challenging time when the global economy is widely expected
to contract in the year ahead, the Mainland maintains a steady,
though slightly slow, pace of economic growth, and is anticipated
to be the global engine for the smooth recovery. To show the
importance of the Yangtze Region, numerous top officials have
visited the sites and this clearly proves the region’s position as the
spearhead of China’s economic development.

As you will witness in the foreseeable future, our Yangtze Strategy
is focused on growing together with the region. First and foremost,
the network of ports provides an efficient and reliable means of
transporting bulk cargo to satisfy the domestic demand for primary
goods and materials during the rapid development of Mid to West
China. Secondly, a significant portion of the RMB4 trillion program
is designated for infrastructure development, speeding up the
progress of peripheral infrastructure that links up the ports with
other transportation systems.
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Our Yangtze Strategy is focused on growing together with the
region, leading towards a profitable future.

EAERNRR - RIRBGERERR DA FES

HEER - WHRKRER TR -

| sincerely take this opportunity to give recognition to my fellow
Board Members, our executives and staff across the nation for their

dedication and loyal service. | am most grateful to our shareholders,

clients and partners for their trust in our vision over the years. We
appreciate your continual support through the difficult economic
times as we aim to deliver sustaining returns to our shareholders

with our unwavering commitment in the Yangtze Strategy.

Yours faithfully,

Joseph Chow ozt »»
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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PYI achieved satisfactory financial results for the year, with turnover
of HK$4,836 million and gross profit reaching HK$360 million.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It is my pleasure to report that PYI achieved satisfactory financial
results for the year ended 31 March 2009, with turnover of
HK$4,836 million and gross profit reaching HK$360 million,

a decrease of 16% from that of the preceding year. Net profit was
HK$139 million, with earnings per share reaching HK9.2 cents
(HK3.9 cents adjusted due to completion of the rights issue).
Shareholders’ funds increased by HK$270 million to HK$3,647
million, representing a NAV per share of HK$2.42 (HK$0.88
adjusted due to completion of the rights issue).

YANGTZE - ENGINE TO PUSH AHEAD RECOVERY

In the year 2008, the global economy was adversely affected by
the global financial tsunami which was triggered by the subprime
mortgage crisis. The Mainland economy inevitably also went
through mild consolidation as supply of credit tightened and
export trade sharply declined. Its growth momentum, however,
was successfully maintained as the Central Government launched
a RMB4 trillion program to induce expansion in capital expenditure
and domestic demands. While the global economy stabilized in the
first quarter of 2009, China is widely anticipated to be the engine
of global recovery.

Among the regions in the Mainland, the spearheading position

of the Golden Waterway, especially the Yangtze Delta Region, is
confirmed as part of the national policy. The State Council describes
the area as “the strongest comprehensive strength among regions
in China, and it holds a strategic position and plays a driving

force in the socialist modernization”. In order to build up the
Yangtze Delta Region as a “key international portal in the Asia-
Pacific region, an important base for advanced manufacturing in
the globe, a world-level cluster of cities with strong international
competitiveness”, the State Council urges the consolidation of port
facilities and the building of a modern logistics network.

Our Yangtze Strategy, a project which began six years ago with the
aim to build up a network of bulk cargo ports in the Yangtze River
Region, follows this national vision. With measured yet bold steps
throughout these years, we have achieved several milestones in
2009 and laid the foundation for further developments in

the future.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT
BEREE

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Port and Infrastructure Development and Logistics

PYI continues to take measured steps in materializing our bulk
cargo logistics network along the Yangtze River, delivering
satisfactory progress and promising results.

Yangkou Port

Yangkou Port contributed about HK$41 million (2008: HK$97
million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year under review.
The income was derived from project management and access
rights of infrastructure in Yangkou Port. The performance was
affected by the drop in project management income owing to
completion of certain project management services during the year.

Yangkou Port declared soft open in October 2008, with the
navigation channel also declared open and a general cargo berth
in operation. The construction of the 12.6 km Yellow Sea Crossing
was completed and the construction of the Pipeline Bridge
commenced in February 2009.

The 1.4 sq km man-made island, the Sun Island, was substantially
completed in 2008. A 0.3 sq km land parcel was handed over to
PetroChina for the construction of a LNG facility, which is expected
to be completed in 2010.

14 FYIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

EEOE

BOREBERELY R
RESEEEZENEYIRINEZARHED
A WES RIFER KK -

FOB
FOBERMASBEESFE 2 &% % 44,100
&40 (2008 :9,7008 %) - WARBIERE
BRFOBERSE2EAR RASETHEEE
BRECVRAFENTRK  ZERBZIEEE
BIRAR D FTRE -

OB R2008F 10 A E MY L @M - R BEM
EEHHER —EERBENACHREE - 2K
NEABZEBAKBIEET  BEHRBZEZR
200942 AER -

HEI4FFREZ ALE KIS ] E2008F K
BN - BHE03TFAREZ L EBIH A M
ERBRIERAREN  BHER20105F K °



In addition to the 4.16 sq km formed land completed in the
preceding year, about 4.45 sq km of our 42 sq km land bank had
reached the formed and serviced stage and obtained the certificate
of completion of land reclamation during the year. As at 31 March
2009, about 2.95 sq km of the 4.45 sq km newly formed land has
been reclassified as investment properties and measured at fair
value of about HK$705 million. The remaining 1.5 sq km newly
formed land is classified as stock of properties held for trading and
carried at historical cost.

Embankment works for the final 20 sq km industrial land bank has
commenced, with 10 sq km scheduled for completion in 2010.
Highways, railway, canal and other connecting infrastructure and
utility associated with Yangkou Port are being developed by other
parties. In June 2009, the State Council has approved in principle
the Jiangsu Coastal Region Development Plan, which contains
Yangkou Port as one of the major focal development points.

Nantong Port

Nantong Port contributed about HK$38 million (2008: HK$34
million) to the Group’s net profit for the year. Its net profit
amounted at about HK$85 million (2008: HK$76 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2008.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Despite the challenging operational environment since the global
financial crisis, annual cargo throughput of Nantong Port Group still
reached 54 million tonnes in 2008, a decrease of 7% from previous
year. Container throughput recorded new high at 400,000 TEUs,
representing 8% year-on-year growth.

In November 2008, taking account of the adverse market situations
and to conserve financial resources, PY| decided to forego the
opportunity to acquire up to 12.32% equity interest in Nantong
Port Group.

Investment Opportunities in Other Ports on the Yangtze

In September 2008, PYI entered into an agreement to invest in
Yichang Port Group Limited (“Yichang Port Group”) by the injection
of new capital into Yichang Port Group, which represented a 51%
equity interest in the registered capital of Yichang Port Group as
enlarged by the investment. The total consideration amounted to
RMB 114 million (equivalent to about HK$130 million) and 60%

of it was paid in April 2009. The transaction is expected to be
completed by October 2009.

Subsequent to the year end, PYIl acquired 25% interest in Jiangyin
Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. from Shanghai
International Port Group at a consideration of RMB27.65 million
(equivalent to about HK$31.4 million) in June 2009.

These earning accretive investments will make our network along
the Yangtze River more complete and synergized, and are expected
to generate profit in the foreseeable future.

Engineering Business — Paul Y. Engineering

The Paul Y. Engineering Group achieved turnover of HK$4,427
million during the year, down 10% compared with last year (2008:
HK$4,913 million). It contributed about HK$80 million (2008:
HK$129 million) to the Group’s operating profit during the year.
The decline in gross profit was due to slight decline in revenue and
tightening margin arising from volatile material and labor cost.

Pr1 C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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Yangkou Port declared soft open in October 2008, with the
navigation channel also declared open and a general cargo berth

In operation.
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During the year, Paul Y. Engineering Group secured new contracts
totalling HK$4,149 million in aggregate value, a 165% growth
year on year. Subsequent to the year end, the engineering business
secured additional contracts of HK$2,662 million.

As at 31 March 2009, the total value of contracts on hand of Paul
Y. Engineering Group is about HK$10,625 million (2008: HK$9,507
million), a 12% growth year-on-year.

LPG Distribution

The LPG distribution business of Minsheng Gas contributed about
HK$26 million to the Group's operating profit (2008: loss of HK$8
million) for the year under review. The performance of Minsheng
Gas improved substantially during the year, with distribution volume
and throughput at the river terminal and the storage tank facilities
showing growth again since the third quarter of 2008. The LPG
distribution returned to healthy operating margin after several price
uplifts approved by the Central Government since June 2008.

Property Investment and Trading

Property investment and property trading in aggregate contributed
about HK$662 million (2008: HK$669 million) to operating profit
for the year. The profit is mainly attributed to the gain on fair value
of investment properties of HK$669 million (2008: HK$638 million)
arising from the 7.11 sq km (2008: 4.16 sq km) formed land in
Yangkou Port, and a relevant deferred tax charge of HK$311 million
(2008: HK$267 million) was charged to the income statement.

Out of the 8.61 sq km land bank having reached the formed

and serviced stage as at 31 March 2009, about 1.5 sq km has
been classified as stock of properties held for trading and carried at
historical cost.

Wanhua Zijin Garden, a residential property development near
Yangkou Port with a gross floor area of 65,000 sq m, is partially
completed and contributed turnover amounted to HK$21 million
(2008: Nil) during the year.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT
REREE

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office
development in the heart of Nantong City with a gross floor area
of some 80,000 sq m. This complex was topped out in November
2008. Presale activities are underway and completion is scheduled
in early 2010.

In Hangzhou, PYI holds an investment property, the Pioneer
Technology Building, which is an office building with gross floor
area of some 20,000 sg m. The building contributes rental income
of HK$4 million (2008: HK$0.5 million) and occupancy is expected
to be in excess of 80% by the end of 2009.

Treasury Investment

The treasury investment business contributed about HK$33 million
(2008: HK$42 million) towards operating profit for the year.
Portfolio of high-yield loans receivable amounted to about HK$353
million (2008: HK$340 million), equivalent to about 3% (2008: 3%)
of the total assets of the Group.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 September 2008, the Group entered into an agreement

to invest about HK$170 million (subsequently changed to about
HK$130 million) for 51% equity interest in Yichang Port Group.

On 17 April 2009, the Group paid a sum of about HK$78 million
with the remaining sum of about HK$52 million to be payable in or
before October 2009.

18 P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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In June 2009, the Group acquired 25% interest in Jiangyin Sunan
International Container Terminal at a consideration of RMB27.65
million (equivalent to about HK$31.4 million).

On 30 April 2009, the Company proposed to raise about HK$362
million to about HK$431 million before expenses by way of the
rights issue of not less than 3,016,787,034 rights shares and not
more than 3,588,897,924 rights shares on the basis of two rights
shares for every share of PYI then held (the “Rights Issue”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.12 per rights share payable in full on
acceptance. The Rights Issue was approved by PYI shareholders in
a special general meeting held on 9 June 2009 and 3,019,350,218
rights shares were being allotted. The net proceeds of about
HK$350 million are intended to be used on PYI’s investment in port
and port-related projects and as general working capital of PYI.
Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the circular and prospectus

of the Company dated 22 May 2009 and 12 June 2009 respectively.

Apart from the above, there are no other major subsequent events
since the balance sheet date and up to the date of this report.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT
BEREE

OUTLOOK

China is maintaining moderate economic growth through the
implementation of effective domestic stimulus programs on

capital expenditure and internal demands. Long term sustainability
would have to depend on healthy international trades and foreign
investment and, more importantly, on the recovery of the global
economy. It is evident that the global financial market will take
quite some time to recover.

The general trading conditions along the Yangtze is improving with
moderate growth in the first half of 2009. Our Yangtze Strategy
will continue moving forward within the framework of the Jiangsu
Coastal Region Development Plan, Yangtze Delta Development Plan
and the Central and Western Regional Development Strategies.
With the strengthened financial capacity, PYl is ready to deliver the
strategic options on our Yangtze Strategy with a view to enhance
the PYI shareholders’ return.
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The State Council describes the Yangtze Delta region as “the
strongest comprehensive strength among regions in China, and it
holds a strategic position and plays a driving force in the socialist
modernization”.

AL R =AtREPREGAENFRENRE - FLE T
ERREERERTEEEENERMLMEEER] -

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to RAAZRNROBRHAEBFENERELBERE
our Chairman for his vision and leadership, to our board members EEROANBERGHER  UREBRAM
for their valuable guidance and monitoring, and our staff team B BB ER - EES ANBEREERH LR
across Hong Kong and the Mainland for their steadfast work and REYEERBOGEE  TARHE -

contribution over the year. We also appreciate our business partners
and shareholders for their trust in our strategic vision.

Yours faithfully,

A
Tom Lau 28R
Managing Director ERR
Hong Kong, 17 July 2009 A - 200067H178
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of about HK$4,836 million (2008: HK$5,503
million), representing a decrease of about 12% when compared
with last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the Group’s business in management contracting.

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 16% to about HK$360
million (2008: HK$427 million) as compared with last year. Such
gross profit represented a gross margin of 7% (2008: 8%) of the
consolidated turnover. Profit before taxation of about HK$577
million was achieved as compared with about HK$833 million for
the last year. The Group’s profit before taxation was composed of:

(i) net gain of about HK$80 million in management contracting
and property development management businesses (2008:
HK$129 million);

(i) net gain of about HK$18 million in port and infrastructure
development and logistics business (2008: HK$66 million);

(iiiy net gain of about HK$26 million in LPG distribution (2008: net
loss of HK$8 million);

(iv) net gain of about HK$33 million in treasury investment (2008:
HK$42 million);

(v) net gain of about HK$672 million in property investment
(2008: HK$670 million);

(vi) net loss of about HK$10 million in property trading (2008:
HK$1 million);

(vii) interest income and other income of about HK$19 million
(2008: HK$84 million);

(viii) net gain of about HK$39 million from share of results of
associates and jointly controlled entities (2008: HK$56 million);

(ix) net loss in investments held for trading and available-for-sale
investments of about HK$87 million (2008: HK$11 million);

(x) corporate and other expenses of about HK$136 million (2008:
HK$141 million); and

(xi) finance costs of about HK$77 million (2008: HK$53 million).

Net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of PYI was
about HK$139 million (2008: HK$360 million) and basic earnings
per share was HK3.9 cents (2008: HK10.3 cents). The performance
was adversely affected by the set back in contribution from the
Group’s engineering arm - Paul Y. Engineering and its subsidiaries
(the “Paul Y. Engineering Group"”), the drop in port-related project
management income, as well as the increase in net loss arising from
fair value reduction in trading securities.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at last year
end, total assets increased by 19% to about HK$12,316 million
(2008: HK$10,361 million) and net current assets increased by
69% to about HK$232 million (2008: HK$137 million). These
changes were mainly attributable to the fair value appreciation

of the investment properties in Yangkou Port, and the finance of
capital expenditure by long term borrowings. Consequently, current
assets increased from 1.04 times to 1.05 times of current liabilities.
After accounting for the net profit of about HK$139 million net

of dividends declared of about HK$13 million, the share of other
reserves of associates of about HK$47 million, as well as surplus
arising from RMB exchange translation of about HK$65 million,
equity attributable to shareholders of PYl increased by 8% to about
HK$3,647 million (2008: HK$3,377 million), representing HK$2.42
(2008: HK$2.24) per share as at 31 March 2009 (equivalent to
HK$0.88 (2008: HK$0.82) per share after adjustments of the
estimated net proceeds from the rights issue of HK$350 million and
the 3,019,350,218 rights shares in issue as a result of the rights
issue completed in July 2009).

Net cash inflow from operating activities was about HK$76 million
and that from financing activities was about HK$742 million, and
net cash outflow for investing activities was about HK$682 million,
resulting in a net increase in available cash and cash equivalents of
about HK$136 million for the year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group continues to adopt a prudent funding and treasury
policy with regard to its overall business operations. A variety

of credit facilities are maintained to meet its working capital
requirements and committed capital expenditure. The loans of

the Group bear interest at market rates and are with terms of
repayment ranging from one year to ten years. In an effort to
minimize the adverse impact of exchange rate and interest rate
fluctuations on the Group’s earnings, assets and liabilities, the Group
continues to manage the fluctuation exposures on specific transactions.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s total borrowings amounted

to about HK$3,023 million (2008: HK$2,046 million) with about
HK$1,272 million (2008: HK$959 million) repayable on demand
or within one year and about HK$1,751 million (2008: HK$1,087
million) repayable after one year. Out of the Group’s total
borrowings of about HK$3,023 million, about HK$316 million was
non-recourse to the Group (excluding the Paul Y. Engineering Group).
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As at 31 March 2009, HK$476 million (2008: HK$337 million) of
the Group’s borrowings bore interest at floating rates and were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, HK$129 million (2008: HK$121
million) bore interest at fixed rates and were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, HK$2,267 million (2008: HK$ 1,362 million) bore
interest at floating rates and were denominated in Renminbi, and
HK$151 million (2008: HK$226 million) bore interest at a fixed
rate and were denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s gearing
ratio was 0.83 (2008: 0.61), which is calculated based on the

total borrowings of HK$3,023 million (2008: HK$2,046 million)
and the Group’s shareholders’ fund of HK$3,647 million (2008:
HK$3,377 million).

Cash balances at 31 March 2009 amounted to about HK$922
million (2008: HK$636 million), of which about HK$183 million
(2008: HK$34 million) has been pledged to banks to secure general
credit facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 March 2009, the
Group has a net debt position (being cash balances net of bank
borrowings) of HK$1,718 million (2008: HK$1,143 million).

In July 2007, the Group, through its 75% owned subsidiary Jiangsu
YangKou Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd., entered

into a 7-year project loan facility agreement for RMB960 million
with a syndicate of eight domestic banks in Nanjing, the PRC. This
syndicated loan, bearing the current Renminbi long-term loan
benchmark interest rate as announced by the People’s Bank of
China, has been used to fund construction of the 13-km Yellow Sea
Crossing and the 1.4 sq km man-made island at Yangkou Port. As
at 31 March 2009, the outstanding balance of the syndicated loan
amounted to RMB800 million.

In April 2009, the Company proposed the Rights Issue to raise fund
for investment in port and port-related projects and as general
working capital. Please refer to note 57(a) to the consolidated
financial statements for details. Having taken into account of the
net proceeds of HK$350 million from the Rights Issue which was
completed in July 2009, the Group's gearing ratio as at 31 March
2009 would be improved to 0.76.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2009, the Group has contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantee given to a bank for banking facilities given to an
associate of about HK$12 million (2008: HK$10 million) which

was non-recourse to the Group (excluding the Paul Y. Engineering
Group), and guarantee given to a third party of about HK$23
million (2008: Nil).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS EEER

As at 31 March 2009, certain property interests, property, plant 200943 A31H - REEREH16.76EE T
and equipment and bank balances of the Group with an aggregate (2008 : 91618 B TT) 2 5 TR W% ¥
value of about HK$1,676 million (2008: HK$916 million) and WEERERIRITER  UWERETEEESDNZF
benefits under certain construction contracts have been pledged @ BEBTRIT LB LS EAEE
to banks and financial institutions to secure general credit facilities Fite T2 —M{EERNE - K2009F3A31H - &)
granted to the Group. As at 31 March 2009, about HK$83 million 8,3008 % T (2008 : 43008 B L) WEEREE
(2008: HK$43 million) of these pledged assets was used to secure BEEAEASE (TRRBRRERZESEER) WEELER
credit facilities which were non-recourse to the Group (excluding BZEERMENERRD -

the Paul Y. Engineering Group).

TRIE

COMMITMENTS 120004E3 318 + AL EISEURREE T 2 A8 -
As at 31 March 2009, the Group has expenditure contracted for ME - W RRERIEEEWNB R A ALS41E
but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements in 77T (2008 : 1155878 7T) 2 B % 5] B I RN ER
respect of acquisition of certain property interests, property, plant EMBRRBHE 2R

and equipment and non-wholly owned subsidiary in the amount of
about HK$541 million (2008: HK$ 1,155 million).
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YANGKOU PORT
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Soft-opening of 3
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in Eastern China
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PYI develops, owns and operates Yangkou Port, a natural deep-

sea port on Jiangsu's eastern coast, near the mouth of the Yangtze
River. It is poised to become a major deep-sea port in Eastern
China, specializing in bulk cargo including raw materials, coal,
petroleum and chemicals storage, trans-shipment as well as a large-
scale petrochemical industrial and logistic zone. This development
comprises of an industrial and logistics park, a 12.6 km Yellow

Sea Crossing and a 1.4 sq km man-made island acting as a base
for more than 30 berths. The total land bank reaches a massive 42
sg km.

Yangkou Port's soft-opening was declared in October 2008, with
the first general cargo berth in operation. The Yellow Sea Crossing
commenced operation in the same year and the construction of

the Pipeline Bridge commenced in February 2009. In addition,

the construction of the LNG facilities has also commenced on the
0.3 sg km land parcel acquired by PetroChina on the Sun Island.
Embankment works for 22 sq km of land has been completed while
the final 20 sq km industrial land bank is underway, with 10 sq km
scheduled for completion in 2010.

In June 2009, the State Council approved in principle the Jiangsu
Coastal Region Development Plan, which contains Yangkou Port

as one of the major focal development ports. Highways, railway,
canal and other connecting infrastructure and utility associated with
Yangkou Port are being developed concurrently.
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Nantong Port is a major river port in the Yangtze Delta and

one of China’s category-one national ports which is opened to
foreign trade. As an important hub port of the country, it owns a
shoreline of 4.2 km and a land mass of 1.5 sq km with 5 major
terminals namely Tongzhou Terminal, Jianghai Terminal, Yaogang
Terminal, Langshan Terminal and the Container Terminal. They
together operate 23 berths, including 2 berths for vessels of
150,000 tonnage, 5 berths for vessels of 70,000 tonnage, 3 berths
for vessels of 50,000 tonnage and 3 berths for vessels of

10,000 tonnage.

Nantong Port Group is the core port enterprise at Nantong Port,
accounting for nearly 50% of its total throughput. The main dry
bulk cargoes handled by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals,
cement, steel, coal, sulphur, fertilizers, grains and edible oil. It is an
ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment as it provides easy access to
the Yangtze Region by road and waterway.

2008 marked Nantong Port’s third consecutive year with over

100 million tonnes annual throughput. Annual cargo throughput
of Nantong Port Group exceeded 54 million tonnes in 2008, a
decrease of 7% from the previous year. Container throughput
recorded new high at 400,000 TEUs, representing 8% year-on-year

growth.
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Based in Wuhan, Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest
liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) river terminal and storage tank farm
in mid-stream Yangtze. It is a leading player in the Wuhan LPG
market for automotive consumption, as well as wholesale and
distribution of LPG products. Minsheng Gas is poised to boost its
leading position in the infrastructure and logistics facilities for LPG,
oil and liquid bulk chemicals market in Central China.

In 2008, the performance of Minsheng Gas improved substantially,
with throughput at the river terminal and the storage tank facilities
picked up on a growth trend again since the third and fourth
quarters of 2008. The LPG distribution business returned to healthy
operating margin after several uplifts of nation-wide price regime
approved by the Central Government.

Under the suppressed domestic oil price regime in early 2008,
Minsheng Gas, as a responsible corporate citizen, switched to the
lower cost domestic LPG in order to mitigate cost and maintain
steady supply in Wuhan. Losses at times of negative margin were
partly offset by the Government subsidy and part of the subsidy
was booked during the year.
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PAUL Y. ENGINEERING

The Trusted Brand In
Engineering and

Infrastructure
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As an international engineering and property services group,

Paul Y. Engineering (PYE) is dedicated to providing a complete
range of services to the property sectors and communities in Hong
Kong, Macau, the Mainland and Middle East. For over 60 years,
PYE has played a significant role in shaping Hong Kong’s skyline
with its world-class infrastructure, including major commercial
and residential buildings, public housing, institutional facilities,
highways, railways, tunnels, port works, water and sewage
treatment facilities etc.

The performance of PYE during the year was constrained by
weakening demand for construction and project development
services amid the global economic turmoil. The Group, however,
successfully secured new contracts totaling HK$4,149 million
during the year, a 165% growth year-on-year. As at year end, the
total value of contracts on hand amounted to HK$10,625 million, a
12% growth year-on-year. Subsequent to the year end, PYE further
secured new contracts of HK$2,662 million.
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There is no doubt that ports stimulate the economy in communities BORERNBLECBEER - WHLHRBEDN

around the area, generating opportunities in land and property R+ REEREEE - BREESE
developments. With our strategic investments in various ports, PYI BONKBRUERE REEEZHNBEXRITER
has the first-mover advantage to maximize these opportunities to 2 REAENFERERIGKR

generate profits from peripheral property developments.
NEORLRFRBATLZSAE - GIEAYISH T

Xiao Yangkou is situated about 35 km west of Yangkou Port. EERET BEEZRKNETIERR ER
Preliminary advance works was underway with a view to develop FOBLERNEEER -

it as residential and resort area in support of the Yangkou

industrial zone. xR BEZETHEREELERIEN  BRER

ﬁ
183E65,000F 75 K - EETK RIHEHEER
Wanhua Zijin Garden, a residential property development near

Yangkou Port with a gross floor area of 65,000 sq m is completed UREBTRONEEEREST L B —EH

and has entered the sales phase. ERMAELLEERNE - BERE®ELS0,000%F 5
K HR2008F11 A ETE - REBERETT - B

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office B EER2010F )7L -

development in the heart of Nantong City with a gross floor area

of 80,000 sq m. This complex was topped out in November 2008. ERBBRENAMNZHAZTRE  BEE

Presale activities are now underway and completion is scheduled in ETE 420,000 52K - FHIEREMENREHES

early 2010. WA o KAZ(E A 2R 78 Hi R 2009 4F | 1% #8880 % ©

Pioneer Technology Building is a office building with gross floor area
of some 20,000 sq m situated in Hangzhou. The building is held as
an investment property to derive rental income. Occupancy in the
building is expected to be in excess of 80% by the end of 2009.
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The bulk cargo network of PYl expanded during the year as the
Group invested in Yichang Port in Hubei Province and Jiangyin Port
in Jiangsu Province.

Yichang Port Group is a 100% state-owned enterprise. It is
principally engaged in transport logistics and property investments,
providing transportation, cargo loading and discharging, storage,
shipping agent, cargo agent, port logistics and port equipment
rental services in Yichang Port. It is situated on the Yangtze River
near the Three Gorges Dam in Hubei Province. It is undoubtedly
one of the eight largest ports on the Yangtze River.

In April 2009, PYl injected RMB68 million (HK$78 million) cash into
Yichang Port Group, representing 60% of the total consideration
RMB114 million (HK$130 million) in return for a 51% equity
interest. The transaction is expected to be completed by October
20009.

In June 2009, PYI acquired 25% interest in Jiangyin Sunan
International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. from Shanghai
International Port Group at a consideration of RMB27.65 million
(HK$31.4 million). Jiangyin Sunan operates the container terminal
in Jiangyin Port. It intends to increase its critical mass through
consolidation with other major terminals in the Jiangyin Port.

In terms of throughput, Jiangyin Port is ranked 5th along Yangtze
River and it is the fastest growing port in Jiangsu. Its annual
throughput reached 87.4 million tonnes in 2008, representing an
increase of 21.1% year-on-year. Container throughput grew by
63.5% to 0.5 million TEUs in 2008.

'mi’f
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DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH os »

}EI Eﬂ *E T% j: OBE, JP

Chairman

-

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose s,
aged 68, is the Chairman of

the Company. Dr Chow was
appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company
in September 2004 and took up

the position of Chairman in July
2005. He is also the Chairman

of the Company’s Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee
and Compliance Committee, a
member of the Company’s Audit
Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee (alternate to Mr Chan
Shu Kin), and an independent non-
executive director of two subsidiaries
of the Company. Dr Chow is a

civil and structural engineer by
profession. He is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Construction Workers
Registration Authority and a Hon.
Senior Superintendent of the Hong
Kong Auxiliary Police Force. Dr
Chow previously served as President
of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, Chairman of Hong Kong
Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong
Kong Examinations and Assessment
Authority, Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital as well as the Hong
Kong Country Club. He is currently
Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners
Ltd., a firm of independent civil and
structural consulting engineers. Dr
Chow is also a non-executive director
of Wheelock Properties Limited
(0049.HK), and an independent
non-executive director of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited
(0025.HK), Build King Holdings
Limited (0240.HK) and Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK).

B RAREE ose p (BREF68HR) B AR A
X% o AE L R200459 A E A
NEIBIFMITESE - WIE2005F7 A
BEXFE—B T ARRRFHNES
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MR LAU KO YUEN, TOM
gB/REEE

Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director

B EFERAE

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 58,

is the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company.
He is a member of the Company’s
Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Share
Repurchase Committee, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr Lau has over 36 years’
international corporate development
and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well
as construction and engineering
services involving the road, rail, port,
power, telecommunications, mining
and resources sectors in the Asia
Pacific Region. He joined the Group
in 1991 and has been responsible for
the Group’s corporate development
strategy, and overall performance.
Mr Lau is also the Deputy Chairman
and non-executive director of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (0577.HK)
and an independent non-executive
director of China National Building
Material Company Limited
(3323.HK).

BlE R4 GRESSH) AR AREE
BREE  YAEARRAFHEES 12
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DR CHAN KWOK KEUNG,
CHARLES
PR 38 5+

Non-Executive Director

FHUITES

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged
54, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is a member of the
Company’s Nomination Committee
(alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom).
Dr Chan holds an Honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws and a Bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering and

has over 29 years' international
corporate management experience
in the construction and property
sectors as well as in strategic
investments. He joined the Group

in 1987 and was Chairman of the
Company until July 2005. Dr Chan

is also the Chairman and executive
director of ITC Corporation Limited
(0372.HK) and was the Chairman of
Hanny Holdings Limited (0275.HK)
until September 2008.

R 58 8+ GRES545%) AR QR IEH
TEE WAL RREEEENKE
(HEREREE) -BRIELHHEER
KEBTENRTARTRREL 24
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MR KWOK SHIU KEUNG,
ERNEST
W@ E

Independent Non-Executive
Director

BYFITES

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest,

aged 73, joined the Company as

an independent non-executive
director in 1993. He is a member of
the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and
Compliance Committee. Mr

Kwok is a practising solicitor, a
chartered civil engineer and a
practising arbitrator. He was a
registered structural engineer and
an authorized person (List Il) under
the Hong Kong Buildings Ordinance
for more than 20 years. Mr Kwok

is also a member of the Institution
of Civil Engineers, United Kingdom
and a fellow member of both of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators,
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators.

2Fbos St £ GRE735%) B 19934 AL iE
EARRBVBUIFNTES  BAKQA
ERLZEG FTHEER RELEE
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MR CHAN SHU KIN
PR 161 B Jo 4

Independent Non-Executive
Director

BUFATES

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company
in September 2004. He is the
Chairman of the Company’s Audit
Committee and Share Repurchase
Committee and a member of the
Company’s Compliance Committee
and Nomination Committee
(alternate to Mr Kwok Shiu Keung,
Ernest). Mr Chan has over 32 years’
experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management services.
He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a fellow
member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, as well as an
associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr Chan is a partner

of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants. He is
also an independent non-executive
director of PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited (formerly known
as China Oil Resources Holdings
Limited) (0850.HK).
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MR LEUNG PO WING, BOWEN JOSEPH ass »

RELITE s r

Independent Non-Executive Director

BUFATES

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass »,
aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director
of the Company in August 2006.

He is a member of the Company’s
Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and an independent
non-executive director of two
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr
Leung previously served the Hong
Kong Government for over 32 years
until his retirement as the Director of
the Office of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administration
Region in Beijing (“Beijing Office”)

in November 2005. He joined the
Administrative Service in June

1973 and rose to the rank of
Administrative Officer Staff Grade A1
in June 1996. During his service in
the Administrative Service, Mr Leung
had served in various policy bureau
and departments, including Deputy
Secretary for District Administration
(later re-titled as Deputy Secretary for
Home Affairs); Deputy Secretary for
Planning, Environment and Lands;
Private Secretary, Government House;
Secretary for Planning, Environment
and Lands; and Director of the Beijing
Office. Mr Leung has extensive
experience in corporate leadership
and public administration. During his
tenure as the Director of the Beijing
Office, he had made commendable
efforts in promoting Hong Kong in
the Mainland, as well as fostering
better understanding, establishing
closer links and facilitating exchanges

in various spheres between Hong
Kong and the Mainland. Mr Leung is
also an independent non-executive
director of Paliburg Holdings Limited
(0617.HK).
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MR LI CHANG AN
FERTE
Independent Non-Executive

Director

BUFHATES

Mr Li Chang An, aged 74, was
appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company
in January 2007. Mr Li was the Vice
Secretary of Shangdong Provincial
Party Committee from 1983 to
1987. He was further appointed
as the Governor of Shangdong
Province in June 1985. He was
the Deputy Secretary-General of
the State Council between 1987
and 1993, and was elected as an
alternate member of the Eleventh
CPC Central Committee and a
member of Twelfth CPC Central
Committee. Mr Li was the executive
vice chairman of China Poly Group
Corporation from 1993 to 2001.
He was also the chairman of the
board of China Orient Telecomm
Satellite Company, Limited from
1995 to 2003.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREEE

MS YANG YAN

BmERLZ L

Chief Representative — China
BERRARRERERAKR-—FH

PYI Corporation Limited
REEBBRAA

Ms Yang Yan, aged 41, joined the Group in 2003. She is the Chief Representative of the
Company in China and is responsible for originating and monitoring the performance of
the Group’s investments in the Mainland, including the Yangkou Port project, and holds
directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Yang has many years of
experience in corporate development and general administration and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration.

BT CREAR) R2003FMAREE  BARFBZERBIBEFNPEZERREK - it
TZEEMMREEAEBAETRREZCERERE  BRFOBEE  YEEARASZRM
BRARAZESZBA -BLLINECELEER THREELFEAEELFER URHEIRERE

BEaf-

MR XU WEI HUI
TRETE ST

Chief Operating Officer
BREEEE

PYI Corporation Limited
REEBBRRAA

Mr Xu Wei Hui, aged 39, joined the Group in 2008. He is the Chief Operating Officer

of the Company and is responsible for the overall operations and business development
of the Group in the Mainland and holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Xu has strong credentials in the successful strategic development, growth
and operation of businesses in the port and logistics, rubber, petrochemical and energy
sectors. He graduated from Renmin University of China in Beijing with a Master’s degree
in Business Administration and is a non-practising certified public accountant. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Xu held senior management positions with a number of listed
companies in the Mainland.

IREE ST E GREF395%) M2008F MAAEE  AARBZEFEES  AEAEEEANMZ
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MR WONG YIU HUNG
HRELE

Chief Financial Officer
HEMEE

PYI Corporation Limited
REEBBRAA

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 44, joined the Group in 2004. He is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and is responsible for all financial management and accounting matters
of the Group. Mr Wong holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He has over 22 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management in
both international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr Wong holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Chinese Law from Peking University. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants, and a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong.

EIRIE S A CRFA45R) R2004F MAARKE  RARBAZERMBE BEAKERAMHK
ERNEHER BEELEARRZRMBARZEETRA - X BEER ST EBH N
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B REAGHMASEE  RENHASHMASERSE  TRABENEI -

MR KO HIU FUNG

S]-1: e

Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
SEEFELAERAANE

PYI Corporation Limited
REEEBRQT

Mr Ko Hiu Fung, aged 35, joined the Group in 2008. He is the Group Legal Counsel
and Company Secretary of the Company and is responsible for all legal, regulatory,
compliance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr Ko holds directorship in a
number of subsidaries of the Company and is a member of the Company’s Compliance
Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Law from University of Glamorgan, Wales
and is a qualified barrister in Hong Kong, England and Wales. Mr Ko has over 10 years’
experience in the legal profession and had been the corporate counsel of several listed
companies.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREERE

MR WEI WEN KUI

B BELE

Director and General Manager

EERAKE

Jiangsu YangKou Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd.
IEFOEBREMERRAT

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
IEOTERABRERBRAT

Mr Wei Wen Kui, aged 44, joined the Group in 2006. He is the Director and General
Manager of Jiangsu Yangkou Port and Jiangsu Yangtong and is responsible for the
operations and development of the Yangkou Port subsidiaries, and holds directorships
in these project subsidiaries. Mr Wei has extensive experience in the design and
development of petrochemical storage facilities, and the management of large-scale
petroleum and chemical logistics facilities for national and multinational corporations in
China. In collaboration with relevant authorities at the national and local levels, he has
performed extensive research on China’s oil storage and logistics sector, particularly in
the regions of Bohai Bay, the Yangtze Delta and the Pearl River Delta. Mr Wei holds a
Bachelor's degree from the China University of Petroleum, majoring in petroleum and
chemical processing.

BB e A (RF4457) 200655 MAAREE - BIIHFABMIHFTBZESTHEKE A
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MR WANG WEI GUO
ITEBEEE

Director and General Manager

EERAKE

Nantong Port Group Limited
MEBOEEBRLF

Mr Wang Wei Guo, aged 47, joined the Nantong Port Group in 1989. He is the Director
and General Manager of Nantong Port Group Limited and is responsible for the overall
operations and business development of the Nantong Port Group. Mr Wang has
extensive experience in the development, management and operation of port business.
He worked for the Ministry of Communications from 1982 to 1989, after which he
held various senior positions at Nantong Port Authority, including deputy head of its
commerce department, executive officer in charge of its cargo-forwarding centre and
deputy commissioner, and was the General Manager and Chairman of Nantong Port
(Group) Co., Ltd. A senior economist, Mr Wang graduated from Nanjing College of
Communications and Hehai University. He was also a representative of the Tenth Session
of the People’s Congress of Jiangsu Province.
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MR LIU HONG WEI
B RERE

Investment Director
REBE

PYI Corporation Limited
REEEBRQT

Mr Liu Hong Wei, aged 39, joined the Group in 2006. He is the Investment Director
of the Company and is responsible for the overall development and operation of the
Group's land and property business in association with port facilities, and is a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Liu has more than 17 years of experience
in project management as well as real estate project development and management.
He graduated from the Beijing Institute of Technology with a Bachelor's degree in
Engineering, majoring in Communications Engineering.

BIRERE CRF395%) R2006F MMAREE  RARRZREMAE TEAERRLEER
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TERGETRE -

MR YU BING
RERE

Chairman

BER

Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited
HMIEREAHMBRIEREBRAA

Mr Yu Bing, aged 43, joined the Group in 2008. He is the Chairman of Hubei Minsheng
Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited and is responsible for the operations and development
of the Hubei Minsheng subsidiaries and holds directorships in these project subsidiaries.
He had been the senior executive of a number of top 500 multinational corporations
and listed companies for more than 15 years. He has extensive experience in corporate
operation management and project management. Mr Yu holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Macromolecule Synthesize from Beijing University of Chemical Technology.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREERE

MR SU ZHI JUN
LRE L

Investment Director
REBE

PYI Corporation Limited
RESEFRAA

Mr Su Zhi Jun, aged 38, joined the Group in 2006. He is the Investment Director of the
Company and is responsible for originating and overseeing the Group’s investments in
feeder ports in the Yangtze River region as well as their operation and management.
Mr Su holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He has more
than 12 years of investment, operation and management experience in infrastructure
projects. He worked for a state-owned shipping and logistics enterprise prior to joining
the Group. Mr Su graduated from the Faculty of Navigation, Dalian Maritime University.

REFRE CRF38R) R2006F MAREE  RARAZRELE TEREMERMNEER
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MR XUAN XIAO FEI
ERREE
General Manager
RS

Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited
REEpTERERFITERRA A

Mr Xuan Xiao Fei, aged 38, joined the Group in 2006. He is the General Manager of
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited and is responsible for the operation
and development of Jiaxing Feeder Port project and the business development of the
Group's investments in feeder ports in the Yangtze River region. He is a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr Xuan possesses over 17 years' experience in project
investment and development, corporate finance, financial management as well as
finance. He held senior positions at state-owned bank, real estate, multinational
infrastructure investment and logistics enterprises prior to joining the Group. Mr Xuan
graduated from the Faculty of Finance, University of Zhejiang and is a PRC accountant.
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MS MEI HONG

wrRzt

Legal Counsel, China
B2 AR

PYI Corporation Limited
REEBBRAA

Ms Mei Hong, aged 37, joined the Group in 2007. She is the Legal Counsel of the
Company in China and is responsible for all China legal matters of the Group and a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ms Mei is a qualified PRC lawyer with 15 years’
practising experience. Before joining the Group, she served one of prestigious law firms
in China specializing in FDI, M&A and securities. Ms Mei holds a Bachelor’s degree in law
from the University of Zhejiang.

18R+ (RE375%) M2007FMAREE  RARR ZPEEN BEAEEPEERE
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MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM
BRI GE Se

Senior Finance Manager
SR AR

PYI Corporation Limited
REEEBRQF

Mr Chan Dik Keung, William, aged 40, joined the Group in 1993. He is the Senior
Finance Manager of the Company and is responsible for the financial and management
reporting of the Group. Mr Chan has over 16 years of experience in accounting and
financial management in listed companies. He holds a Master’s degree in Applied
Finance from The University of Melbourne and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants.
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BrREAMBHELEN  REBSHMASEERAESHSHMASEREE -
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREERE

MR ZHU YONG MING
RAKBAIEE

Corporate Finance Director, China
TEMELE  FH

Regional Financial Controller, Zhejiang
W OT (& 35 B 7 AR R

PYI Corporation Limited
REEEBRQT

Mr Zhu Yong Ming, aged 38, joined the Group in 2005. He is the Corporate Finance
Director of the Company in the PRC and Regional Financial Controller in Zhejiang and is
responsible for the corporate finance activities of the Group’s projects in the Mainland
and also responsible for monitoring the financial functions of the Group’s projects in
Zhejiang region. He is a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr Zhu possesses over
15 years’ experience in investment and financial management, corporate finance as well
as operations management. Prior to joining the Group, he was the financial controller
and investment manager of a number of multinational corporations. He holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Thunderbird University in the United States and
is a PRC certified accountant and a member of International Certified Internal Auditors.

KA (RF385%) M2005F INARERE - BARA A B2 (EEE 8 8 RO = 38
BRE BEAEEAMNCERESYE YEEEEAKENNIGRIEROMBEE -
MITAARR —MHNBARMNER - REEAERE UHKER CERERLETEHEE
BISFERER - EMAAEERN  EEBRXBEEREREIVBEAERRELE - AXESE
SHSRc THERRTEN  APESEALEREMABEL -

MR LIU DONG
BRAE

Regional Financial Controller, Nantong
FEEE R

PYI Corporation Limited
REEEBRQT

Mr Liu Dong, aged 37, joined the Group in 2006. He is the Regional Financial Controller
in Nantong and is responsible for monitoring the financial functions of the Group’s
projects in Nantong region. Mr Liu was also appointed as the financial controller

of Nantong Port Group Limited in March 2008. Mr Liu has more than 15 years of
experience in accounting management. He worked for a national petrochemical group
prior to joining the Group, and was responsible for the financial aspects of a number of
petrochemical development projects in both China and overseas. After graduating from
Jiangsu University, Mr Liu obtained his Master's degree in Business Administration from
Peking University in 2002.

IR Se 4 GRE3750) 20065 MMAAREE - SEBREAMBLAE AEERAEEHELE
TR M ENE - B EMN2008F3R KL AEBEENSEBRAR T KRAE - 25%4E
REBEETEERISFLR EMAREEZA  EERRBELAECTIERE  AEE
WO ERBERBBMBHENER - ZEENTIHFABRE 2R R2002FER[/IERK
BIMEBRET S -
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MS TSANG SAU YING
BREELT

Regional Financial Controller, Hubei

PYI Corporatlon Limited
REEEBRQT

Ms Tsang Sau Ying, aged 40, joined the Group in 2006. She is the Regional Financial
Controller in Hubei and is responsible for monitoring the financial function of the
Group's projects in the Hubei region. Ms Tsang has over 18 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. She had been worked as the Financial
Controller and Financial Manager in the subsidiaries of several multinational and listed
companies. She holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from The University
of Hong Kong, with majors in accounting and finance. Ms Tsang is a fellow member

of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

B A RL T GRFA057) M20065F MAREE - Bt ERMBALE  BEERAKE RN

BEENFBEE - BREIRBFH  SHEVBEETEEDSFLR - B EBBEEER
TRANMBAREEVBAERYBERE BHAEEERBZIHERR LM &

SR BRERRBFHAREHMAEEREE  TABEEHMAEEE -

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH

FREEL LT

Finance Manager — Treasury and Investment
BEE - AERRE

PY| Corporation Limited
REEEBRQT

Ms Li Yee Ping, Sarah, aged 37, joined the Group in 2005. She is the Finance Manager
—Treasury and Investment of the Company and is responsible for treasury and
investment management of the Group. Ms Li has accumulated extensive experience

in treasury operation, corporate finance and investment management while serving
listed companies and international financial institution. She holds a Master's degree in
Financial Analysis and a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration in Finance. Ms Li is
a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

T (GRE37RR) R2005F MAREE - BAAAZMBEBE-RAERKE  BELE
BrrRIERREERER FTHLLERNETRAMER S RMEBIE  NeEEE tXER
BERREEEBAZFLR HWRBEVBOMBELT 2L RIHNERV KBS LEM  UAKER
%; Euu‘l—gmé/ﬁiaz\ °
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREEE

MR CHU WAI YEUNG, WALLACE
REBEE

Group Internal Audit Senior Manager
SERBETSREE

PYI Corporation Limited
REEBBRAA

Mr Chu Wai Yeung, Wallace, aged 41, joined the Group in 2007. He is the Group
Internal Audit Senior Manager of the Company and is responsible for the internal audit
matters of the Group. Mr Chu has 10 years of experience in internal auditing, internal
control and risk management. He holds a Master’s degree in Practising Accounting from
Monash University of Australia and is a member of the CPA Australia.

KREBRE RFANR) R2007FMARER - BEARFAZEEAAREASRLE  AERE
Bz ABMBFES - REEEARPE  AEPES RERERDEER10FER - i H R
NS A B S 2T 26 URARMNSAMAEEE -

MR WANG BAO GUO

FRESLE

Director, Internal Audit of Nantong Region
mEbEREETEE

PYI Corporation Limited
REEEBRQT

Mr Wang Bao Guo, aged 58, joined the Group in 2004. He is the Director of Internal
Audit of Nantong Region and is responsible for monitoring the internal control function
and for the internal audit matters of the Group’s projects in Nantong. Mr Wang has
over 25 years of experience in finance, medicine, investment and financial advisory. He
graduated from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s degree in
Finance.

FREEE RF585%) R2004F MAREE  REARBANEFLE  BEERAEER

BAmEtRSEE ARNABENTE REEHZTARANBEFOTHE TEEE
TR BE RENUBHATEHBERSFER SALUAMEREZ eRAB LB -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

MAKING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE A PART OF PYI
CULTURE

PYI Corporation Limited (“PYI"” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has recognised the importance of
transparency and accountability, and believes that shareholders of
PYI can benefit from good corporate governance.

To ensure that corporate governance is part of corporate culture,
this year, PYI has kept abreast of the new amendments on the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
implemented in January 2009 and has continued to provide
corporate governance training to the management of subsidiaries
in the Mainland. Recently, PYI has finalised and will adopt shortly
its Code of Conduct which covers areas such as bribery and
corruption, conflicts of interest, disclosure of information and
discriminations.

PYI has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
("CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and
has adopted some of the recommended best practices for the year
ended 31 March 2009.

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI directors as well
as senior management of PYI. After having made specific enquiries,
all directors and senior management of PYI have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during this financial year.

PYI directors has complied with the requirement of Securities and
Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their respective interests
in PYI and its associated corporations during the year. PYI directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of PYl and its associated corporations are disclosed in
the Directors’ Report on pages 88 to 91 of this annual report.

We report below on the corporate governance principles and
practices adopted by the Group.

EREBERRELL

REEEERDA ((REIR[ADF] - ERAH
WEBRARBIAEE) RAEAERMEEE
Bt WEERRARRFCEEGTES -

BROCEEREERECEL S FREZY]
F2009F 1A EHHCE BB ERSMBER R A
(TBe 2z ) FH EmARRD (KETRAND &5
ERTIEX  WHEBEANBITERRNEEERM
EEREI - & RESTRIFERHR
RWETATA RE@EREHERES - 7
wER - AR EE MUK o

HZE2009F3A31BILFE RE—HAEBRE
SFCETRAD KT S+ A R EE R ERTAD
(KEsFADD) 2 RAIRFAEATAEX - I
RAREEHRRERR -

R - REMELRACETRID K+ E
MRABEZETIEFRHHRET A ([RE
AnD - MOREFRED MBEBRARNREEZRSR
EEE -KARSH 2ERFEZINSRERE
BHEREAFRFE —EHETRETRDS
BZMBERE-

REE RELFFCETEARBERIEGHEE
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TEERBRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE BEEREE
Building a high-impact governance structure BRE— R ERRE

SHAREHOLDERS OF PYI
RERR

Approval of key Reporting
corporate actions ESR
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Appointment Reporting Appointment Reporting and/or
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SHAREHOLDERS

Protecting shareholder interests is paramount

ENSURING EQUITABLE TREATMENT

All PYI shareholders are entitled to attend and vote at general
meetings in accordance with PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws
of Bermuda.

Despite the mandatory requirement that any vote of shareholders at
a general meeting must be taken by poll imposed in January 2009,
voting on resolutions put forward at all PYI's general meetings has
always been taken by way of poll since 2006 to ensure that PYI
shareholders can exercise their control in proportion to their equity
ownership. All poll results have been published and posted on the
websites of PYI and of the Stock Exchange.

Below is a summary of the PYI's general meeting held during the
year 2008/09:

B3R
REREGF| 5 2RREE

R —REC
ERERROAERLFERREKRE - WIRRIRE
MARMB K ARENEREREG LRE -

BE2009F 1 AEITREIMRTE - ERRARE L
A& SR RO AR SRR BB AR SR 7 S AT - BEEIRIR
ERREMTEELFREEBNIEHE B
20065F 8 - IREM A RE RS HRFERI AR
EMHARR - TAERENE R EREHL
B AT s E I -

AT 22008/09F ERITHREREASHE -

SUMMARY OF PYI'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

EAFEETHRERRASHE

2008 Annual General Meeting
2008 RRBFRE

v Approval of the 2008 audited accounts
iB2008F A EZARE

/ Approval of the 2008 final dividend in the form of warrants
3838 A R AR AR FE 1F /520084 [E A AR HARR B

V4 Re-election of Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest and Mr
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph as directors (by separate resolutions)
FEEARAREEL  FLREERREBRAEERES (UBEDRERN T AET)

v/ Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000

per annum for all directors
MBETREES LB THBIBEF4,000,0008 THEEFHES

v Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to Board

to fix their remuneration

BEZEEY s HERT ST ARENMERXEEERETANE

v/ Approval of the issue of 1-year warrants
H/EEIT —FHIR R ER

% of Votes Cast For
B EHENLE

100%

99.71%

100%

100%

99.9%

100%

w:C) REEMEB AT 200975
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TEERRE

SUMMARY OF PYI'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR - continued
EXEERTHRERRASHE-&

2008 Annual General Meeting % of Votes Cast For
2008FRRBFAE EREHENLR

s/ Grant of special mandate to directors to allot warrants and to issue shares upon
exercise of warrants 100%
AT E S R PARC 3 PR B B X A SR AR A R AT (R B BT AR D

/  Grant of general mandate to directors to issue additional shares

. P e 93.15%
T B BT 0 — R ’
v Grant of general mandate to directors to repurchase shares 100%
(o)
BTEFEBRN N —RXE
/  Extension of the share issue mandate to directors 93 15%
— = . (]
BARTERHITROZEN
v Refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options under PYI's share option scheme 94 389%
o (]

FRARIR R I B A AT IR B I 2 10% R 58

v/ Approval of the refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options under the share
option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited 94.66%
HEEFRBEREZEEEGR O ABRET SR LBREZ10%RE

MAINTAINING EFFICIENT SHAREHOLDER HEEERENRREBRZHE

COMMUNICATIONS AND PARTICIPATION R A TR REREA LRSS

PYI endeavours to maintain effective communication with all PYI BVRTE - ARATIE EVERIREVEER] - 85 ) BLFT

shareholders so as to enable them to make informed decision on ERREFBEUNER

matters relating to their investment and the exercise of their rights

as shareholders in PYI. REZBHNEFERFHABRE DEURNTHE
M BN MEF IR BAEE - ARM

PYI has established and maintained different communication REEZY  EBRBANBERNBEZEM MR

channels with its shareholders through the publication of annual 2 48 5 —www.pyicorp.com IR A E # It S & ©

and interim reports, announcements as well as news releases to

provide extensive information on the Group’s activities, business REREBRRRGR/RERRMEERIELES

strategies and developments. Such information is also available on EZXBEAH—EABEETE-

PYI website — www.pyicorp.com.
FERENEEFNSAERBERIERTHERER
PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for PYI RRE - LA FERERREIER »
shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board.

All directors and senior management of PYI will make an effort

to attend shareholders’ meetings and address queries from PYI
shareholders.
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To enhance PYI shareholders’ understanding of PYI's business and
latest business initiatives, since 2005, an “Address by Managing
Director” session has been included in annual general meetings
in addition to standard meeting agenda. This session is led by the
Chairman and presented by Managing Director.

Moreover, simultaneous translations have been arranged during
general meetings, providing language support in English and
Cantonese, thereby catering the needs of those fluent in any one of
the two languages.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Building effective board is key to good corporate governance

PROVIDING RESPONSIBLE AND EFFICIENT LEADERSHIP

The primary role of the board of directors of PYI (“Board”) is to
maximize long-term shareholder value. It assumes the responsibility
for providing effective and responsible leadership and control of the
Company, and directing and supervising the Company’s affairs in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors group-
wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance of the
Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated the Managing
Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the Group.
The senior management of the Group, on the other hand, is
responsible for the management and administrative functions and
the day-to-day operations of the Group under the supervision of
the Managing Director. The corporate governance structure of PYI
is disclosed in this report at page 52.

BINRRERRARENEBE L& EBTEE
FIRWBH - B2005F i RMUERRBFEAGH
—REBZEENSN MA—EBREIFEIR  MH
HEORFH BB E IR -

29 BIBEREAS T R 95 AR ERE
BRI - DA RTRANASRENRES -

EER
BIEEUEENEFREEZRIFILEE LR

RTEEERBRENEE
REZER(EERDNHIZABERARRFM
EEaZ2EENG  BRAETHRAERXEAEENSE
BREZEARBZEE ARTEREEARR
ZEBHAEAEENRBERRER -

EFRETRHEST RANBEREAEEDY
FHAEE  FEARANER  AREREE
B

RBIEME EFEREEAEEREEERERE
WEN THTHREAE -Z—1H AKER
RERBLAHEET  BEEERMITHRBEN
B URBOTAKBEASEENRE - REDR
ERARBEARSNES2EEHIFE -
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TEERBE
Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for the NTREEREEEBNHE -
Board:

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD

EEREEEBNRE
v Financial reporting and control
BF 75 BR SN Ba 2
Ve Equity Fund Raising
BARER
v/ Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions
PR BB H M D IREZHE KT K
v Notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules
CEMHRAD A ET RMHIRZ S
v Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group
EARBHESIAEEEREENEMMERNE
CREATING SUCCESS BY WAY OF INDEPENDENT LB S R i (=S
GOVERNANCE AREHERIE LB REOLREAGER
To ensure that the Group upholds its commitment to strong 2008/090 M EE - EERFER R B IR
corporate governance, the Board is composed mainly of 5 TEFEK HEERKXE=Z92Z2—NUE-ME
independent non-executive directors throughout the 2008/09 EREEGIKE - RIDIMARBEILIFNTES -

financial year, representing more than one-third of the Board.

Also, a majority of the members of the Board committees are

independent non-executive directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EE 5
(as at the date of this report R A FR & 2 H)

Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director Non-Executive Director
BAFHTES BITES FHTES
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph EBR#EIE L (Chairman £ /&) Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 2503855 4 + ASREE + BREIE BT
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRES/ER S04 (Deputy Chairman &
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 28 55 4 Managing Director
Mr Li Chang An Z2% L4 FIEEFEH)
Brief biographical details of the above directors are set out on pages FPRENEENENFBRARANFE RN E39E
39 to 41 of this annual report and are also available on PYI website ME BERERTEEHNREDLE —www.
— WWW.pyicorp.com. pyicorp.com °
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The majority composition of independent non-executive directors
(including one who has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise, as required
by the Listing Rules) ensures that the Board’s actions account for
the interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in
a balanced and objective manner.

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness
of responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements and the business and
governance policies of the Group.

Further, as stipulated by PYI's bye-laws, each director (including
non-executive director) is required to retire by rotation at least once
every three years and thus seek re-election at the annual general
meeting; and any directors appointed during the year by the Board

following the recommendation of the Nomination Committee stand

for election at the first general meeting after their appointment.

HEVIFNTES(BE - ZAREENERE
B REWMRKETRAD TERABHEEN G
IEEBERERNER)ERRZEKE -
AEREZRNITABEMERRMNE LA
ArEkEBBERMEES -

BMEEA G THERZEEE H2ERER
HfRM g ERAMN S UERLMATE2MER
FEERRRERA (EMRADREMEERTE
AR AEENEBMEABR THRE

O RBIREZ RRIAARSRE {ﬁ%$ (2
EHNTER) AZLB=FRERE R L
ERFBFAS LERBE: MEMNEFAL
REZEGHEBR AEZRZINES HA
EHMEERNERRRAE LRTES -

SUCCESSFUL RE-ELECTION AT 2008 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

JEFI 72008 F RRBFAELEER

Retired by rotation Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest and

B E R

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph
BARERL BLBREERRERLE

/ aterm of approximately three years until the conclusion of the annual general meeting

to be held in 2011

ERO=F  EE2011FREBF K

ENDEAVOURING TO STRONG INDEPENDENCE

In addressing the interest of PYI shareholders, PY| has emphasised
transparency and accountability. Fittingly, the Group’s goal has
been to conduct businesses that are overseen by those with broad
experience while maintaining objectivity and independent views.
Endeavouring to clearly delineate positions of responsibility, the
Chairman and Managing Director of PYI are held by two separate
individuals.

ERBLE

BIBABILM

RERBRERROMNG  RE-—ERICERE
HEEN AKBENHAEEEES  HWEEAE
REBOATHEBEEMEDNRAE - FABT
FEELBIYIMNER -RRBEEREBL LN
£ ARIAMENRALEERETFEBEN
B
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TEERRE

CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR
e 3 B
Responsibilities Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph E R #EE + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 85 R &£

=
WE o/ Provides leadership for the Board

HEZREELSER

o/ Responsible for overseeing the
functioning of the Board
BREREZRTERANERE

As a commitment to good corporate governance, the chairman of
PYI has, in particular, performed the following tasks:

v ensured that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner; and

v hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
director present.

Each independent non-executive director has confirmed his
independence with the Stock Exchange upon his appointment
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of the Board members is totally unrelated to each other and

with the senior management in every aspect including financial,
business, or family.
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/  Leads the management
BEEHEE

s/ Formulates operational strategies
and policies, as well as managing the
Group’s day-to-day operations
B F 2 E R EBRARERAEEN
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Further, each director has made disclosure of his interests or
potential conflict of interests, if any, in the proposed transactions

or issues discussed by the directors at the Board meetings (and
abstained from voting on the relevant resolution as appropriate) as
well as notified changes in personal particulars to the Company in a
timely manner.

EMPHASIZING ACCOUNTABILITY THROUGH EFFECTIVE
DELEGATION

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in steering
the Group to do businesses in the interest of shareholders, a
schedule of regular Board meetings to be conducted within a year
are issued well in advance to all members, thus well-organising

the more participation by the directors in every meetings. Within
the year, 9 Board meetings were held of which one was convened
to discuss, consider and approve a discloseable transaction. Most
directors recorded over 80% attendance in regular Board and Board
committees meetings held during the year in which three directors
recorded 100% attendance as indicated in the following table.

In addition to regular attendance at Board and Board committees
meetings and in order to have a better understanding of

the business operations of the Group, directors including all
independent non-executive directors have participated regular field
trips to places in China in which the Group operates its businesses.

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI shareholders, PYI has established five

Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Compliance Committee, and
Share Repurchase Committee; each having specific roles, authority
and functions as detailed in the respective written terms of
reference which are available on PYI website — www.pyicorp.com.

BE BRESHDEEERTAFTARIRY
B RRE(MERZENRXSREET) FRH
TS REEN MR ER ()TEELEE. BEWT
HERMRBEMERRE) PR FERIRNN
ABEREABERFIENE

BEEENTHIEMBCEAEMNE
REREFRAMTIEEANBRRNESARKE
fAKENAE SFEERTHEAZRMBE
BRPHARERRE  CEFUETLHE
BEx2HEeH FR KRBT TIREEREH

Hi— KRBT %F&Tﬁt/ —RATHRENZ
%ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬂ?%@ﬁﬁm' DEENFRBITNE
=R é*&iﬁ@@%ﬁ/\ﬁiutﬂ’ﬂﬁj%

S EIEP MNEEEAHTRAOHFEE-
BRTHREEHNEZRRZBEENGAIN  BK
FTHAKRBZEBGEE EEREMBBILHE
HOESETAAAEEETRLLEBNBRS
BEHEMER -

RETHBNEBERERAE R RERRR
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g FNEES REZEG EREEERR
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EHEARE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

BRHELHE
Board Committees EZRBTZEE
Share

Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance ~ Repurchase  Shareholders

E2R B HH 4 R Rftmi R
Number of meetings held during the year

e 2 1 1
EABFREAY ? 6 ’ 0
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph IR+ 9/9 6/6 2/2 1/1 3/3 171
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 303854 8/9 5/6 2/2 1/1 3/3 171
Mr Chan Shu Kin BR824 9/9 6/6 3/3 0/0 171
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2E 554 8/9 6/6 2/2 171
Mr Li Chang An ZE2% %44 6/9 0/1
Executive Director
HTES
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2l R %% 9/9 2/2 1/1 0/0 171
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles BBl 18+ 3/9 0/1
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
KEERBERNANE
Mr Ko Hiu Fung S IE L4 (YAl
A Mr Ko Hiu Fung was appointed as Company Secretary with effect from 24 October 2008.
HI2008F 10 H24F R @ BEEIEFL L EZ ERRAIHE ©
Regarding the principles, procedures, and arrangements for regular FEEHeRNRA B2 #T£E8

meetings, the Board committees have adopted, to a large extent,
the same principles, procedures, and arrangements as that of a
full Board meeting. The minutes for all of the regular Board and
Board committee meetings are recorded in sufficient detail and are
kept by the Company Secretary, subsequently distributed to each
director within a reasonable time period so as to ensure the prompt
execution of decisions made. In the event where independent
professional advice is required, the seeking of such advice must
abide by pre-approved procedures. Appropriately, the directives
that have been implemented by different Board committees are
summarised below.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS = = & i

Developing a scheme that properly motivates executives is #IE — 1816 & B TTHA B 51 8| < REFam
rewarding to shareholders

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

FEES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
AR BUBTES HITES
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph /&3 & & (ChairmanZ /&) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R &4
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest %843 5t 4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 & % % 4
Role & Function / Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company
£ & BB gE e YNGR N2 ee
v/ Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for developing a policy on such remuneration
REEFHSREERBENTFNBERRERE  URAFTZEMEBR  RE—EEAMASE
HENER MESRELEEER
o~/ Determines the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment
REFMBATESNERAEEENAREH  2EEYINR  RASENEFEESE (BEHR
EARNRIEHBEZERENNEA/EES)
/ Makes recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive directors
MEFRHEZIENITESHHM
PERFORMANCE-BASED REMUNERATION POLICY BME R E W BUER
The director’s fee was determined with reference to factors ESMue H2ESRBARET  RERTTS
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by B BRIARMXN 2 HERKF - EFRHRE
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of the B Efhin 5 2 BIEGHFARESRAZER -
director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time committed
by the director. BERBRRITTEWR A EAF &= EAE B F =B
HERTHEEEMNER  ME —RMEHEE
A performance-based element was considered instrumental in RREEFTRT

aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and has
been built into top-management compensation.
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PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an integral RECRKMEBITNEERE  FREFHIBE
part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future awards to B ED D & B 12 RN B YA o it BRE) SRS
employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy include: WEEHBRIE:

v/ to attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be v ERFHRENS SR ARG K&
market competitive; BAT

v to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term and vV  SEEARRENENANEE  BEHAE
long-term performance-based rewards will be emphasized; 38 R SR — 2

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the performance- vV BRRARERARNRER  HEEEK
based rewards will be equity-based; and RAEEMEEN: &

v equity-based reward will be considered in the light of an vV BHEEEENEXERERAUAREEES
employee’s level of responsibility and influence on the Group's HRBENTERE  ZRURMD HERN
performance and share price. =4

PYI effectively deployed the appropriate mix of its existing equity- REDEERBRALEREARD RER

based reward vehicles, including the share option scheme, share HEKT  SEBRETE - RO ZEE R

award scheme and share financing plan. DRVEEHE -

SUMMARY OF WORK PERFORMED
THERE
v Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2008 annual general
meeting

EREEN M - HIRRE2008FRFBFRE Lt/

v Reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of senior executives in line with market remuneration
packages level
AT M e BT 35 3 B 8 K ) S ARTTIR A BBV B 508

V4 Granted share options in lieu of cash bonus payment for fiscal year 2008 and as incentive to employees
BB IRE T 8 AR B20080 M F & 2 B & E M IERZE
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS EBERE

Selecting individuals with complementary expertise and PE— L[ BT EEE AL BEA] B4
independence can serve shareholders better b 3R R Ik

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

REZRES

Composition

AR

2 Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
BYFHITES BITES
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph BB #& 18 + (Chairman£ /&) Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2l2 B & 4

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest %8438 5t 4

Mr Chan Shu Kin R 82 5 4 Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles BEEI % +
(Alternate to Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest (Alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
EAZL %55 EHFBRAYL)

Role & Function

At RMNE

Reviews the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes

EHRANEZRNEE  ABRAK (BERKEE  AFRECRAH) Wt EBEEZSRE
ERRLES

Identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selects, or
makes recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships

NEREBEERNGBANRETES SERNEZREREFALHEES

Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors
ARBEYFMITERNE LML

Makes recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the
Chairman and Managing Director

MEZRREEESZERENEME URES(LEREFHEAH) #EFEEHENER

w:C) REEEARAT 2009FH O3
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NOMINATION PROCEDURES, PROCESS AND CRITERIA
RERR - BREURER

SUMMARY OF WORK PERFORMED
THERR

v Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2008 annual general meeting
REREEFH2008FRFBEFAG LEREEL

J/  Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of independence
declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
FH RFRBIIFRTES R EMAR R F3 136 R R FE B L ER K

On 17 July 2009, the Nomination Committee made an annual REZEZESB 2009678178 @ RIEFTEBILIE
assessment on the independence of all independent non-executive MITERBR(ETRADEIBERMAREZFE
directors based on their annual confirmation of independence B MR K B P TR AR - R
declared pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and confirmed RE—BBEILIFEPTEEFECLETRANE33
that each of these directors were able to meet the guidelines GRATEBRMNIES  WIUDBE AL -

as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and continued to be
independent.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT B EEZH
Adding value to Board operation by performing powerful oversight TEABFEE - BIER SR HE L EFER T H T8
function of internal control, reporting and compliance systems EERIIEE  TREREFREESE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

EREES
Composition 4 Independent Non-Executive Directors
AR BUEHTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BR &1 B2 £ 4 * (ChairmanZ/E)
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph EIBA# &+
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 3843 5 4
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2% 4 % &
*  Mr Chan Shu Kin currently is a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management services.
BREIBR L LR R —EHEE A ERH - B RYUBEERE S EEAEEE5R -
Role & Function v/ Appoints external auditor
AEEBEE Z (SN BED

/ Reviews the Group’s financial information
EHNAEEMBER

o/ Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures
ELE RS BB R R E A EB B AR

s/ Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the
Board for approval
ERXGEZRIEZNEHNRNEE P RN RAXEE

o/ Meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end
has unrestricted access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors
THHSEMAVBRRNARLELREEE - TEGA AU B M AR RAR R IMNE KA EDZ

SRANERIS B
Report on work / Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual
performed consolidated financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for
I{EHRE approval

ZHARBEREERNPHRGEUBRENEEBENFESRAVBERE  URREERHBB

o/ Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group
FE AN BN S R B R B AR

s Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and
internal audit actions implemented/planned by the Group
M REHAIZES - ARERERAEEFEBIGHEIEAIBES TIENERRE

v/ Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the review of the
Group’s 2009 interim results
BUESNEZ AT B BB B AR R E2009F R X B AR R E

/ Met with external auditor in the absence of executives of the Group
EREAREERABESNERT - & RINSZEM
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PYI directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company concerning their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
99 and 100 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Responsibility

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control
to ensure that PYI shareholders’ investment and PYI’s assets are
safeguarded. Such system of internal control was developed by
making reference to the Internal Control Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 1992 and
the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Management is responsible for the design and implementation of
the internal control system of the Group to achieve the following
business objectives:

v Effectiveness and efficiency of operations

v Reliability of financial reporting

v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Such system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aims to provide a
reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance in this respect.
The Audit Committee performs review of the effectiveness

of the Group’s system of internal control and reports to the

Board regularly. This review covers areas of material control

including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management systems.

Pr1 C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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Risk Management

To cope with the risks associated with the achievement of its
business objectives in a continually changing environment, the
Group has recognized the importance of risk management and has
performed risk assessment to evaluate the nature and extent of the
risks to which it is exposed. During the risk assessment process, the
Group is able to identify the key risks facing the Group. The risks
are prioritized according to the likelihood of their occurrence and
the seriousness of their impact to the Group and risk management
measures are in place to manage the risks to an acceptance level.

Review of Internal Control System

Management at business units level is required to perform control
self assessments annually to assess the effectiveness of their
systems of internal control. The control self assessment is in the
form of questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated framework.
These five interrelated components are Control Environment, Risk
Assessment, Control Activities, Information & Communication and
Monitoring.

Besides, the Internal Audit Department together with external
consultant has carried out independent audits to evaluate the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control according to
the approved three-year group internal audit plan. This audit plan
covered the financial years from 2008/09 till 2010/11 and it was
determined using a risk-based approach and is re-assessed annually
to ensure adequate audit resources are deployed and the objectives
of the plan are met.

Finally, management has formulated remedial action plan for gaps
and weaknesses identified during the control self assessments
and internal audit. The Internal Audit Department has conducted
follow-up reviews periodically to ensure remedial actions are
implemented on a timely basis and has reported the results of the
reviews to the Audit Committee.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2009, the Board was not
aware of any significant issues that would have adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of the
Group.
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Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting Function

Despite the removal of the requirement for a qualified accountant
in the Listing Rules effective on 1 January 2009, the Group
continues to maintain a team of qualified accountants to oversee
its financial reporting and other accounting-related issues in
accordance with the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

In compliance with the new code provision (C.2.2) of CG Code
which took effect on 1 January 2009, the Board has, through

the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget, and was satisfied with the result of the review.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed as
the Company’s external auditor at 2008 annual general meeting
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee in its meeting on 16 July 2009 recommended the re-
appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at 2009
annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the same view
as that of the Audit Committee.

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily responsible
for providing audit services in connection with the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, and only provides non-audit
services that do not impair their independence or objectivity and are
approved by the Audit Committee.

iR YT IE R B GERY 12 5T

RE2009F 1 AMABKETRADPEBREERE
FTEIRMECWME  BEASEEEREAEER
SEREK  UEEEENVBEERREMES
HEEEREERER  RARKRE -

BESFR2009F1 A1 8 A RKCRE TR B FE
SFAMEX(EC221K) EEREERABEZEES
HAEEEGH R HERBENER BIH
BREREER  ARMBPEZNEIIREBEE
FEELTRERHOBRE  WHBRAERETR
mE o

SMEERZ BB

g e EMR A FETANIT ([2F]) B H20084F ik
REFAG LEHEmAAARINEZEA &
AT —ERRBEFAEERAL -BRZEERN
20097168 2 &€& F 2 A E2009F IR R A F
ARG LEHNERAEYBAARINEZEE - ME
ERMEEZZEGZER —H -

BTREFEBY EZHTZEERLEELRS
BRI IERZERE  UARTSBEEEBLME
RN WEHBEZE B S ENIERERE

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

ENRENTFEINZERFLBBREH

Services Rendered R R 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Audit services % B 75 6,425 6,838
Non-audit services IEAZ BRAR 7%

Taxation advisory I FER 382 344

Special engagements HELE 1,963 9,573

Total FEE 8,770 16,755
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COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

EREEE
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Company Secretary
R BYFPITES NS
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph BIBA#E &+ (ChairmanZ /) + Mr Ko Hiu Fung =B %t 4
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 38038 % 4
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRfS 22 5% 4
Role & Function o/ Oversees the Company's compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of its
A HEE business operations

EERRNRAEEBEEE L EERE R TNER

o/ Reviews and approves the Company’s code of conduct and/or business ethics, policies
and prevailing corporate governance practices and standards, and oversees their
implementation and compliance
BBEARRBNTRTR M/ EERT BERERTEEEAERNEL  YEREMNER
KBFIER

Summary of work / Review of Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2008

performed EBIH 22008F3A31 B IEFEZ(BEERRE)
THERE / Review of updated compliance reports submitted by Company Secretary

EHARMEFENEHERENLHRE

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE

ROAEBEES
Composition 1 Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
AR BIUFHTES HiTES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BRI B 5L 4 (ChairmanZ /&) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Zl@ R & 4
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph BB # &+
(Alternate to Mr Chan Shu KinZ (LB B85 4)
Role & Function / Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase
£ & BB 8t shares of PYI in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws
of Bermuda
BECEMHRAD REAFRMBRAINRBREEREE TERIEEESBRBRERD 2
- W]
Summary of work  During the year, no meeting was held by the Share Repurchase Committee
performed RER - ROOBEZE SV ECHSE
ITHERE
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PROMOTING TRANSPARENCY VIA CLOSE
COMMUNICATIONS

PYI utilises various communication methods to ensure that
shareholders are kept abreast of the Group’s latest developments.
Press releases are distributed to investors and media whenever a
major event or business undertaking occurs. Moreover, investor
and media visits are organised to promote greater understanding
of projects under development, thus helping them to recognise the
value of such ventures.

For shareholders and stakeholders of the Group, a comprehensive
website is maintained to facilitate two-way communications.
Investors are also made aware of PYI's latest developments by
way of announcements and circulars published by the Company.
Certainly, management has taken every step possible to keep
relevant parties well informed, including international roadshows,
investor meetings, media briefings and analyst conference calls.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

For the good of our community

In 2008, while the Group strived to maintain profitability in the
challenging economic times, we also remained dedicated to
corporate social responsibility in various areas, internally and
towards to the community. With our focus on caring for our

staff, as well as for the society, the Group was credited with the
respected “Caring Company” award from the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service. Let us share with you how the Group contributed
to the society in the past year.

The Group sees excellent potential in the youths of today’s society
and hence invested in their future through the collaboration

with various educational bureaus in the Mainland. In 2008, we
continued to sponsor study tours to Hong Kong and Macau for
secondary students who performed exceptionally in Wuhan and
Nantong. So far more than 100 secondary students have attended
the study tours and witnessed the international business world

by visiting the Stock Exchange, The Legislative Council and major
infrastructure in Hong Kong. We firmly believe in these cultural and
educational exchanges and plan to organize more of these tours for
the elite youths.
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Together, we have witnessed the destruction caused by the
devastating earthquakes in the Sichuan Province in May 2008.
Our hearts went out to those who suffered the loss of their homes
and their beloved. To help them rebuild their lives, the Group
appealed to our staff in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Nantong,
Chonggqing, Guangzhou, Hangzhou and Wuhan for donations,
double-matching every cent that was given. With these efforts,
the Group raised and donated over HK$6,000,000 to the 512
Earthquake. In addition, the Group also donated RMB200,000 to
the Fu Hui Charity Foundation for the rebuilding of an old school
in the Sichuan Province. We sincerely hope that the donations have
benefited the community there.

On the environmental front, the Group has implemented a
comprehensive range of environmental protection facilities at

its development sites. The ecology of our community is of great
importance to us and we will maintain these efforts throughout our
development sites in the coming year.

Besides caring for the community, the Group is also committed
to providing a friendly environment for our staff internally. Our
company policies are drafted with the employees needs in mind,
while balancing the Company’s sustainability. Being awarded
“Caring Company” has encouraged us to continue our efforts in
company welfare policies.

Looking to the year ahead, we would like to devote our best

abilities to be a responsible and caring corporate citizen while
remaining focused on our goals to maintain profitability.

By Order of the Board

Ko Hiu Fung
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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PYI AND SHAREHOLDERS
REE IR

The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved that in view of the recent deteriorating
global economy, it is prudent for PYI to retain an appropriate level
of funds for any potential business opportunities as and when

they arise, and therefore does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009. For the year ended 31
March 2008, a final dividend of 0.85 cent per share amounting to
about HK$12,833,000 was distributed in the form of warrants.

BEERBNNEENFELR  /ECREE It
SEAERHERREBOEN -

RERE

BEZERAT  ERAHRIREEER  RERZ
HMEKEZESUEARBRIMBEERER
e HEIE R Bt T ERIREE Z=20099F3
RA31AEFEZ AR B - B £2008F3A31H
IEFE - URREE 7 XS Ik FMR0.85(L 2 K
HAR% 5.4912,833,000/8 T °

SHAREHOLDERS B3R

Shareholdings as recorded in the PYI register of members R2009F3A31H BIIRERREMZRE

as at 31 March 2009 HRE

% of % of issued

Size of No. of shareholders share capital
registered shareholdings shareholders HRREE No. of shares HEBITRA
BERRERE EEE Bk ] BOL
500 or below kAT 261 54.60% 44,727 0.00%
501 -1000 34 7.11% 26,345 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 112 23.43% 385,352 0.03%
10,001 - 100,000 53 11.09% 1,511,021 0.10%
100,001 - 1,000,000 12 2.51% 3,838,533 0.26%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 3 0.63% 6,316,308 0.42%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 1 0.21% 48,929,772 3.24%
Above 100,000,000 A £ 2* 0.42% 1,447,341,459 95.95%
Total 5t 478 100.00% 1,508,393,517 100.00%
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AR DRI -

* The two shareholders were:

1 HKSCC Nominees Limited BEBRREE (REA) BRATA

DCP/GCP EREGE cEFEESEE
Custodians FEER

Investors wEE

Others HAtb

2 Hollyfield Group Limited

A The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC
Nominees Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS
Participants Shareholding Report (“PSH Report”). The number of
shares registered in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the PSH
Report is different from that shown on the PYI register of members
because some shares withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS
depository had not yet been re-registered.

Top four shareholders according to disclosure of interest
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
as at 31 March 2009

1,149,954,169 76.24%
106,482,280 7.06%
2,967,878 0.20%
1,884,520 0.12%
1,261,288,847~ 83.62%
186,013,939 12.33%
1,447,302,786 95.95%

A BEBPREE (REA)BRQFSTRRERE
MERBBECCASS2EE RN LEHR (28
EBRMBMKR]) - 2EERDBEANRATES
REE(REBNBERAFAEEECLHRMNDEA
HBREFRREMATERZH - & EHCCASS
EHFERRIMEAF ACCASSTE 7517 & 2 # &b
DR ERERERL

720093318 » RIB(EHE R BE A
EZWET 2R NERE

% of issued

No. of share capital

Name of shareholders shares HEBRITRAE

RERERE KGR BoLE

1 Hollyfield Group Limited 404,512,565 26.82%

0OZ Management L.P. 175,832,052 11.66%
Third Avenue Management LLC, on behalf of The Third Avenue

Small Cap Value Fund 158,571,369 10.51%

4 Christian Emil Toggenburger 84,244,397 5.58%

Total # 5+ 823,160,383 54.57%
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PYI AND SHAREHOLDERS

REEEPR R
FINANCIAL CALENDAR B 7 B &6
Event Date
EI1H A HA
2008 final results and final dividend of 1 warrant/6 shares announced 18/07/2008
T M2008F R ZEE M HOMRER 110 RARER < REIAR B
2008 PYI AGM 05/09/2008
2008RERFHEFAE
2008 final dividend of 1 warrant/6 shares issued 26/09/2008
B 32008 F F oA IE K 117 SRR HE RS R HARR B
2009 interim results announced 12/12/2008
FM20094F BRI 4R
2009 final results announced 17/07/2009
EM2009F REAEE
2009 PYI AGM 31/08/2009
2009(RERRBFAE
SHARE INFORMATION B ER
SHARE LISTING B L
PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock RERMGNI1993FIA2NBERNEETBRZ L
Exchange on 21 September 1993. e
STOCK CODE 235
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 BBRZ S 498
American Depository Receipt PYIFY EBITERERE 2 PYIFY
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW ERRRR DA PYW
Board lot 2,000 shares BEEEMN(FF) 2,0008%
WARRANT CODE IR FEESE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 849 BERER G 849
Board lot 5,000 warrants BEEMN(EF) 5,00013
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SECURITIES IN ISSUE

Shares

As at 31 March 2009

As at the date of this report,
i.e. 17 July 2009

Outstanding share options*

As at 31 March 2009

As at the date of this report,
i.e. 17 July 2009

Warrants

As at 31 March 2009

As at the date of this report,
i.e. 17 July 2009

Convertible notes
As at the date of this report,
i.e. 17 July 2009

1,508,393,517 shares
4,529,025,458 shares

147,318,833 options
279,089,806 options

HK$251,398,919.00
HK$250,117,260.19

HK$121,521,498

* Full details can be found in the Directors’ Report at pages 80 to 83 of

51

BBITES
B
7200943 A31H
RAFEHR A -
E12009%7A178

AR TT (IR~

#2009%3A31H

RAFHZH -
BP200947 A 17H

RIRIETE

#2009%3A31H

REFH2H -
BP200947 H17H

A 12 8 22 15
AN G =]
BN200947H17H

1,508,393,517%
4,529,025,458%

147,318,8331p
279,089,80617

251,398,919.00/% 7T
250,117,260.1978 7T

121,521,498 7T
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Share Price
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AR1E (& 8)
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0.0
[e0) [} [ee] (o) [e] [0} (o) [e9) [} (o)) (o)) ()]
o o o o o o o o o o o o
o o o o o o o o o o o o
o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~
< T © ~ 0 o =) - N - N ™
o o o o o o — — — o o o

w:C) REEMEB AT 200975

75



PY! AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELIRIR

MARKET CAPITALISATION

TOTAL MARKET CAPITALISATION
As at 31 March 2009
As at the date of this report,

i.e. 17 July 2009

Public float capitalisation*®

As at 31 March 2009

As at the date of this report,
i.e. 17 July 2009

HK$520 million
HK$1.59 billion

HK$259 million
HK$790 million

* Public excludes all connected persons (including substantial

shareholders and directors) of PYI.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of PY| Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities as at 31 March 2009 are set out in note 56 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2009 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 101 of this annual report and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

No interim dividend was declared during the year.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Details of the distribution are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EERMARSREEEFRAA ([ARQA K&
EWERR (REIAEE]) 8 E2009943A318
IEFEZ FRREEZELETHERE -

ARA B —HREERRF -
ARRZETEMBLRRF - BE QR R AR

BM2009F3A31H 2 EBH I NRE M B HRE
B RES6

HE2009F3A31B L FEARAEEZ EERAR
RIZABEDEEHINRAFREIVELZEKER
NEB 2RV BREW T -
FRITESRAPEHKRSE -

BEETEBIRNMNEE2009F3031BIEFEZ K
AR B -

BB RHEE AR & BT MR RES5 ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2009, the five largest customers

and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 61% and 16% of the turnover of the Group
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers of the Group during the year were less than 30% of the
purchases of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the directors are aware, none

of the directors and their associates within the meaning of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, have an interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to

meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2009, the
Group’s total borrowings (including convertible notes payable)
amounted to approximately HK$3,022,896,000 with approximately
HK$1,271,958,000 repayable within one year, approximately
HK$1,750,938,000 repayable after one year. Cash, bank balances
and deposits as at 31 March 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$922,119,000. The Group’s current ratio (calculated as total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) was 1.05 and

the debt to equity ratio (calculated as total borrowings divided by
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company) was 0.8 as at
31 March 2009.

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$37,579,000 on
property, plant and equipment to expand and upgrade its operating
capacity.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FYIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

MBI E2009F3A31ALEFERN  AEEZHK
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During the year, the Group transferred approximately
HK$118,998,000 from project under development to investment
properties. All investment properties were revalued at the year end
date.

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
27 August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, a total of 85,684,000 share options were
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 March 2009, an aggregate of 147,318,833 shares are
issuable for options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
representing 9.77% of the then existing issued share capital of
the Company (i.e. 1,508,393,517 shares).

As at the date of this report, an aggregate of 279,089,806
shares are issuable for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme, representing 6.16% of the issued capital of the
Company (i.e. 4,529,025,458 shares) on that date.

FRN o AREEE#9118,998,000/8 THEEFEA
HREREME - IEREVELRELARE
HGE -

iR ARBFRNZRENEZ LMEHFER
FURNER & AT AR EE18 o

FARRARBBITRAZZHFEHIINGA M
R M EE43 -

AR RIN200258H27 8 48 2 BE Wi
FTE (TERETED 2FBEHINEE
THIR M FEAS o

FR - BREBEREASSERLIRE
85,684,0008% A% {5 = BB AR A -

20093 A31H @ BIBH AR E B2 K
B H AR EE147,318,8338 A 45 M 1D KR 1T {E
ZERE P RAORGEARRREREET
A% 7 (BN1,508,393,517 % 3% 19)K99.77 % ©

RAHREZR  BEBREFZEELEH
A] 3R F%279,089,8061% I% {7 M I AR 172 2 f8
Bt - H REIRGIEARA R A B BEITRA
(BN4,529,025,4588% f% 17 ) #96.16% ©
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Details of the share options granted, exercised, lapsed and RERNBEBRESERT  176F - KBR
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme during the year MARTTRZ BRI BB I T R IR :
are as follows:

Number of shares issuable under the options granted

BERLBRERTRTNRAEA
Issued upon Adjustment
Exercise Outstanding  Granted exercise Lapsed made Outstanding
Date price as at during during during during as at
Grantee of grant pershare 01.04.2008  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31.03.2009 Exercise period
1401.04.2008 R FR 131.03.2009
ARA RiEAH BRTHE WARTE ERgl  RTEMRT FRKH (3t HATE TS
HKS
AT
Directors
Ez
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom  28.12.2004 1.0628 28.12.2004 -
IER (Note fi#2) 26.08.2012
28.12.2004 1.2857 28.12.2004 -
(Note fi#2) 26.08.2012
08.09.2006 248 08.09.2007 -
07.09.2008
08.09.2006 21257 08.09.2008 -
(Note fiz2) 07.09.2009
18.09.2007 3.546 18.09.2007 -
17.09.2008
18.09.2007 3.03% 18.09.2008 -
(Note fii2) 17.09.2009
18.09.2007 3.03% 18.09.2009 -
(Note fifz2) 17.09.2010
03.06.2008 1.7142 03.06.2008 -
(Note fiz2) 02.06.2009
Kwok Shiu Keung, 28.12.2004 1.24 28.12.2004 -
Ernest 26.08.2012
Bh% 28.12.2004 1.50 28.12.2004 -
26.08.2012
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 1.0628 28.12.2004 -
REE2 (Note fifz2) 26.08.2012
28.12.2004 1.2857 28.12.2004 -
(Note fifz2) 26.08.2012
Leung PoWing, ~ 08.09.2006 2.0828 08.09.2006 -
Bowen Joseph (Note fi2) 26.08.2012
Li Chang An 06.02.2007 25714 06.02.2007 -
2ER (Note f#2) 26.08.2012
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Grantee

RRA

Employees
k&
Hong Kong
E

Date
of grant

RHAH

06.02.2006
06.02.2006
08.09.2006
08.09.2006
08.09.2006
08.09.2006
08.09.2006
08.09.2006
06.02.2007
06.02.2007
30.04.2007
01.08.2007
01.08.2007
01.08.2007
11.10.2007
03.06.2008
03.06.2008
03.06.2008
03.06.2008
03.06.2008
03.06.2008
03.06.2008
03.06.2008

03.06.2008

Exercise Outstanding

price
per share

BRTEE
HK$
BT

25714

(Note fi32)
3.00

(Note fi#2)
243

243
3.00
3.50
3.00

3.00

(Note f#£2)
2.5714

(Note fi#2)
3.00

(Note f#£2)
3.50

350

3.4285
(Note f#22)
3.8571
(Note fif#£2)
25714
(Note fi32)
1.7142
(Note fif2£2)
1.7142
(Note f2)
1.7142
(Note #i#2)
1.7142
(Note f2)
1.7142
(Note f#£2)
2.1428
(Note fi#12)
2.1428
(Note fi32)
2.1428
(Note ##2)
25714
(Note fit2)

asat
01.04.2008
1R01.04.2008
MATTE

Number of shares issuable under the options granted

BERLBRERTRTNRAHE
Issued upon Adjustment
Granted exercise Lapsed made Outstanding
during during during during asat
theyear ~ theyear  theyear  theyear 31.03.2009 Exercise period
R £/ 731.03.2009
ERRl  BTEMRT FRKN (it WARTE TN

06.02.2008 -
05.02.2009
06.02.2009 -
05.02.2010
01.08.2007 -
31.07.2008
01.08.2008 -
31.07.2009
01.08.2007 -
31.07.2008
01.08.2008 -
31.07.2009
08.09.2007 -
07.09.2008
08.09.2008 -
07.09.2009
06.02.2008 -
05.02.2009
06.02.2009 -
05.02.2010
01.08.2007 -
30.04.2008
01.08.2007 -
31.07.2008
01.08.2008 -
31.07.2009
01.08.2009 -
31.07.2010
11.10.2007 -
10.10.2008
01.10.2008 -
02.06.2011
01.10.2009 -
02.06.2011
01.04.2010-
02.06.2011
01.10.2010 -
02.06.2011
03.06.2008 -
02.06.2009
03.06.2008 -
02.06.2010
03.06.2009 -
02.06.2010
03.06.2009 -
02.06.2011
03.06.2010-
02.06.2011
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Number of shares issuable under the options granted

BERHBRERTRTNRAHE
Issued upon Adjustment
Exercise Outstanding  Granted exercise Lapsed made Outstanding
Date price as at during during during during as at
Grantee of grant pershare 01.042008  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31.03.2009 Exercise period
1401.04.2008 R FR 1#31.03.2009
ARA RiAH ﬁﬂﬁﬁ{i{? WARTHE ERRY RITEMRST EREH (if i WAITE  TREH
HK
AT
Employees
k&
The Mainland ~ 06.02.2006 25714 06.02.2008 -
Mt (Note fifa2) 05.02.2009
06.02.2006 3.00 06.02.2009 -
(Note f2£2) 05.02.2010
24.03.2006 25714 06.02.2008 -
(Note #32) 05.02.2009
24.03.2006 3.00 06.02.2009 -
(Note fi#2) 05.02.2010
08.09.2006 3.00 08.09.2007 -
07.09.2008
08.09.2006 3.00 08.09.2008 -
(Note fi1i2) 07.09.2009
06.02.2007 25714 06.02.2008 -
(Note fifa2) 05.02.2009
06.02.2007 3.00 06.02.2009 -
(Note fifs2) 05.02.2010
01.08.2007 3.50 01.08.2007 -
31.07.2008
01.08.2007 34285 01.08.2008 -
(Note fi1i2) 31.07.2009
01.08.2007 38571 01.08.2009 -
(Note fifi2) 31.07.2010
11.10.2007 25714 11.04.2008 -
(Note fifi2) 10.10.2008
11.10.2007 3.00 11.10.2008 -
(Note fifa2) 10.10.2009
11.10.2007 34285 11.10.2009 -
(Note fifi2) 10.10.2010
03.06.2008 1.7142 01.10.2008 -
(Note #i#2) 02.06.2011
03.06.2008 1.7142 01.10.2009 -
(Note fifz2) 02.06.2011
03.06.2008 1.7142 01.04.2010 -
(Note ff2£2) 02.06.2011
03.06.2008 1.7142 01.10.2010-
(Note fifi2) 02.06.2011
03.06.2008 1.7142 03.06.2008 -
(Note #1#2) 02.06.2009
03.06.2008 21428 03.06.2008 -
(Note #1#2) 02.06.2010
03.06.2008 21428 03.06.2009 -
(Note fz2) 02.06.2010
03.06.2008 25714 03.06.2010 -
(Note fi2) 02.06.2011
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Grantee

ARA

Advisors

Number of shares issuable under the options granted

BERLBRERTRTHROHUA
Issued upon Adjustment
Exercise Outstanding ~ Granted  exercise Lapsed made Outstanding
Date price as at during during during during as at
of grant pershare 01.04.2008  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31.03.2009 Exercise period
1401.04.2008 R FR 131.03.2009
R BRTHE WARITHE FREL BIRmET ERRA fEHBRE WATE ATRH
HK$
BT
28.12.2004 1.0628 28.12.2004 -
(Note ffi2) 26.08.2012
28.12.2004 1.2857 28.12.2004 -
(Note #i#2) 26.08.2012
15.05.2007 3.50 15.05.2007 -
14.05.2008
15.05.2007 3.00 15.05.2007 -
(Note fz2) 14.05.2009
HiaF

Notes:

All the above outstanding PYI's share options were vested in the
relevant grantees upon the first date of their respective exercise
periods, except for vesting of the 16,253,999 outstanding

PYI's share options which were conditional on such grantees
satisfying the conditions attached to each grant, which include
the achievement of prescribed financial multiples, signing of
equity investment agreements and receipt of financial subsidy.

In accordance with the Share Option Scheme, the range of the
exercise price of the share options was adjusted from HK$1.24
and HK$4.50 to HK$1.0628 and HK$3.8571 respectively and
the total number of the then outstanding share options under
the Share Option Scheme was also adjusted correspondingly on
19 September 2008, as a result of the warrants issued by the
Company in September 2008.

No option granted under the Share Option Scheme was
cancelled during the year.

In respect of the 85,684,000 share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme during the year, the closing share price
of the Company immediately before the date of grant was
HK$1.53.

In respect of the 1,300,000 share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average closing price of shares immediately
before the date of exercise was HK$1.52.

A EFAMARITEZREBRESEH
FAZIEHNER BETABAR
A v BR16,253,99917 (4 AR 1T 2 (R FE B8 %
T BFARABTE@ER R S ERE
FTMi a0t Fel B RS REe
FBEINEEMBER  BFITIRARER
% R RER B B B

B 7R A ] A2008F9 A /TR HEH 2
L R2008F9 198 - R IR BB IR HE AT
B -BEREZTEERE S BIB1.24%
TLEA508 TR E1.062878 7L E3.8571
IT o M AEARER &8 T E R R1TEZ
REMR S B AR R E L R o

FA - BERERERER SR AR
PR

FN - RIEHE R 89X H 2 85,684,000
MERE REZERBEAZA—B
ARRBBAD YT (EA1.5387T °

R 1T1# 21,300,00017 B8 A4 - R B #

TEEBZH—A - RO NEFH K
MEBA1.5287T -
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Particulars of share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering RAGIMBLARMRERZESREER AR (MR

Group Limited (“PYE"), a subsidiary of the Company, are set ERXx]) BREFEZFBHNEGSMB
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. R MIFE45

Details of the share options exercised, lapsed and outstanding RERNBBRREZZEBRETETE KX
under the share option scheme of PYE during the year are as K ARITE 2 BIRERNZ BN T RIKE
follows:

Number of shares issuable under the options granted

RERHBRERTRTORGHA
Issued upon
Exercise  Outstanding  Re-classified exercise Lapsed  Outstanding
price asat during during during asat
Grantee Date of grant pershare  01.04.2008 the year the year theyear  31.03.2009 Exercise period
1401.04.2008 R R 1431.03.2009
ARA RHAH BRTEE WA ENSR  ROEMBT ERER HARITE (i
HKS
BT
Director
Bz
LauKo Yuen, Tom  08.06.2007 1.36 01.07.2007 - 30.06.2009
ARR
Employees 03.02.2006 0.70 03.02.2006 - 06.09.2015
k& 03.02.2006 0.85 01.01.2007 -06.09.2015
03.02.2006 1.00 01.01.2008 - 06.09.2015
09.02.2006 0.90 09.02.2008 -08.02.2009
13.07.2006 1.00 13.07.2006 - 12.07.2008
13.07.2006 1.00 13.07.2007 - 12.07.2009
13.07.2006 1.00 13.07.2008 - 12.07.2009
30.05.2007 134 01.07.2007 -30.06.2008
30.05.2007 1.34 01.07.2008 -30.06.2009
30.05.2007 134 09.02.2008 - 08.02.2009
08.06.2007 136 01.07.2007 - 30.06.2009
28.12.2007 140 01.09.2008 - 31.08.2009
Other participants ~ 03.02.2006 0.70 03.02.2006 - 06.09.2015
At g% 03.02.2006 085 01.01.2007 - 06.09.2015
03.02.2006 1.00 01.01.2008 - 06.09.2015
09.02.2006 0.90 09.02.2008 - 08.02.2009
30.05.2007 134 01.07.2007 -30.06.2008
30.05.2007 134 01.07.2008 - 30.06.2009
30.05.2007 134 09.02.2008 - 08.02.2009
28.12.2007 140 01.06.2008 - 31.05.2009
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Notes:

1. All the above outstanding share options of PYE were vested
in the relevant grantees upon the first date of their respective
exercise periods.

2. No share options of PYE were granted or cancelled during the
year.

3. Inrespect of the 4,014,000 PYE's share options exercised during
the year, the weighted average closing price of the PYE's shares
immediately before the dates of exercise was HK$1.219.

4.  Certain persons ceased to work under employment contracts;
and accordingly, their share options were re-classified from
the category of “Employees” to the category of “Other
participants”.

This scheme adopted by the Company on 23 February 2006
allows the Company to make bonus payments to eligible
persons (including employees, directors, consultants, advisers
and agents of the Group) by way of the Company’s shares
acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year, a total of 156,000 shares of PYl awarded in
February 2008 were vested in 9 employees under this scheme.
No shares of PYI were awarded under this scheme during the
year.

A share award scheme was also adopted by PYE on 6
September 2006. This incentive scheme allows PYE to make
bonus payments to eligible persons (including employees,
directors, consultants, advisers and agents of PYE and its
subsidiaries (the “PYE Group”)) by way of shares of PYE
acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year, no shares of PYE were awarded under this
scheme.
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This plan, adopted by the Company on 14 February 2006,
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company to acquire new or old shares of

the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject

shares pledged to the Company as security, subject always to
connected transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was provided
by the Group under this plan.

A share financing plan was also adopted by PYE on 6
September 2006. This incentive plan allows eligible persons
(including employees, directors, consultants, advisers and
agents of the PYE Group) to borrow funds from PYE or from
a company within the PYE Group on a non-recourse basis, for
the purpose of acquiring new or old shares of PYE with the
subject shares pledged to PYE as security, subject always to
connected transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was provided
under its plan by PYE.

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no time
during the year or at the end of the year was Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2009 amounted to approximately HK$1,113,920,000
(2008: HK$1,212,651,000).
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RENETFEPOER T RRERER
REZEXKBETARERABERERZ
EHRENRD - ZFEROHAERTRER
EERERR YANEGKEMRIDEH
BER S R EMBREGZRTE -

FR- REZXTERBEEAZINEERA
TREEMRE -

B Lt 3¢ 58 2 B fn SRE AT 81250 - WFE R EM B
) 2R 5 48 K 2 R 3l EL AR AAT BT /B8 & B BE 4 BT SZAE 4]
RHMEARREETAEBEAARAREME
MEANERRZ B K EHMESHE

720094 3A31H @ Al H SR TR R 2 A Q&
%49 7/1,113,920,000/% 7t (2008 : 1,212,651,000
BIT) °



The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of FARBERREBHILE  ARBZEEFNOT
this report were:

[EIBAME ope o (F /)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ost »» (Chairman) ok
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest PR At B2
Chan Shu Kin RB LR s
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, » FEL

Li Chang An

Bl= R (B F EFAaES)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director)

PR B 34
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
BIEADNF 2 A RMBIFES7()ER87Q)E - FRE

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s wiEt MR AEERTEREENNERITZ
bye-laws, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, Mr Chan Shu Kin and REBFAG EHEWMERE WHEERBERE
Mr Li Chang An retire by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for £

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
FMITEEFARBAARMAGBFERE  HiEEE
Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation ERRNEER=FLA -
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

BRAKRITZRRBEFAG BERERACES
WEEREERTVASER —FATAIEDNTE
None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 8 OXERBERIN WIBER TRIEZRBEL -
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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MR2009F3A31H  ARRAIEERERITHRAE

As at 31 March 2009, the interests/short positions of each of the RARBKEMEEEZR (ERR(BFRHAE
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares and oD ([(Ex RBEERAD]) E+RE0) 2 &G -
underlying shares of the Company or any associated corporation HEAR 0 R &SP RE VR AREGE S K
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures BE)EIETUFE 2 AR SR MRz BE
Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept (EMRANDF ETRAREFHRITELFRFNIZE
under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and SFRAD ([KRESFAD]D BAEMART REBEE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) RGMAERAR ([BEZPT]) Rz R R E N
pursuant to the Mode Code for Securities Transactions by Directors TS 8

of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, are set out below:

Number of shares/underlying shares held

KERS,/ HBERAHA
(Note fzt 1)
Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total  share capital
B2/ BEH BERTRA
UN-1:3 &t AR FhER NEER HftER &y PAZpi g
(Note 4% 2)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph  Beneficial owner 1,533,040 - - - 1,533,040 0.10%
[ERE EaliAA (Note #72# 3)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner 39,101,795 - - - 39,101,795 2.59%
ABR BLRlAA (Note f7iZ 4)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles  Beneficial owner & 13,975,123 - 471,931,325 - 485,906,448 32.21%
e Interest of controlled (Note # 5) (Note 4 6)
corporation
EREAAR
RiEEEER
Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest  Beneficial owner 1,516,666 - - - 1,516,666 0.10%
B BHlAA (Note 41 7)
Chan Shu Kin Beneficial owner 1,516,666 - - - 1,516,666 0.10%
R BAlEA (Note #73% 8)
Leung Po Wing, Beneficial owner 1,516,667 - - - 1,516,667 0.10%
Bowen Joseph ERlEEA (Note 41 §)
Li Chang An Beneficial owner 1,516,667 - - - 1,516,667 0.10%
28% ERlEEA (Note 41 §)
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Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company were long positions. None of the directors and chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2009.

2.
2. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 1,508,393,517
shares as at 31 March 2009.
3.
3. Such interests held by Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph comprised:
(i) 1,314,035 shares; and
(i) 219,005 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by
the Company as the final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2008.
4.
4. Such interests held by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom comprised:
(i) 4,745,825 shares;
(i) 33,565,000 underlying shares in respect of share options
granted to him on 28 December 2004, 8 September
2006, 18 September 2007 and 3 June 2008 pursuant to
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above; and.
(i) 790,970 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by
the Company as the final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2008.
5.

5. Such interests held by Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles comprised:
@iy 11,978,677 shares; and
(i) 1,996,446 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued

by the Company as the final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2008.

FRARAR RN RBERN 2 E=E A
F & o 2009438310 ARAEBEER
BEITHABBERAD & R &AEE
RipFER KA -

4200943 A31H A 22 711,508,393,517/%
EBRTRAREE-

ZERAREELFE SR

() 1,314,0358% 81 5 &

(i) HARAFEITEREZE2008F3AH
AL FEZ RIS 2 RRIEE
Ffr 3% % 2 219,005 AEBE AR 15 °

ZEHEEREEFBZERBE

() 4,745,825/ 815

@iy  RIBAREZBRERTEIR20045F
12H288 + 200659 A8H * 20074
9H18H &2008F6H3H & F 2t
A2 BERREFT S & 233,565,0000%
RS  BRFBEHN L&
BIERETE—& &

(i) HBARAFEITEREZE2008F3AH
AL FEZ RS 2 RREE
Ffr 3% % 2 790,970P8 A EE AR 15 ©

ZEHRERIETI A EERE

() 11,978,677 : &

(i) HBHARAEITEREE200853AH

3R LEFEZ RIS 2 R AEE
B B 21,996,446 0% HE R AL 15 ©
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Notes: — continued

"
v

Such interests were held by Hollyfield Group Limited
(“Hollyfield”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment
Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment” which was, in turn, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC")).
Galaxyway Investments Limited (“Galaxyway"), an indirect
wholly-owned company of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
owned approximately 30.08% of the issued share capital

of ITC. Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles also personally held
approximately 4.69% of the issued share capital of ITC. By virtue
of his aggregate interest of approximately 34.77% in ITC, Dr
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in the
shares/underlying shares held by Hollyfield.

Such interests held by the controlled corporation of Dr Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles comprised:

(i) 404,512,565 shares; and

(i) 67,418,760 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued
by the Company as the final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2008.

Such interests held by Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest comprised:

(i) 1,300,000 shares; and

(i) 216,666 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by
the Company as the final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2008.

All these interests held by such directors comprised underlying
shares in respect of share options granted to them on 28
December 2004, 8 September 2006 or 6 February 2007
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in the section headed " Share Option
Scheme” above.

P PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

Hiat : —4&

#Z% % #E % AITC Investment Holdings
Limited ([ ITC Investment | » BI & ¥ &
X¥EEERAA([BECEDZE2E
M & AR 2z & &M B A FlHollyfield
Group Limited ([ Hollyfield |) %% ° R &
®IE T2 EESE 2 A AlGalaxyway
Investments Limited ([ Galaxyway |) # &
AR EE HITIRAL30.08% © FREI®R
BLMAEABERARFEREDET
IR 494.69% - AR RERE L HHZ
HOESHELDB477%ES  WERBR
Hollyfield# A 2 i 1p /8B i 1p = # A
MRS o

ZEMEERE L IR ARG 2 %
B

() 404,512,565/ &1 : &

(i) HARAFEITEREZE2008F3AH
A LEFEZ RS 2 RREE
B4 B 2 67,418,760 HE R AL (5 ©

ZERBLARTERBEZERBIE
() 1,300,0008% B 1n &

(i) HBHARFEITEREE200853AH
MALEFEZ RIS 2 RREE
B8 1 2 216,666RX ABRARZ 15

HREEEMBACZEERBERE
RNARZ ARG 8102004512 A 28R -
2006F9A8H 5k2007F2 A6 B ¥ 2 &
EREREREMSR2BERG B
FHIEEERN EXEREIRE S —& -



Number of shares/underlying shares held

KERB/ RRRHHE

Name of director/ Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
chief executive Capacity interests interests interests interests Total share capital
B2/ EERTRA
BETHARHS & BARR FER & Rfts &y ZEDL

(Note A7 2)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Beneficial owner 500,000 - - - 500,000 0.08%
LI ERBEA (Note f:% 3)

Notes: it -

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares
of PYE were long positions. None of the directors and chief
executive of the Company held any short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of PYE as at 31 March 2009.

2. Based on PYE's issued share capital of 602,677,142 shares as at
31 March 2009.

3. Such interests held by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom comprised 500,000
underlying shares of PYE (which is an associated corporation,
within the meaning of the SFO, of the Company) in respect of
options granted to him on 8 June 2007 pursuant to the share
option scheme of PYE, further details of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

1. FRREZEROREBERD 2 EZRY
AT A - 200943 A318 - ARRIESE
RESTHEASHERREZERNG R
HEROFEBXR -

2. LA20094F3F31H 1R # i 602,677,142
BEBTRARLE .

3. HBIASREEFMBAEZEBEZ B
20076 AsH IR RERE (HB(FH
REEEO)FiEZ AR AR EHEE) 2
B AR 51 81 9% T 207 IR 5t £500,0000% 1R
EFZEEERN 2ERE  BEAFER
R EXEAERETE ] —& -

B ESCRTH B & SN - R2009F3A31H - &
EEFNARAGERITHRAEHEREAR A
S EHAMBEEZR (EER(EFRBER
BIYE+FE) 2 H - BERKRHD RESHF
WA EA A AR CGES RS GG
FEI2EFUBFER AR A B LM AR E
(BETADMERARR RERAER L
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As at 31 March 2009, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses) which

competes or is likely to compete, either directly and indirectly, with

the businesses of the Group.

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company

had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Name
#E

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
BBl

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy
il

ITC Investment

Hollyfield

Capacity
5t

Beneficial owner
ERHEA

Interest of controlled corporation
R AR
(Note A3z 3)

Interest of spouse
friBEs
(Note f:z 5)

Interest of controlled corporation
REEE#R
(Note ffit 3)

Interest of controlled corporation
AR
(Note it 3)

Beneficial owner
ERBEEA
(Note f#:# 3)
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MR2009F3A31H ARG AEBHEL - AQFA
EEEWECINEENHEERNEBEBER
REUAIRIB R E 2 £ A R -

ARBEEEEARBLEEMMERRRFRL
SFRNEREHEFTLZEZANTHEFRNME
EHAEAREE -

FA2009F3A318  THIEERER " Hib A+ R
RRRIRG RABBEAR D o B LA ARG
HREEED)FE3B36ETFUFE ZERMA (X
s EBAAND A KB FT) 2 S ROAR

Number

of shares/ % of

Long position/ underlying the issued

short position shares held share capital

BEkt/ HERTT

HE/ KR HERAEE BAZED

(Note fifiz 1)

Long position 13,975,123 0.93%
WA (Note fift 2)

Long position 471,931,325 31.28%
e (Note fi 4)

Long position 485,906,448 32.21%
S5) (Note fi# 6)

Long position 471,931,325 31.28%
1) (Note fif3t 4)

Long position 471,931,325 31.28%
S5) (Note f# 4)

Long position 471,931,325 31.28%
[S8) (Note fif3t 4)



Number

of shares/ % of
Long position/ underlying the issued
Name Capacity short position shares held share capital
BERSR/ HERfT
®E L) e/ %R HERHEE REZEAL
(Note Azt 1)
Daniel Saul Och Interest of controlled corporation Long position 199,830,557 13.25%
REEE R e (Note Azt 8)
(Note #fit 7)
Och-Ziff Capital Management  Interest of controlled corporation Long position 199,830,557 13.25%
Group LLC XA R 35} (Note Az 8)
("Och-ziff Capital") (Note A3t 7)
Och-Ziff Holding Corporation  Interest of controlled corporation Long position 199,830,557 13.25%
("Och-Ziff Holding") B o) (Note fifz# 8)
(Note f7:2 7)
0Z Management L.P. Investment manager Long position 199,830,557 13.25%
("0Z Management") REKE e (Note fi3 8)
(Note fizt 7)
0Z Asia Master Fund, Ltd. Beneficial owner Long position 107,551,697 7.13%
("OZ Asia") EREAA e (Note fifz 9)
(Note fiz# 7)
0Z Master Fund Ltd. Beneficial owner Long position 82,854,344 5.49%
("OZ Master") ERHEA iE
(Note Azt 7)
Third Avenue Management  Investment manager Long position 158,571,369 10.51%
LLC, on behalf of the Third &&= 35}
Avenue Small Cap Value
Fund
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Notes:

1.

"
v

Based on Company'’s issued share capital of 1,508,393,517
shares as at 31 March 2009.

Such interests comprised 11,978,677 shares and 1,996,446
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company
as the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Hollyfield, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment

(which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC), owned
471,931,325 shares/underlying shares in the Company.
Accordingly, ITC Investment and ITC were deemed to be
interested in the said 471,931,325 shares/underlying shares held
by Hollyfield. Galaxyway, an indirect wholly-owned company of
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, owned approximately 30.08%
of the issued share capital of ITC. Dr Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles also personally held approximately 4.69% of the issued
share capital of ITC. By virtue of his aggregate interest of
approximately 34.77% in ITC, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
was deemed to be interested in these shares/underlying shares
held by Hollyfield.

Such interests comprised 404,512,565 shares and 67,418,760
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company
as the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Ms Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles, was deemed to be interested in the said 471,931,325
shares/underlying shares held by Hollyfield and 13,975,123
shares/underlying shares held directly by Dr Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles.

Such interests comprised 416,491,242 shares and 69,415,206
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company
as the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008.

0Z Management, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Och-Ziff Holding
(which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Och-Ziff
Capital) through its various direct wholly-owned subsidiaries
and entities (including OZ Asia and OZ Master) held interests

in the Company’s shares/underlying shares. Mr Daniel Saul Och
owned approximately 79.10% interest in Och-Ziff Capital. As
such, Mr Daniel Saul Och, Och-Ziff Capital, Och-Ziff Holding and
0Z Management were deemed to be having the same interests
in the Company’s shares/underlying shares as OZ Asia, OZ
Master and other wholly-owned subsidiaries and entities of OZ
Management.
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LA20094F3 A31H A2 F1,508,393,51 7%
BETRASEE-

ZERR B IE11,978,677H D K A A&
AEIETIEBE E200843A318LFE
2 AREAIR B 2 RIHEFBFT S I 21,996,446
Az tE AR -

ITC Investment (BN X222 &K
B AR 22 &N E 2R FHollyfield# B
471,931,325 RN A @ik 5 @K D -
I ITC Investment & R > ¥ 118 &
M Hollyfield$¥ B 2 L ifi471,931,3250% A%
B/ BB EE R - B MRER
Bk 2 &% A 2 2 AlGalaxywaydll #
BREFEMEDEHITRAEL30.08% ° FRE
BIBETTMAEABEREEELEDE
TIRAKI469% - ANRE R ELHE
EROESHNBATT%ER  HIRIEA
MHollyfield# B 2 2 Z iR 17/ 18 & 1
REER R

% 5 B 15404,512,5650% B 19 & @
AN B EITIERB E2008F3A318 1k
FEZRBREZRBREZR S R 2
67,418,760 HREARZ (5 °

PRE AT 2 B BE MMz TR AR
Hollyfield#§ & k- ult 2471,931,3250% %
7/ HERORKRERE T EERSE
213,975,123 & 15 AHEBR GO RS

WS o

ZE S P 15416,491,242 % 15 & H
KRB EITIERE E2008F3A318 1E
FEZAEBREZRABEZTM SR Z
69,415,206 HREARR (7 °

Och-Ziff Holding (B1Och-Ziff Capital
ZEERBAR) 22 EHEBRROZ
Managementi@ B E TR 2 HE# 2 &Kt
BN R R AE (81502 Asiak0Z Master)
BFEARARG HEERGD 2
fMDaniel Saul Och’t 4 A # & Och-Ziff
Capital#)79.10% % & © & LtDaniel Saul
Och’t & + Och-Ziff Capital * Och- Ziff
Holding %.0Z Management# 18 {& £20Z
Asia ~ OZ Master } E f,0Z Management
MEEHEAR REKBERRRRY,
HERNT=BRSER -



Notes: — continued

8.  Such interests comprised 175,832,052 shares and 23,998,505
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company
as the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008.

9.  Such interests comprised 94,635,170 shares and 12,916,527

underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company
as the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Long position/

Name Capacity short position
i3] 0 #R/ %R
Christian Emil Toggenburger Beneficial owner Long position
EREEA HE
Note:

Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 1,508,393,517 shares
as at 31 March 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, the Company has
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Wizt —&

8 & E I BIE175,832,052M R 15 & H
RNRAEEITERE E2008F3A318 1E
FEZREREZRBREZA SR 2
23,998,505 AR (5 ©

9. ZE R BIE4,635 170K % & H
RNRAEEITIERE E2008F3A318 1E
FEZARBREZRBREZR S R 2
12,916,527 AE @R (D °

Number

of shares/ % of
underlying the issued
shares held share capital
BERSG, EERT
HERHEE RAZEDL
(Note #f:#)

84,244,397 5.58%

Wizt :

LA200943 A31H A& A §]1,508,393,517/% B #
TIRARBEAE -

B b X BT B 5 - 2009838318 - A A Al
A KIS B 5 AR BB B R R 1) 58
33616 T LA IF B AR T B R M A2 B 15 R A0
Bfp 2 R AR -

pld rEsmERLm 200075



The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2009, the

Group employed a total of 1,908 full time employees (2008: 2,054).

Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well as performance-
based and equity-based bonuses. In appreciation of our employees’
continuing support, a bonus payment to employees was made
during the year.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualification and competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to factors including the
prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable companies,
the duties and responsibilities of the director, employment
conditions elsewhere and the time committed by the director.

Further, the Company has implemented three share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff both in Hong
Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 61 to 62 of this annual
report.

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.
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During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 51 to 71 of
this annual report.

As at the date of this report, the directors acknowledge that
approximately 50% of the issued share capital of the Company are
held by the public.

During the year, the Group did not have material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

Details of the major subsequent events are set out in note 57 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2009, advances to entities did not individually
exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of the financial
assistance provided by the Group to its associated companies
and jointly controlled entities (collectively the “Affiliated
Companies” within the meaning under Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules) and the guarantees given by the Group for
facilities granted to the Affiliated Companies did not exceed
8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of
the Listing Rules.

RAFER A A R gH AT B AR &R
B HESABERERNEARRZ EHES

ARBZEERERRIRFEREATINAFERES
ENHEZEEERBREN -
RAREZH  BEEERAREHIS0%Z BT

RATIHARFIHEEE ©

RAFE  AEBETEEAUBELLEHERR

EAGERRERABHNESMBRRME
57 »

72009383180 MERBREE Z@ERIER
W ABECETRAD FE14.070KFTRTE
ELEZ8% -

M2009F3A31H  AEE K T HEBE QA
RAERZEHER (R(EMRADE1BZEZR
EoaEIEEAR]) 2HBENRAEE
RERTHEBARZBEMEL ZERAH
W AHBECETR A E14.07()EMA R EE
ELRZ8% -
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During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of

approximately HK$4,508,000 (2008: HK$235,000).

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company and to authorise the directors of
the Company to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 03t Jp

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
REREERAF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PYI
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to

223, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March

2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

BREEEERQIAIZBRR
(REFRZEZMELZFRAA])

AAZERED (LA T8 (3R )) B EAzFI AR 101
Z23EREEERFR LG ([ERQF]) REWE
RA(MBIEEE]) OEEMBRE  BER
2009FF3A31BNGEEERER  URBEZ
HEFENGAKER SKEEREHRRES
HeRER URFESFTERME R H MM E
FRTE o

BERAEZAARRBEESAMAGRONE
7 T s 2R R R & B A A A6 ﬁﬂiﬁ%&ﬁfﬁﬁ"
FiIBMZEFAPBRE - EETRER
Bk EERRHELEEMA iiﬂlﬂ#&ﬁ*/\ﬁﬂ%
AR AR AR EIES] - AR MBI FE
HRRFEREE R M SR E R REL - EEM
EREENSFEE : REREATELAENS
BEEER

BHPNEERBERMNBZHZEHEMBER
RIEHE R YRBBFIERRDEFOBKRE R
MEBRBRREHRE  MATREELGRR - &
IR A TR E Z AE SRR E A A T AEER
BRREIEMNEF - RMIEREBEEESFA
SREMHTEEEAETES - BEERIER
BHPETERAE URIRNTER UEE
BELEFGAUBRREES T FEEMNERER
Rt -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
17 July 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ek

For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZE20095F3A31BILFE
2009 2008
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET FHET
Turnover 3 7 4,835,905 5,502,543
Cost of sales HEMK AR (4,475,854) (5,075,383)
Gross profit EF 360,051 427,160
Other income Hpth A 9 33,521 80,865
Administrative expenses THRER (282,820) (291,246)
Distribution and selling expenses DEREER (59,252) (44,622)
Other expenses HEiBH 10 (109,276) (14,916)
Finance costs BhE Bk AR 11 (76,912) (53,252)
Gain on fair value changes of investment REMERNTEEES
properties pal & 18 672,639 669,460
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate — HE B4 N TR Wz - 3,459
Share of results of associates H(ERE AN T AR 38,601 56,330
Share of results of jointly controlled entities #1453t F#% S E % & 743 59
Profit before taxation % B B 3% A 13 577,295 833,297
Taxation RiE 14 (327,784) (315,186)
Profit for the year FEEN 249,511 518,111
Attributable to: LA AT FEMS
Equity holders of the Company ARATIEHERB A 138,794 359,982
Minority interests DERE R S 110,717 158,129
249,511 518,111
Distribution SR 15 12,833 45,053
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share A% 2 71 16
Basic* H AR 0.039 0.103
Diluted* g 0.039 0.102

* Adjusted as a result of the rights issue completed in July 2009 (note

57(a)

E 70200978 Fepk < Bk E T 38 8 (&t

57(a))
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At 31 March 2009
72009%3A31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Project under development
Properties under development
Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Loans receivable — due after one year
Deferred consideration receivable

CURRENT ASSETS
Stock of properties
Prepaid lease payments

Inventories

Loans receivable — due within one year

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from customers for contract

works

Trade and other debtors, deposits and

prepayments
Investments held for trading
Available-for-sale investments
Derivative financial instruments
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Short term bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

ERBEE
LY Y
REYE

HEBIEE
HERYE
8 R

L

Hip i A

Bt 4 0 M 2
SR 1 2
T ERE

— B H 7 PR
PR A (T

RBEE

MEFE
BNEERIE

A

—FRIHAZ EKER
& Bt R SRR

EWZ P& # TI2RIEA

B 5 R A A EUERSR -
M IE IR
KIEEEKRA

A ERE
TEELRmMIA
AR B K
EEMRITER
REERITIE R
RITHEFRRS
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Notes
Bt 5E

17
18
19
20
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
30

21
22

28
29

31

32
33
27
34

35
35
35

2008
HK$'000
THET

718,611
1,230,351
3,281,039

172,031

78,770
63,969
61,402
744,213
1,987
1,081
32,222
2,863
6,388,539

173,626
2,343
20,171
308,267
59,777

201,589

2,428,054
61,255
56,635
22,268

3,261
34,269
438,878
162,541
3,972,934



At 31 March 2009
72009F3A31H

2008
Notes HK$'000
iiks3 FHET
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Amounts due to customers for contract ERNEFAEAHIIERIE
works 31 804,442
Trade and other creditors and accrued B 5 R HAM R RN ERT
expenses X 36 1,903,832
Amounts due to associates JE <P B 4% N B EE 37 50,291
Amounts due to minority shareholders JE 0 AR B ROE 38 1,041
Amounts due to related companies FERTRRE A B 2UE 39 133,051
Taxation payable FE R IE 103,987
Bank and other borrowings — due within —FRFNHZRITREAM
one year RN 40 839,410
3,836,054
NET CURRENT ASSETS FBEEFE 136,880
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ #&EERKEEE 6,525,419
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Bank and other borrowings — due after —FEB B RITREAM
one year (EEA 40 966,198
Convertible notes payable FE AT R AR = 1 41 120,551
Amounts due to minority shareholders JE A< L EU% R KB 38 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEBHIBEE 42 1,329,360
2,416,109
4,109,310
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRH#E
Share capital N 43 150,709
Reserves =R 3,226,376
Equity attributable to equity holders of KRATZBRAERE AEMN
the Company Kz 3,377,085
Share-based payment reserve of a subsidiary i B 2 72 LARK D Sz < 5008
& 5,280
Minority interests D HIR RS 726,945
TOTAL EQUITY s 4,109,310
The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 223 were AR E10122238 2 B 53R & 2 1200997717
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HEEERRERKENE YHTIEEREK
17 July 2009 and are signed on its behalf by: EEREEF
Joseph Chow B BAHE osz Tom Lau EI5 R
Chairman /& Managing Director #8%¢

Py ResmERLm 200075



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Y Y TE

For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE20095F3A31BILFE
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
ADABEREARL
Share- Share-hased
Investment Convertible based payment
Share Share  Spedal  Capital revaluation Other ~ Translation notes  payment  Retained reserveofa  Minority
capital  premium  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits  Subotal subsidiary  interests Total
il PEPA
R T8 URARR WA b8

Br  BmEE  RARE  RARE  EMRE  GHBE  ERRE  RERE  ERE  REE N RERE  BRER &if
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKYO0D  HKFOOO  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000

Tén Térn TEn TEn TR TEr TR TR TR TR ThR TR TEr T
At 1 Aprl 2007 10075418 1911 415627 124695 (333) (590) 479 74,60 - 292 235259 2182 %1 476016 3248849
Boange dffeence  REEANEH
aiing fom transatin ~ E42E3

of foreign operations 8 - - - - - - 15908 - - - 15908 - N9 1900
Gain onfairvalue changes TEHERE Y

of alebeforsde  AFEERHZ

investments iy - - - - 490 - - - - - 40 - (141) 39
Share of tranglaton resenve. BEBZLTER

of associates B - - - - - - B - - - B - - B
Netincomerecogised —~ ERRAEAETZ

directly in equity WAFE - - - - 490 - 20758 - - - WM - 39851 261,099
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - - - - 399 3998 - 18129 5181

Recogniton of impaiment 2 4 ERE
ofanavallable-forsdle 7 ifE
nvestment - - - - 809 - - - - - 809 - - 809

Release upon disposalof 1 EBAATER

interestinan associate  BES - - - - - - o4 - - - 64 - BIL 103
Release upon disposal of ~ ER(EEERE

aninvestmentheld for ~ BER

trading - - - - - 218 (200) - - - 298) - - 298
Totalrecognised ncome~ £E SR

(epense) for theyear (%) 28 - - - - 1299 28 mm - - 35998 579,740 - 198359 718099
Tanserof eseneofan -~ ERBLATRE

associate - - - - - 4 - - - (40) - - - -
Share of otherreserve of - EFBELFZ

ass0ciates i - - - - - 8547 - - - - 8547 - - 8547
Sharesrepurchased and B R ER(

cancelld (18 (5954 - - - - - - - - (6,137) - - (6,137)
Recoiton of equity- BRI

weiedsharebased  HEZER

payment expense - - - - - - - - 15478 - 15478 4697 - W5
Issie of shares under share. 1FE Bk EHE

option scheme Bkl 100 30088 - - - - - - B - R0% - -0
Relesseuponlapseof ~~ REEERRE

Vested shareoptions  KEEL, - - - - - - - - (08 4085 - - - -
kseofshaesunder  HEATIREE

shareoptionscheme.~~ [RfE3FEI%fT

by a subsidiary ki - - - - - - - - - - - (8 334 28%
lsue of shares underscrip - B IR 833

dividend schemes BRkb 659 (659) - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cedtasngonsaip  HRREHELL

diidends 3 - - - - - - - - - 18,509 18509 - - 18,509
Shaeisueepensss  EARHER - (388) - - - - - - - - (389) - - (38)
Distrbution ik - - - - - - - - - 5053 (45093 - - 50%)
Dividend distibuted by~ HEBATHEZ

a subsidiary bE) - - - - - - - - - - - - @y @ny
Recogniton of equity ~~ BFTEREHE 2

component of EaBH

convertible notes - - - - - - - 848 - - 848 - - 848
Contrbution from minority &R %

sharcholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 62 65,722
Saip didends dstibouted  FiBAFEEZ

by a subsidiary BRRE - - - - - - - - - - - - 5733 5733

At31 March 2008 H208E3A3IA 150709 4TI 124695 (34336) 109 10638 295462 8481 8260 2662742 3377085 580 726945 4109310
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
AT/ RRRANEE
Share-based
Investment Convertile  Share-based payment
Share Share  Spedal  Capital  revaluation Other ~ Translation notes  payment  Warants  Retained reseeofa  Minorty
apital  pemim reseve  reseve  resewe  reseves  reseve resenve  resene  reseve  profits  Subdotal  subsidiay  interests Total
il P
& TR NBARN  IEER N 8
Bf BEEE GARE  BABE  EMER MR EIRE  REEE TR BE  RE Mt OREER  BRBE &t
BKSOOD  HKSO00 RSO0  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSODD  HKFODD  HKSODD RSO0 HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00
TR Tan TR TR T TR TR TR TR T TR TR TR TR T
At Apr 208 R008E4A18 150709 48714 1465 (B3N 109 10638 29546 8481 18260 - 266204 3308 500 726945 4109310
Behange difeencearing fom - RAEE £RAEE
transltion offoeign operetons 7 E £ - - - - - - Ben - - - i - 11568 5023

losonfarvalue ranges ol TEEERE D
alaeforsde ivestments 58768 - - - - ) - - - - - - o - o )
Shae ofransiation esenve
of asociates - - - - - - 15997 - - - - 15997 - 35 16,342
Net (oxoense)ncome recognised 727V ER S

drectly in equity WAFE - - - - (1) - 04,668 - - - - 64393 - 191 76,304
Prfit for te eer EEE - - - - - - - - . N Y TRt S M
Toeomied eoense)— EREEA(FR) A

income for the e E - - - - () - 04,668 - - - IR W31 - 1068 585
Shre of captel contrbuton fom - BB NAIRE

an assocate’s shareholder bt - - - - - 10587 - - - - - 10587 - - 10587
Ontion o acquieadditondl W2 8

nferestin an associte LB

(note 47(3) - - - - - 36805 - - - - - 36,805 - - 36805
Recognionof equysetled — BRBRR3EL

shaedased pymentogerse EF - - - - - - - - 1498 - - 1498 3% - 154
ool haesnder e BEERE A

opton scheme ) 130 1,651 - - - - - - - - - 1781 - - 1781
Reweoon apecfvested KB FBERERIE

aptons ét - - - - - - - - (152 - 15206 - - - -
st o shares inder rareopion. HE AT B Mg

cleme by a subsidry REEGUU) - - - - - - - - - - - - (584) 43 3689
Release pon apse of vestd BERERE

aptons of asubscary i - - - - - - - - - - 2676 2676 4291) 1615 -
e ssue expenses - (510) - - - - - - - - - (310) - - (310)
Dividends recognised &5

dstrbution (note 15) - - - - - - - - - 12833 (128%3) - - - -
Dividend disrbuted G g

by a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - - (A A
Conrbuton fomminorty —~~ HERELE

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - 52,908 52908
Srpduidendsdisvbued  HERTEEZIR

bya subsidary it - - - - - - - - - - - - - 804 804
Acquiston of subsdares

(note 47)) ) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 4604 4604
Acquiston of addional imerets BB A TR

in subsidiares - - - - - - - - - - - - - (195) (195)
At 31 March 2009 H008E3A318 150839 439855 1465 (B3 34 5800 360130 848 28019 12833 2806605 3646,59% B 900580 4548017

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between KREE 2RI EENE A B R H A S 5K E
the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of ERAZRAEERKRDEE  EELKEREM
the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the BITZRAEERZZ5 -

Group and the nominal amount of the share capital issued as

consideration for the acquisition. BARFEHERNEE BN B QR EIMER S

EZHEBEERBBZATER-
The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair value
and the carrying amount in the underlying assets and liabilities that
attributable to the additional interests in subsidiaries acquired by
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
EZE2009F3A31ALFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Loss on disposal of other intangible assets

Release of reserves upon disposal of
investment held for trading

Gain on disposal of interest in an associate

Share of results of associates

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Release of prepaid lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on fair value changes of investments
held for trading

Loss on fair value changes of conversion
option embedded in loan receivable

Gain on fair value changes of derivative
financial instruments

Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties

Share-based payment expense

Interest income

(Reversal of) impairment loss on
receivables

Write-off of transaction cost arising from
an acquisition of additional interest
in an associate

Impairment loss on an available-for-sale
investment

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

Change in amounts due from (to) customers

for contract works, net of attributable
interest expenses and depreciation
Increase in stock of properties
Increase in loans receivable
Decrease in inventories

REER
B B AL A
?fTﬁ\JIEE TTHHE
HEME BREEREZ
(M as) B 18
HERMEELEE 2 BR
HEREFERREREN
e
B R B R P B R
AR NETE S
BEARES BB EE
HEBNHEETR
B AR
WE - BMEREBZINE

FIFEEREZATEE
2HrER

W TR e 2 a2
ANV EEREDZEBE

fTEemIAZRAFEER
282 W
REMERNTEELY
Wik

LR AREzBR
FLEMA

N R RE (B ) &1

i B IR A A RS
MELZRZHRA

AR ERE 2R EEE

mﬂ;

ANt B EESH B 2 L%
XBRERE

FEUR () P AMTERA
S8 (FNkR ERT M B FISZ
RirE)

MEFEEN

& Y B AR
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2008
HK$'000
THET

833,297
53,252

118

(2,943)
(3,459)
(56,330)
(59)
1,958
1,334

65,348
9,508
1,333

(11,086)
(669,460)
19,867

(46,577)

2,686

1,389

200,176

(209,435)
(85,806)
471)
3,254



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES - continued
Decrease (increase) in trade and other
debtors, deposits and prepayments
(Increase) decrease in amounts due
from associates
(Increase) decrease in investments held
for trading
Increase in trade and other creditors and
accrued expenses
Increase in amounts due to associates
Increase in amounts due to related
companies
Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded
Overseas tax paid
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in project under development
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank deposits
Increase in properties under development
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to interests in associates
Additions to prepaid lease payments
Acquisition of additional interests in
a subsidiary
Additions to other intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Interest received
Acquisition of assets through acquisition
of subsidiaries
Dividend received from associates
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible
assets
Proceeds from disposal of interest
in an associate
Payment of deferred consideration payable
Additions to available-for-sale investments
Additions to derivative financial instruments
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Notes
Bt & E
REER (B
B 5 MEMEKER
a1 RIEARIER D (E )
JRE Wi Bt 8 2 R RRIA (45 0)
m
FHIEEERE GBI w D

B REMBENERR R
JE 5t A S2 45 00

JRE {<F B 4 X R) SR IB I AN
JFE 1< B 38 A B FRIA I N

KREKEEBHB RS
B EBRIEH
EBFBBRR
B8 INRIE
REEEEB R TR
S E T
£ R R IE B 181
E R IR T2 (42 0) >
TR AP YEEIE N
WS - B K BRI N
B RAE SR
A L B 2RO 48
B A R

46
8 N
WK A 7
RS
FEBUENBARKBEE

46

47
B U= R ERE
HEWE - MR EREMS
R
HE BB EEMS
R
HER 2 R BRAME
IR
A RS IRE B
AEHEREEN
TS R T A AN
ARREXB RS FE

2008
HK$°000
THET

(368,362)
127,845
85,020

471,226
32,862

13,051
269,360
(593)

21
(5,822)
262,966

(912,607)
8,332

(86,966)

(44,838)

(8,869)

(2,366)
(1,792)
45,045

(46,119)
88,250

660

8,860
(111,1171)
(56,635)
(11,088)
(1,131,244)
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31BALFEE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank and other borrowings raised

Contribution from minority shareholders

Proceeds from issue of shares of
a subsidiary

Proceeds from issue of shares

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Interest paid

Repayment of amounts due to minority
shareholders

Dividends paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries

Share issue expenses

Share repurchase

Dividends paid to equity holders of
the Company

Loan from a related company

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BROUGHT FORWARD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED
FORWARD

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

MEEH
MEBERIT M EMERK
KBLBERREE
M8~ B BT S
HIA
BT TS FRIA
EERITREMER
BENHE

EE RN D BBRR IR

ENMBLR DB Z
&

BITIRG B

Btn @5

ENARABRRZKE

KEBEARZER
REMETDH2REFR
RERBRREEHEEBEREM
(BD) 258
SEREEIE

RERBRAEEHEER
A
RERRRAEESHEER
wE
REREREEERE
EROAMN
RHERT R
RITHETF MRS

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

2008
HK$°000
THET

1,583,135
65,722

2,836
26,055
(837,236)
(109,130)
(3,030)
(16,386)
(388)
(6.137)
(26,544)
70,000
748,897
(119,381)
4,466
716,334
601,419
438,878

162,541
601,419



For the year ended 31 March 2009
EZE2009F3A31ALFE

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and its
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are set out in note 56.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7  Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HK(FRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(FRIC) = Int 14 HKAS 19 = The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
financial years have been prepared and presented. Accordingly,
no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

ARAEBREEIMKRIARBEERR
Al EESEEBBARZAERAR(E
BERZPT]) £ o AREZ MM FEEAR
HIBEXMHBORAFRIRAEHR] —
EIfE R EE -

RAEBBRRIABTEY BT REARF
ZINEEEH -

ARRR—FAREZERAR - EXEMEL
CIRE: NI eIk L 3 e 3T a
FI 5 B 56 -

RAFE  RAEERAUATHEEGMA
2 ((BESREMAE]) BMERKID ER
ZETEARRE ((HIEEMBRSE
all) e

BERGTENERR SREEESHHE
ERM B ER
F75 (RET)

FE(HRREZRE) BRERTLH
—RBE12%

EE (BRRBZES) BARSHEUS 197

—REF145% —REBFBEZ
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31BALFEE

Pr1

"
—

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1
HK(IFRIC) - Int 1
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs!

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Presentation of Financial Statements®

Borrowing Costs®

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation’

Eligible Hedged Items*

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate?®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combinations*

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments®

Operating Segments®

Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate?®
Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation’
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners*
Transfers of Assets from Customers®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009, 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

7

2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October

g Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

The application of the amendment to HKAS 40 “Investment
Property” which is contained in HKFRSs (Amendments)
“Improvements to HKFRSs” may affect the accounting for
property under construction or development for future use
as an investment property of the Group. The amendment

to HKAS 40 brings such property within the scope of HKAS
40. Such property is currently accounted for at cost less
impairment in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”.

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” requires an entity

to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
(one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option of
immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be removed.
The Group will apply HKAS 23 (Revised) from 1 April 2009
and the directors believe that it should not have a significant
impact to the Group as the Group has already applied the
accounting policy of capitalising the borrowing costs under the
current standard, which is consistent with HKAS 23 (Revised).

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
may affect the Group’s accounting for business combination
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 April 2010.
HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” will affect the accounting treatment for changes
in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary.

Other than as disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3RB31ALEFEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3RB31ALLFEE

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity

instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the

acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of
the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, the
difference between the fair values and the carrying values

of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the
additional interest in a subsidiary acquired is charged to capital
reserve. Goodwill or discount arising on the purchase of the
additional interest is calculated as the difference between the
additional cost of the interest acquired and the increase in

the Group's interest, based on the fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

Goodwill arising on acquisitions of a business or an associate
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business or
associate at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at
cost less any identified impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition of business is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on

the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in

the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of a business

is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
Capitalised goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate
which is accounted for using the equity method is included in
the cost of the investment of the associate and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,

the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

WIBEBRBEARMELZEHE  BIRE
PRA BB R S BN R 8 B B (G BRI S
AREHBERTZABANEE  AERKIA
BEZATFEERDIER - ZE BN
ARAERE BN BRI -

HBEARNES  WBEERELZHE
WORBZEHMARKE 2 HRBEFZ
BZEHABREMNAREMAR - WHD
ERABEBZARELUSFHREDNRETR
ZEM BB RERETREN - 3
HEHR - RFEREEEZHEMS  C&
BABEZAIRECNZY BEFE & RA
EITRERR - SRR EML 2 M ESEE
RZEA 2 BREE - RIREBEE SR DE
ZEHRERNHEZREE  ERAGEUR
B EEREERUMNEEZEMZH
EE BEZEMREBREENGAK
AR o B Z EFRERER E &R
AT -

WBEBELZEACBESTRERE
EREXRIIR - WEBZRRELZEANE
EE (AREERIR) IIABERRZKE
A - WRHE R ERE

HEHERBEREN  BEXMezEHELZ
RESBEDHABELE 2B -



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a
business/additional interest in a subsidiary represents the
excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of an
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the acquisition. Discount on acquisition, after
reassessment of fair values, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenses. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values using the fair value model.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the year
in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

The investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
their disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

Properties under development and project under development
are carried in the consolidated financial statements at cost
less any identified impairment loss. Cost of properties/project
under development includes, where appropriate, relevant
development costs, release of prepaid lease payments/sea

use rights over the relevant lease terms and borrowing cost
capitalised. No depreciation has been provided for properties/
project under development.

Properties under development are transferred to stock of
properties for sale or property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments, as appropriate, upon determination
of the purpose of the development, at the carrying value of
the properties. Properties under development are transferred
to investment properties upon completion of development of
the investment properties.

Stock of properties is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to sale proceeds received after the balance sheet date less
selling expenses, or, if not yet sold after the balance sheet
date, by management estimates based on prevailing market
condition. The relevant costs include acquisition costs,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land
or sea are accounted for as operating leases and are stated
initially at cost. The prepaid lease payments are recognised on
a straight-line basis over the respective lease terms.

For those release of prepaid lease payments that relate to
leasehold interest in land and are directly attributable to the
construction of properties/project under development and
stock of properties, the amounts released are capitalised

as part of the cost of those assets. Release of prepaid

lease payments that relate to sea use rights are capitalised
as development costs in project under development.
Capitalisation of such release of prepaid lease payments/sea
use rights ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other release of prepaid lease payments are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried

in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity
(which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity

of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired
separately other than from business combinations are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, other intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
identified impairment loss. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
lives, and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of such intangible assets is estimated to be less

than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the other
intangible assets is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of such intangible assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for that other intangible assets in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the balance sheet date. Variations in contract work and
claims are included to the extent that they have been agreed
with customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred. Variations in contract work
and claims are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer. Provision is made for foreseeable
losses as soon as they are anticipated by management.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the excess is
shown as amount due from a customer for contract work.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the excess
is shown as amount due to a customer for contract work.
Amounts received before the related work is performed are
included in the consolidated balance sheet, as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but
not yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
balance sheet under trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments.

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") for
sales and consumables, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost method. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

Pr1

Effective interest method — continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at FVTPL comprise of financial assets held for
trading.

The Group’s financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent

to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, loans receivable, deferred
consideration receivable, trade and other debtors and deposits
and amounts due from associates) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

Effective interest method — continued

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that

are either designated or not classified as financial assets

at FVTPL, loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors and
loans receivable, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of debtors, loans receivable and amounts due from
associates where the carrying amount is reduced through

the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
carried at fair value will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of

its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised
on an effective interest basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

Effective interest method — continued

Convertible notes payable

Convertible notes payable issued by the Company that contain
both liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using
the prevailing market interest rate of similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the issue
of the convertible notes payable and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in
convertible notes reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes payable is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, represented
by the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible notes
reserve until the option is exercised in which case the balance
stated in convertible notes reserve will be transferred to share
premium. Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly

to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes payable
using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

Effective interest method — continued

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other creditors,
amounts due to related companies/associates/minority
shareholders and bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments are classified as an equity
instrument.

The fair value of warrants on the date of issue is recognised
in equity (warrants reserve). The warrants reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium upon exercise
of the warrants. Where the warrants remain unexercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in warrants
reserve will be released to the retained profits.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair
value on the contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting and are deemed as
financial assets/liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss as they arise.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts

are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not carried at fair value
with change in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that

had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit

or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which

case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent

the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating

leases except for those that are classified and accounted for as

investment properties under the fair value model.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from a construction contract is recognised on the

percentage of completion method, measured by reference to

the value of work certified during the year.

Revenue from distribution of LPG is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Property development management service income is
recognised when services are provided.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised upon
the execution of a binding sales agreement.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Service income from provision of consultancy services

which also involve usage by the customer of the Group’s
infrastructure and logistics facilities is recognised at the time
when the services are rendered. When the service contract
involves a long period to deliver the services, the revenue is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract service, as measured by the proportion that the value
of the service rendered to the customer up to date to the
estimated total value of the service under the contract with
the customer.

The income from contract involving only the use by customer
of the Group’s infrastructure facilities is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the usage granted to the
customer.

Income from loans receivable and interest income from a
financial asset are accrued on a time basis, by reference

to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest

rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.
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All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs they are
intended to compensate.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged

as an expense or capitalised in contracts in progress, where
appropriate, when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly

to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed arising on an acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Share options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in

the consolidated income statement in respect of the value

of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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Share options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 April 2005

For share options granted to directors and employees of the
Group after 1 April 2005, the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period/recognised as an expense in full at the
grant date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payment reserve.
At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

7200211878 %1% F 18 & 3 72005
FAP1RSUERBE 2 BB E
BMAR2005F4A 1B BB TAEEEE L E
BYHERE  FERKZATEBDZEZRE
RERELABZ AT EEET  CH=H
BEIRAEGEIIERS R ATR L BR
EREFERENZHERAARS WA ER
(BRBARR 1 S S RO 8 ) 1EABFE 2 38 0 -

REEHEB  ARBESEREHBHRERE
B BEERE NG - R ZEE
(InA) & 718 25 AR FE R 0 4 DA B 40 S 3 3%
BREEERERE - BAEETER - A
TA LA BB 32 A5 70 TR {18 v B R 2 R TR 1B
AR EE - BEBRERRE B SRR
SR E R BB ARTTEE - SERTRR PARR DY S fF
OB R 2 SRR S AR B R A

E) fFET R R R AR

R E MR M HT 2 BE - AT
BMERAMBZAFEEGEE  HEEERF
EBETEAEMGE  FREE R IR RIZ
FIERLBREZATEEGLSE - E4AEH
WENE fn sk 77 e (AR5 B - P IRERE mA Bk
B2 X FEEERBRAX - KA CARNL
XA FRIE ) TERIEN  EEZEER
H IR A BRERREENTEULR -



For the year ended 31 March 2009
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit on a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of construction works.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and costs
for the construction contract as the contract progresses,
the actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than the
estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit
recognised.

At 31 March 2009, no deferred tax asset in relation to
unused tax losses of HK$926 million (2008: HK$853
million) has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet due to unpredictability of future profit
streams on those subsidiaries. In cases where the actual
future profits generated by those subsidiaries are more
than expected, a material deferred tax credit would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which the tax losses are utilised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities shall reflect
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the balance sheet date, to
recover the carrying amount of its assets.

As at 31 March 2009, the deferred tax liability in

respect of the fair value adjustment on project

under development and stock of properties

amounted to approximately HK$835,180,000 (2008:
HK$883,851,000), of which an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$606,010,000 (2008: HK$641,327,000)
represented the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT"). In making the estimation,
the directors have considered that the land and sea use
rights development may be recovered through future
sale in the long term. Upon the completion of the
development and, depending on the market condition by
that time, the directors will re-assess the use of property
interests and make appropriate adjustments to reflect the
tax consequences of the related assets.

As described in note 18, the directors of the Company
have made a best estimate on deferred tax liability in
considering the manner in which the Group expects

to recover the carrying amount of the investment
properties. In making the estimation, the directors made
reference to the use of the property interests nearby
and assumptions are made based on the likely usage of
the properties in that location. The directors had made
a best estimate that half of the property interests may
be realised through sale in the long term. The relevant
amount of potential LAT had been recognised as a
deferred tax liability based on the above estimate. The
amount of such related deferred tax liability as at 31
March 2009 is approximately HK$490,954,000 (2008:
HK$244,902,000).
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 40, convertible notes
payable disclosed in note 41 and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZ200953H31 A LLEE
2008
HK$'000
FAT
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BAFEEFZABERER
— Investments held for trading —-RHIEEECRE 61,255
— Derivative financial instruments —{THESRTA 22,268
83,523
Loans and receivables B pE s RaE
— Loans receivable —EWER 340,489
— Trade and other debtors, —B 5 R H R ERR
and deposits Kal&® 2,169,947
— Amounts due from associates — [N R R ROE 59,777
— Deferred consideration receivable —EUCEIER(E 10,795
- Bank deposits —RITFER 473,147
— Bank balances and cash —RITEFRRE 162,541
3,216,696
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESREE
— Available-for-sale investments — A ERE 57,716
Total A&t 3,357,935
Financial liabilities at amortised costs Z#BHERAFIRz2SRAE
Trade and other creditors B 5 K E A FEA R X 1,738,603
Amounts due to associates FE B 8 2 RIFRIA 50,291
Amounts due to related companies JFE SRR A RIFIE 133,051
Amounts due to minority shareholders FEA DB RN IE 1,041
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMEK 1,805,608
Convertible notes payable AR R & 120,551
3,849,145
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
debtors, deferred consideration receivable, loans
receivable, available-for-sale investments, investments
held for trading, derivative financial instruments, trade
and other creditors, amounts due from (to) associates/
minority shareholders, bank and other borrowings and
convertible notes payable. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is
attributable to its financial instruments that
are subject to both variable rate and fixed rate.
Those financial instruments of variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Details of the Group’s interest bearing
financial instruments at variable rate have been
disclosed in notes 28, 32, 35, 38, 39 and 40.
Financial instruments at fixed interest rates
expose the Group to fair value interest risk.
Details of the Group’s interest bearing financial
instruments at fixed rate have been disclosed
in notes 28, 35, 40 and 41.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,

the Group adopts a policy of maintaining an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
borrowings which is achieved primarily through
entering into different contractual terms of
borrowings. The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference of anticipated
changes in market interest rate.
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"
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(a) Market risk — continued

(i)

Interest rate risk — continued

The Group’s exposures to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China
(“PBC") arising from the Group’s Renminbi
(“RMB") borrowings and advance at variable
rates and Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") and Hong Kong Best Lending Rate
(“HKBLR") arising from the Group’s HK Dollars
loans receivable and borrowings at variable
rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable rate instruments at the
balance sheet date. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the balance sheet date was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the effect to the profit of the Group
is insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
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(@) Market risk — continued
(i) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value
of a monetary item will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain
receivables of the Group are denominated

in foreign currencies such as Macau Pataca
("MOP"), RMB and United States Dollars (“US
Dollars”) and which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the

Group also operates in the Mainland China
with certain transactions denominated in
either RMB or US Dollars. RMB is not freely
convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. Certain subsidiaries of the
Company have foreign currency transactions,
including purchase of materials, expenses and
borrowings. The Group manages its exposures
to foreign currency transactions by monitoring
the level of foreign currency receipts and
payments. The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in HK Dollars and RMB. It is the policy of the
Group to draw borrowings in the functional
currencies of the entities as management
considers the repayments can be sourced from
income to be generated in those currencies.

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group believes the exposure of transactions
denominated in US Dollars which are entered
by group companies with a functional currency
of HK Dollars to be insignificant.
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(@) Market risk — continued
(i) Currency risk — continued

The exchange rates between HK Dollars and
MOP would not be materially fluctuate, hence,
the Group's currency risk in relation to MOP is
expected to be minimal.

The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of
RMB against HK Dollars. The Group regularly
reviews the balances of assets and liabilities
and the currencies in which the transactions
are denominated so as to minimise the Group'’s
exposure to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets

and monetary liabilities, with exposure to
foreign currency risk which are considered as
significant by management, at the respective
balance sheet dates are as follows:

US Dollars ETT
RMB AR
HK Dollars ETT
MOP RPT
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(a) Market risk — continued

(ii)

(iif)

Currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
RMB against HK Dollars and HK Dollars against
RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change

in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit where
RMB strengthen 5% against HK Dollars. For

a 5% weakening of RMB against HK Dollars,
there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit for the year.

Increase in profit pilb =Rl
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk from its available-for-sale and all of the
held for trading investments. Management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. The Group has monitored the other
price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

The Group's derivative financial instruments
and investments held for trading are measured
at fair value at each balance sheet date. No
analysis is presented as the change in market
condition has no significant impact to the
Group.

(a) mERER—E

(iir)

(ir)

E¥mg—&

SURE DT
TRFAIAEBARARYE
HETRBLTEAARKE
TAL N TR 5% 2 B
E-ERAMEIZERA
8 [E RN R - TR
FA5% 7% 8L E L K o §R
EAfERERATHREY
LASME BBz HEEIEE -
B FRER 25%% 3 #
THE TRZEHET
AR BT LTS5 %R %
MEMe ARBEEETT
BR5 % - # F s A 2 B
FREMAR  ETAER -

2008
HK$°000
THET
11,612

EL 1t (B 15 /2 B

7S [ AL AT T A
EREEEREMAES
ErZERRR- - EEE
NEARERREMESR
ZEREHAKEZENLER
B REBEEREME
RER TEERTER
EREPATE S Z E R o

AEBZTEERTAR
FEEBEREREKER
ZAFEEMGE -ART
WL B A £ (B 30 R R
FE WAL EEI DN -
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(a) Market risk — continued

(iii)  Other price risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
effect to the profit and investment revaluation
reserve of the Group is insignificant.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge obligations by the counterparties is:

—  the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet; and

—  the amount of contingent liabilities as disclosed
in note 50.

In order to minimise the credit risk of the debtors,
management has delegated a team responsible

for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
understand the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made
to customers with good credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers and credit term granted to
customers on different business units are reviewed
regularly. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual customer
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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(b) FERR—E

(b) Credit risk — continued

The Group has concentration of credit risks as
follows:

For the management contracting segment, due to
the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers
and significant concentration of credit risk by
geographic location in Hong Kong. In view of
their credit standings, good payment record in the
past and long term relationships with the Group,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is not material. At the balance
sheet date, the outstanding balances from the

five largest customers amounted to approximately
HK$445,214,000 (2008: HK$865,154,000) in
aggregate, of which the single largest customer
represents approximately 10% (2008: 18%) of the
total debtors at the balance sheet date.

The Group has advances together with interest
thereon to a non-trade debtor which are included in
trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments,
amounting to approximately HK$241,756,000 as

at 31 March 2009 (2008: HK$222,722,000) (see
note 32(c) for details) which expose the Group

to the concentration of credit risk on this single
counterparty. In view that the balance is secured by
property interests in the PRC and that the market
value is higher than the carrying amount of the
outstanding balance, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s exposure to credit risk on
this balance is reduced.

AEBEEERRB SR BERN
T

REEBEESBME  HRES
RELHERAMEZRRER 3|
AEEEEAGFESETRBRE
EEFPREFRES Z BN
B -ARBREEERE BEMN
FEHRIFRAKREEGREH
R BARREZRALAEEZ
EERBRTEEA - £H AR
RERAARBPZABEEZHRSE
H#) 5445,214,0007% 7T (2008
865,154,000 7T) * HH &8 — &K
ARBEFHLEE B RKIR R BE
210% (2008 : 18%) °

AEEZHIEESEBA(BER
ERESREMBWERER iTe
RIERFRIE) 5 B A& 72009
F3A318 ##241,756,000/% T
(2008 : 222,722,000/ 7T) (F£15
R FE32(c) - EARKEEEH &
FREBE—RGEHFZEER
B AR ZEERTUMRPEZ
MEERABER  METEHLR
BEREEES WARAREER
" AEEZEERBRERE -
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(b) Credit risk — continued
During the year ended 31 March 2009, the
Group had advanced unsecured loans to related
companies, which are also companies listed in
Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2009, the outstanding
amount is approximately HK$289,542,000 (2008:
HK$290,267,000) (see note 28 for details), which
expose the Group to the concentration of credit risk
on these counterparties. In view of good payment
record and relationship with the Group, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal.

With respect to concentration of credit risk arising
from amounts due from associates, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparty is limited as the associates have strong
financial position and the Group does not expect to
incur a significant loss for uncollected amounts due
from these associates.

Details of another concentration of credit risk are
set out in note 32(d).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other

significant concentration of credit risk, which
exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

FYIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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(c) Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2009, the

Group has available unutilised bank loan facilities

of approximately HK$506 million (2008: HK$1,013
million). Details of the amounts utilised at the
balance sheet date are set out in note 40. Besides,
in July 2009, the Group has completed the issue of
rights shares with net proceeds of approximately
HK$350 million with details set out in note 57.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate

the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. There are
unutilised banking facilities available to finance the
Group's working capital requirements. The Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. The Group will also consider the issue of
equity instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows.

(9]

REBESEE
REFERBRITEARABERNTE
& ¢ RFR o B2009F3H31H -
AREEHAAERMKREAZRT
B & #9506,000,0007% 7T (2008 :
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KR - EREEERRITERZE
R ERETERRBZHRE -
AEBETEEBETRATA
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(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
il 332
AYRE
%
2009 2009
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 $®&%E
Trade and other creditors EHREMERER
Amounts due to related companies/  EFEEA R /BE AT/
associates/minority shareholders PUREFE
- non interest bearing -FHE
- interest bearing —it&
Bank and other borrowings RITREBER
— fixed rate -TR
- variable rate -i28
Convertible notes payable ERTARER
2008 2008
Non-derivative financial liabilities Ff74&REE
Trade and other creditors EHREMERER -
Amounts due to related companies/  EffEEAE/HERA/
associates/minority shareholders PUREFE
- non interest bearing —Tit 8 -
- interest bearing —it8 725
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER
— fixed rate -TR 7.8
- variable rate -i28 691
Convertible notes payable ERTAREE -
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(9]

More than
Ondemand 90 days and

or within within
9%0days  365days
ZEAS #8908
90BA {EBR365HM
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR
1,472,994 140,614
64,383 -
120,000 -
136,254 95,029
251,040 453,929
2,044,671 689,572

REBE SRR
REBED RFFE R

Total

More than undiscounted
365days cash flows
AERRS

#iB365H  REAE
HK$000 HK$'000
TAL TAL
124995 1,738,603

- 64,383

- 120,000

- 231,283
1,139,046 1,844,015
138,737 138,737
1402,778 4,137,021

Carrying
amount

A
HK$'000
TR

1,738,603

64,383
120,000

225,542
1,580,066
120,551
3,849,145
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The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are

determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow

analysis using prices or rates from observable

current market transaction as input; and

e the fair value of derivative instruments is arrived

at on the basis of valuations carried out by

an independent firm of professional valuer.

The professional valuer possesses appropriate

qualifications and recent experiences in the

valuation of similar instruments. Details of the basis

are set out in note 34.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at

amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

Turnover is analysed as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts

Revenue from sale of LPG product

Income from usage of infrastructure facilities

Income from loans receivable

Service income from infrastructure and
logistics facilities

Sale of properties

Property development management service

Property rental and related income

Income from storage and logistics services

SRAERSBAMATFEERN
FHRERE :

o ABEREGHRREHLARER
PUNEXFZEMEE  EQ
FEERETSHREETE

e EHiemMEENMTRBEE(TE
BUETIR) 2R FEEDER
REBRAARETE R HERE
FRERENMITREREME
R

e MAETAZAFEBEDNRBY
BEEMGEQRMETZEED
T o EEMEMABEEE
CRIEMAEFEREIAZK

o BEFFIRHMNM 34 -

EERA HalBBRRPREHNK
Rz eMEEREREBRAZER
BEREREZATEERS -

BEREZOMWT

AW

$HE R AR RN
ERERREEA

& U B SRR

EE MR Z RIS

HEME

B REIE R
MEHRS RABRA
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2008
HK$'000
THET
4,853,345
378,572
58,383
49,312

102,698
59,617
500

116
5,502,543
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For management purposes, the Group’s operations

are currently organised into seven operating divisions,
namely management contracting, property development
management, port and infrastructure development and
logistics, LPG distribution, treasury investment, property
investment and property trading. These divisions form
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Management contracting Building construction and

civil engineering

Property development management - Development management, project

management, facilities and asset

management
Port and infrastructure development - Development of port facilities
and logistics
LPG distribution - Distribution of LPG product
Treasury investment - Provision of credit services
Property investment - Leasing of property rental
Property trading - Development and sale of formed land

and real estate properties

In the previous year, the Group’s operations were organised
into six segments, namely management contracting,
property development management, port and infrastructure
development and logistics, LPG distribution, treasury
investment and property investment.

In the current financial year, property trading is reported as
a separate segment as it is reflected internally as a separate
segment. In prior years, the results and assets and liabilities
for property trading were included in unallocated results and
assets and liabilities. Comparative segment information has
been restated accordingly.
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EZE2009F3A31BLLFE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS -
continued

Business segments — continued
Business segment information for the year ended 31 March
2009 is presented below:

Port and
Property infrastructure

Management development development

LPG

contracting management and logistics distribution
EORER  HLAMR

EBREDF—E

B E2009F3A3MA L FEZ X &R

E5WTF :

Treasury  Property
investment  investment

Property
trading

Eliminations Consolidated

REEE NERREE  RRENE A EBRE  WERE  WxEE Hi &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR Tan TR T FA7T THRL THRL THRL THRL
TURNOVER gEE
External sales HiME 4,293,857 20,894 117,489 345,488 32,983 3,761 21433 - 4835905
Intersegment sales S BEHE 108,213 741 1,883 - - 463 - (117970) -
4,402,070 28,305 119372 345,488 32,983 4,224 21433 (117,970) 4,835,905
RESULTS 4|
Segment results GRS 89,717 (9,697) 17,784 25,957 32,724 671,952 (10,253) - 818,184
Unallocated expenses  KBAT2FI% (135,926)
Interest income FEHA 19,032
Finance costs BEANK (76,912)
Loss on fair value REEERE
changes of LTEERY
investments held LEE
for trading (67,421)
Gain on fair value fTEEBIA
changes of derivative ~ ATFEESH
financial instruments 24z - - - - - 502 - - 502
Impairment loss on AEHERES
an available-forsale  HESHE
investment (19,508)
Share of results of BERENTEE
associates 1,363 28 37214 - - @) - - 38,601
Share of results of BUEARBNE
jointly controlled EL
entities 43 - - - - - - - 3
Profit before taxation B 1R 577,295
Taxation i) (327,784)
Profit for the year EFER 249,511
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8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS — 8.
continued

EBRitEDE—&

XBoH—&
7 ab 2z [ 2 85 TR i (B AR (3R A 3 & AT
S2EZTE) RETHEE RRAE 2 GFURER -

Business segments — continued

Inter-segment sales are charged at market price or, where no
market price was available, at terms determined and agreed
by both parties.

At 31 March 2009 20093 A31H

Port and
Property infrastructure
Management development development PG  Treasury  Property  Property
contracting management and logistics ~distribution investment investment trading  Elimination Consolidated
BORER  WLERR
REEE YELREE URENR A EBRE  NERE  WEEE Hé &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TEn T TEn TEn TEn TEn TERL TR
ASSETS 8E
Segment assets PHEE 1,684,746 74313 1,202,821 241,012 382,925 2,058,909 780,819 (98,243) 6,327,362
Project under BRTER
development 3,694,293
Available-for-sale AHERE
investments 37,931
Investments heldfor ~ #/EEERE
trading 13,188
Interests in associates ~ BEATER 26,399 3948 768386 - - 446 - - 799,679
Interests in jointly AFEHIERES
controlled entities 2,730 - - - - - - - 2,730
Unallocated assets RRER 1,440,759
Total assets AR 12,315,942
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilties PHER 1,495,182 4,846 971,210 21,231 2,264 7,802 384,032 (98,243) 2,788,384
Unallocated lizbilities %A E&%E 4,979,541
Total liabilities bef 1,767,925
OTHER INFORMATION  Hft&#
Capital additions PPEEERER
attributable to segment 19,492 89 11,645 3,983 - 1,225 922 - 37,316
Unallocated capital AORERER
additions 522,996
560,312
Depreciation and ABREZTER
amortisation 34
attributable to segment 1,105 825 57,747 10211 3 148 187 - 76,226
Unallocated APRNERER
depreciation and
amortisation 3,649
79,875
Release of prepaid BERARENE
lease payments 575 - 1,015 79 - - - - 2,386
Share-based payment Mﬁx ARAFEL
expense - - 5,866 283 (1,507) - 048 - 5,290
Unallocated amount ﬁi EE%%? 10,005
15,295
(Reversal of) impaiment e iz078 (BE) A
loss on receivables BE - 745 - - - - - - 745
Unallocated amount ~~ KHE4E (1,008)
(263)
Gain on disposal of HENE  EAR
property, plantand  REZkE
equipment (190) (18) (125) - - - - - (333)
Unallocated amount %74 E (49)
(382)
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Business segment information for the year ended 31 March
2008 is presented below:

Port and

Property  infrastructure

Management  development  development
contracting  management  and logistics
AOREE

HEER NEERER  REWR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THL T THL

TURNOVER 4]

External sales HIMAE 4,853,345 59,617 161,197

Inter-segment sales PHEEE - 4,269 2,309
4,853,345 63,886 163,506

RESULTS 1|

Segment results nigE 110,999 18,023 66,405

Unallocated expenses  RBAT2F%
Unallocated income RS EZMA

Interest income HEHA

Finance costs BENE

Loss on fair value REEERE
changes of ATEEEY
investments held b
for trading

Gain on fair value TEEBTA

changes of derivatie  ATEEZE

financial instruments 2 - - -
Impairment loss on AEHERES

an avallable-for-sale  HEFE

investment
Gain on disposal of HE-FRERR

interest in an associate B4 2 W& 3459 - -
Share of results of 1 L YNGE S

associates 6,638 89 33,543
Share of results of BERARTRE

jointly controlled 3

entities 59 - -

Profit before taxation B AT
Taxation k]
Profit for the year EREA

LPG
distribution
Rl ABA

pox

HK$'000
TiEn
318572

318,572

(8,194)

HZE2008F3A3 VAL FEZ XKD BER

25mF

Treasury Property
investment  investment

EBRS VIESY
HK$'000  HK$'000
iR Tt
49312 500
49312 500
4218 670,701
- 11,086
- 16,060

Property
trading

i

HK$'00
TAL

Eliminations  Consolidated

HK$'000
FiEn

(6578)
(6578

= A
54

HK$'000
TAR

5,502,543

5,502,543
898,927
(141,483)

22,491

4,577
(53,252)

(9,508)

11,0860

(1,389)

3459

56,330

59

833,297

(315,186)
518,111
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Pr1

"
—

At 31 March 2008

ASSETS
Segment assets

Project under development
Available-for-sale investments
Investments held for trading

Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled

entities
Unallocated assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions attributable

to segment

Unallocated capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation
attributable to segment

Unallocated depreciation
and amortisation

Release of prepaid lease
payments

Share-based payment expense

Unallocated amount

Impairment loss on receivables

Loss (gain) on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Unallocated amount

13

EEOE
THHERE
RIEEERE
BelndEs
ARBHBEES

7

fe=il]

B

4

ks

|
AOREE

af
NEEE
APERE

-

Hipgs
NERELETER

ADEATER
ARBELAER
a4
AEERES
ARENEENE

RIS R R
AELE

BYERERER
HENR BHR
RiECBE ()

AkeE

Management
contracting

AEEE
HK$'000
TEL

1,981,852

31,299

1987

1,821,540

4,85

6,447

575

2425

234

28

Property
development
management

NEERER
HK$'000
THL

70,418

3,800

3510

1,602

762
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Port and
infrastructure
development

and logistics
FORER
HREMR
HK$'000
TEL

1,021,323

708,664

303433

73,676

41432

940
3590

7200843 H31H

LPG Treasury Property
distribution ~investment  investment
RILEBE

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK§'000
THIL T TAL
254,486 347971 1,378,726
- - 450
15,061 2,308 64,389
21228 - 175,338
8,195 3 20
443 - -

- 1917 537

- 2452 -

4 - -

Property
trading

HK$'000
TERL

179,234

32,770

1721

326

Consolidated

= A
54

HK$'000
TEL

5,234,010
3,281,039
57,716
61,255
744013

1987
981,253
10,361,473

243011
4,009,092
6,252,163

284,427
1,129,397
1413824

63,185

3497
66,082

1,958
8,574
11,293
19,867
2,686

49
69
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REBZEBURES RFEARPE (B
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau and KOBRPIBRIN) o
the PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau.

TREMWETISE D REFHAEMRE
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TmE M/ R IORM) IR AN E B & R
turnover by geographical market based on location of 2O
customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

2008
HK$'000
FAET
Hong Kong &5 4,112,872
Macau SEPY 785,850
The PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau hE  BREE KR 603,821
5,502,543
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment NTRIREEZEMES S  HoREE
assets and capital additions, analysed by the geographical area BRTEE R B ARIERZ 9T
in which the assets are located:
Carrying amount
of segment assets Capital additions
AEWEEREE BERIER
2008 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong A 1,636,133 4,988
Macau P 438,584 707
The PRC other than B BREE RORFT
Hong Kong and Macau 3,159,293 278,732
5,234,010 284,427
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

2008
HK$'000
FAT
Interest income FEIA 46,311
Government grant TR # B UL -
Gain on fair value changes of derivative PTEEMIARFERE
financial instruments #E) 2 W 11,086
Net exchange gain B 56, )5 5E I 2 21,358
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - B REEZ
equipment Wz -
Imputed interest income on deferred FEYCRIE B 2 HEH TS
consideration receivable ON 266
Others Hib 1,844
80,865
The Group received a cash government grant of approximately ANE B R E 2009438318 1EF [ UREUR
HK$13,605,000 (2008: Nil) as compensation for LPG sold T 2R 4 #8 Bh g A #913,605,0007% JT(2008 :
by the Group at regulated prices during the year ended 31 ') ERASEUZEHEREERILA
March 2009. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other R B E o UCHR 7 BUR #8 BE S0 A SR E AR R
contingencies attached to the receipt of this government e A A A EIE IR RERETE A
grant. There is no assurance that the Group will continue to SEGEEWIGZHE -
receive such grant in the future.
2008
HK$'000
FET
Loss on fair value changes of investments FHIEEBEREZ N TEE
held for trading 2E) o EE 9,508
Write-off of transaction cost arising from b TEShe g N v
an acquisition of additional interest MES Z X HKAR
in an associate -
Expenses for recovery of withholding tax ERRTIE R B 2 AT TR
in connection with a former investment 2 We[Bl 7 52 -
(Reversal of) impairment loss on receivables FEUGRIE (%) JR(EE 18 2,686
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AHHERE ZREERE
investment 1,389
Loss recognised on cessation of overseas BIDBINER 2 EHRER
operation -
Loss on fair value changes of conversion JE W B TR 5 2 R Ak pE
option embedded in loan receivable NEEEZE 2 EER 1,333
14,916
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

Borrowing costs on:

Bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Bank borrowings not wholly repayable
within five years

Loan from a minority shareholder

Effective interest on convertible notes
wholly repayable within five years

Other borrowings wholly repayable

within five years

Less: Amount capitalised in respect of

contracts in progress

Amount capitalised in respect of
project under development

Amount capitalised in respect of
properties under development

Amount capitalised in respect of
stock of properties

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs
incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds were

fEERA

ARTFRNEHEEZ
RITER
BEARTFAZHEELZ
RITER

KB PBIRZER
ARAFRNEHEEZ
QRS A E Gy
ARAFANEHEEZ
HER

B BEERANTIRER

Z B

BIFERTHEBELZ
£

BIFERTYE
ERZBER

BEMERE
BEARZHEE

specifically invested in the project and properties during the

year.

2008
HK$°000
THETT

78,245

21,931

7,512

8,954
116,642

(415)

(57,887)

BIEEAZBERARTREREFER
ENZAERMEREEZEREERAK -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

Pr1

"
—

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2008: seven) directors are as follows:

Name of directors Fees
Exps e
HK$'000
THT
2009
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom SR

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles  BiEi%
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ~ FBA#E
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 4%

Chan Shu Kin REZ
Leung Po Wing, RER

Bowen Joseph
Li Chang An FER
2008
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom HEI 360
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles  BiEl % 320
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ~ BE3ig 760
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 4% 380
Chan Shu Kin REE 420
Leung Po Wing, RER

Bowen Joseph 340
Li Chang An FEX 300

2,880

Salaries and
other benefits
FMRH LR

HK$'000
THT

4,300

4,300

The above discretionary bonus is performance related

incentive payment determined by reference to the results

of the Group.

None of the directors has waived any emoluments during

the year (2008: Nil).

P PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

Discretionary
bonus
MERLAL
HK$'000
TR

3,887

3,887

B 1+ 5k JE £ %(2008
AZBewmT :
Retirement
benefit scheme  Share-based
contributions payment

BUCENTEBRR ARBXARE

HK$'000
T

HK$'000
TEL

6,790

6,790

EREER

Total
&3t
HK$'000
TAT

15,656
320
760
380
420

340
300
18,176

FRBERATDZEREBRFEEE
MEEE < ARER RS -

FABEBEINESRECAH 2

(2008 : &) o



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the

year included one director (2008: one director) of the

Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in

note 12(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2008:

four) highest paid individuals, who are employees of the

Group, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Discretionary bonus

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Share-based payment expense

e MEMER

By RETEAL

BB IR

VAR (9 2 A 3R IR 2 B 1

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

2,000,001 JT — 2,500,0007% 7T
2,500,001 7T — 3,000,0007% 7T
3,000,001 7T - 3,500,0007% 7T
3,500,001% 7T — 4,000,0007% 7T
4,500,001/ 7T - 5,000,000/ 7T
5,000,001/ 7T - 5,500,000/% 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group

to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

REBRAEERANUGSHFAERRE
RARRF —HBEEQ008: —HEFE) -
HENS 150 XX E12)F7H °

HRBALEEE 2 /M+#(2008 : M047)
REHABZEMESMT

2008
HK$'000
THET
9,851
1,413
132
2,708
14,104

REMRAMT -

Number of employees
EEAH
2008

FA AEBEYERAVREHAS
(BREER) XN AMERMALSE
BN INAREER 2 RE)  RIER
BERAEIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging:

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in
distribution and selling expenses)

Auditor's remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense

Cost of construction works recognised as
an expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(note (a) below)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Premises
Plant and machinery

Release of prepaid lease payments

Staff costs (note (b) below)

and after crediting:

Dividend income from investments held for
trading
Rental income under operating leases in
respect of:
Investment properties, net of outgoings of
HK$735,000 (2008: HK$89,000)

Total interest income (included in turnover
and other income)

WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

B B A A 2 HIB -

EIZEE#E GIADHER
HEERM)

ZERT B

BRAXHZFERR

FIERI S 2 BETIEKA

ME BREREZTE
(F P E(@))
HEME BMEREZ
g
REMENESR
BF
ek MR
AEENEETR
BT X (T XBIEb)

WEEA :
BEEEREZRSWA
wERH B WA -
BEME BNk
735,000/ 7T
(2008: 89,000/ 7T.)

RSN FGINEERE
KEMBUA)

2008
HK$'000
THET

1,334
7,017
360,312
4,679,141
65,348
118
22,581
2,567

1,958
173,526

508

411

95,889



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

Notes:

(@) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:

Amount provided for the year
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of
contracts in progress
Amount capitalised in respect of
project under development
Amount capitalised in respect of
properties under development
Amount capitalised in respect of
stock of properties

(b) Staff costs:

Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a))
Other staff costs:
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions, net of forfeited
contributions of HK$414,000
(2008: HK$1,072,000)
Share-based payment expense

Less: Amount capitalised in respect of

contracts in progress

Amount capitalised in respect of
project under development

Amount capitalised in respect of
properties under development

Amount capitalised in respect of
stock of properties

Bat

M WM RREZITE

FERBR

B BIEERANTIRER
ZHHE
BIFERTIHEBER
ZHHE
BIFRRTPMEER
2B
BIEMEGEEARZHE

BIYH:

BERE (ME12()
HBITXH
N & H A @
RKEFIFT IR - BBk
SR U 37414,0007 7T
(2008: 1,072,000 7T)

M HRIBEZER

B BEERANIREAR
ZHH
BIFERTIHEBER
ZHHE
BIFERTPMEER
ZHHE
BIEMEGEERZHE

2008
HK$'000
TET
69,277
(2,208)
(1,281)
(186)

(254)
65,348

18,176

396,148

14,833
13,077
442,234
(255,306)
(7,469)

(3,940)

(1,993)
173,526

Py ResmERLm 200075



For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE200953831ALEE
2008
HK$'000
FAT
The charge comprises: IS HEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EENISH
Current year REZ -
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETRE -
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions: Hih ADERER 2 B8
Current year REE 40,175
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFERE(BE)TR 1,103
41,278
Deferred taxation (note 42) RIERIIE (M 5t42)
LAT T I ET 140,652
Others Hith 133,256
273,908
Taxation attributable to the Company and RArREME AR
its subsidiaries FEAE TR 315,186

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions, mainly the PRC, is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
The applicable enterprise income tax rate for the PRC is 25%.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT (REA R AME LI ETHETT

1&451) effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT (REEA R HME - IR AT E T4 FI E HEA
BlJ) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of land use rights, buildings and their attached
facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value.

WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

& B A g 200896261 1B iB (20084
WARBIBER) HAABFEHEEH
2008/20095T i EF [EHEF17.5% /& £16.5% °
Bt - EEFSH HRBEFE 2 EEHER
Fiom FIHE R %K 16.5% (2008: 17.5%)5t & -

Hih el i Em 2 HENREE@E A AER
(FERHFTR)ERAIREFTE - PREAD
HFBMER25% °

RIEH1994F 1 A1BRERZ(REARK
MBI EFEITIRGI) - LA KRR 1995%F
TR27B &2 (R EARAFE L H3EE
METIRCIERMA) - FTEREHERE
B AR BT RMEREZ WA
Y BIRIEEREIAR30% 260% 5 2 REF
TGS T IR ER o



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

REF 2 BIAS H EER A Wa R A5 B

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

Bl 2 SRR

2008
HK$'000
FHT
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 Ve A 833,297
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% BREBMNEHHE16.5%
(2008: 17.5%) (2008: 17.5%)5TH 2 #i78 145,827
Tax effect of share of results of associates/ BiEmER T/ﬁlﬂ?ﬁi il
jointly controlled entities WREEIRGEE (9,868)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FE 74 7% 75 T N BT HURR 2
tax purpose BB 17,011
Tax effect of income not taxable for TV T EHARTUA
tax purpose ZBBEE (20,681)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERBIBBE 2 BB
o 33,407
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RAEHER A HR b =58
difference not recognised BB E 63
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BB ARRER Z R
previously not recognised BBz RGT 2 (11,789)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible B) A %5 BT AR FERR 2 AT 0
temporary difference previously EREEIMETE
not recognised (227)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Hib AR E X
operating in other jurisdictions ZWELETZ$EA‘R2‘Z
LG RE 54,851
Effect of recognising LAT in respect of the HIREMELAFEBEZE(L
fair value changes in investment properties BRI HMIEER R 140,652
Tax effect of LAT TR ER 2 R (35,163)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETE 1,103
Taxation charge for the year REEHERZ 315,186

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 42.

EERIA 2 15 R 42 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3RB31ALEFEE

2008
HK$'000
FAT
Dividends recognised as distributions to RERNERBRAR T
equity holders of the Company during ERBAEADIRZIRE
the year:
Final dividend for the year ended #H E20085F3A31HILFE
31 March 2008 — HK0.85 cent 2 REARR B — & 1%0.85
(2008: HK1.5 cents for the year ended (2008: & £200743H31H
31 March 2007) per share LIEFE1.57%40) 22,467
Interim dividend for the year ended B ZE2009F3A31HIEFE
31 March 2009 - nil (2008: HK1.5 cents 2 H ERAR B — % (2008:
for the year ended 31 March 2008) B Z2008F3A31H ILFE
per share BFR.58L) 22,586
45,053

The final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 was
distributed in the form of warrants issued on the basis of

one warrant for every six existing shares held by shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 18 September 2008. Each warrant will entitle
the holder to subscribe for one new share at an initial
subscription price of HK$1.00 per share in cash, subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time between the date of
issue of the warrants on 26 September 2008 and the day
immediately preceding the anniversary of the date of issue on
25 September 2009, both days inclusive. The fair value of each
warrant issued was determined based on a valuation as at the
date of declaration of the dividend, which is also the date of
approval of the issue of the warrants on 5 September 2008,
performed by RHL Appraisal Ltd. (“RHL"), an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2009.
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#H Z£2008F3A31H IEFE 2 REIR B AR
A% 3R (7A200859F 188 & 7 A R R R 4
it 2 B 3R) T SR AR (0 AT 2% — 1) RARHE
BZHRADIK - B—HRAREFETFHAA
LAIR € 129 2 REBE SRR 1.00%8 7T (7]
FRESE AL REVRFRMD - RREER
2008926 R HITHERERITHAFE
H AT — B B12009F9A250 (BEEEMA)
HARIBE IR T LASTE o i & 10 B 21T R E
BZATEEZRBENERRKREE R (R
2008F9 ASH L /ERRIEZETER) BB
VAEEREEGEMXAITTIEERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3RB31ALLFEE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for RERFEREARESRBINDREBEATH
the year is based on the following data: BEtE
2008
HK$'000
FAET
Earnings attributable to equity holders of the FTEERERNREERT
Company for the purposes of basic and ZARREREEFAA
diluted earnings per share JEAh 2 359,982
2008
Number
of shares
(restated)
A&t 8B
(EFFER)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AHEERERRNZ T
for the purpose of basic earnings per share INEFEHE 3,496,817,592
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BT EEE T AR 2 UE -
Share options fE A 34,816,453

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AESKREERN 2 EBK

for the purpose of diluted earnings per share A9 B

The potential ordinary shares attributable to the convertible
notes and warrants have anti-dilutive effect for the year ended
31 March 2009.

The potential ordinary shares attributable to the convertible
notes have anti-dilutive effect for the year ended 31 March
2008.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both
years have been adjusted for the rights issue of the Company
completed in July 2009.

3,531,634,045
AEE2009F3A3MB LFE - AT R ER
MRAREFRG2ECEBRAREESY
REE2008F3A31H IEFE » JRKREE
B BEETBRAREELE -
FFTEMEFESREAREERFN 2 LBR

IEFHE - 2 AMR2009F78 TR Z AR
AR T A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZE200953A31ALEE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y12~ W R 5B
Furniture,
LPG logistics fixtures and
Plant and and distribution  Motor vehicles computer
Buildings machinery  Port facilities facilities  and vessels equipment Total
R BREMR Ba-%ER
&3 BRRRE BRI RA#RIE RERME EHRE &if
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERL TERL FERL FEL FERL FAL FARL
cosT 3
At 1 April 2007 200744418 66,086 62,281 - 403,760 51,997 7871 662,895
Exchange realignment EifE 6,434 - - 39,391 3,0% 524 49,404
Transfer from project under ~ BREZEHEE
development 21302 - 149721 - - - 171,023
Additions hE 8,907 3186 - 12,509 10,438 9,798 44838
Disposal HE - (963) - (1) 2,236) (1,169) 4369)
At 31 March 2008 #200853A31A 102,729 64,504 149,721 455,659 63,254 87,924 923,791
Exchange realignment EHBE 2,326 - 3,395 10,333 934 278 17,266
Transfer from project under ~ BRAZEHEE
development - - 4,045 - - - 4,045
Additions hE 1,065 18,945 - 2,506 6,290 8,173 31,519
Acquisition of assets through B AREHEAF
acquisition of subsidiaries  WEZE - - - - 331 163 494
Disposal e (3) (2,696) - (128) (4,783) (2,224) (9,834)
At 31 March 2009 2009434318 106,117 80,753 157,161 468,370 66,026 94,914 973,341
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 April 2007 R200754A1A 1,401 40,331 - 10,828 19,070 63,062 134,692
Exchange realignment EiAE i - 1358 2,345 494 193 4,802
Provided for the year REEHE 4963 5,945 24,019 22,762 5,624 5,964 69,277
Eliminated on disposal HEBLH - (910) - (1) (1,845) (835) (3591)
At 31 March 2008 200853431 6,776 45,366 25377 35934 23343 68,384 205,180
Exchange realignment EfBE 154 - 576 814 150 57 1,751
Provided for the year REEHE 6,541 6,146 30,591 25,374 7,248 6,924 82,824
Eliminated on disposal HEk S (1) (2,689) - (8) (401) (1572) (8.347)
At 31 March 2009 #2009%3A31H 13,470 48,823 56,544 62,114 26,664 13,793 281,408
CARRYING AMOUNT Rk
At 31 March 2009 2009434318 92,647 31,930 100,617 406,256 39,362 21,12 691,933
At 31 March 2008 200853431 95953 19138 124,344 419,725 39911 19,540 718,611
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE200953831ALLEE
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt WM EREAERENE  £X
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per UM
annum:
B HEAEER AR
Buildings Over the remaining period of the relevant A TFEUREERE)
leases or fifty years, whichever is shorter e 10%
Plant and machinery 10% 7 0 R 2% -20%
Port facilities 2% —20% BIERBEIDR 5% -10%
LPG logistics and 5% - 10% K5 8 e
distribution facilities E R MM 5% - 20%
Motor vehicles and 5% —20% HARKE 8% —20%
vessels BINRE 20% -33":%
Furniture and fixtures 8% - 20%
Computer equipment 20% - 33':% BFREES AT :
The carrying amounts of buildings are analysed as follows:
2008
HK$'000
FET
Buildings erected on long-term leasehold FRERBAEE I TEET
land in the PRC 88
Buildings erected on medium-term leasehold FEAFEBEE T ATEET
land in the PRC 95,865
95,953
HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 April 2007 M2007F4A818 -
Transferred from project under development BEa#RPIER 378,551
Exchange realignment P 5 S 63,791
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries #E:BUWHEKNE QA RWEEE 118,549
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated RiE W R ER 2 A TFEMEGM
income statement 669,460
At 31 March 2008 7200843 HA31H
Transferred from project under development BEa®REPIER
Exchange realignment & H %
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated RirE W= R ER 2 A FEEGM
income statement
At 31 March 2009 F200943H31H
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

Certain investment properties are held for rental purposes
under operating leases.

During the year, the Group completed the reclamation of
certain sea area and obtained the certificate of completion
of land reclamation (the “Certificate”) in respect of

certain land area (the “Formed Land"”) in Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. Such Formed Land, the future use of which is
currently undetermined, has been recognised as investment
properties upon obtaining the Certificate. The relevant
costs, which include the cost of sea use rights, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other directly
attributable expenses, amounting to HK$ 118,998,000 (2008:
HK$378,551,000), have been transferred from project under
development.

In respect of the land for which the Group has obtained a
certificate from the local land bureau for the Formed Land,
once the future use of the land is determined, the Group

will apply for the appropriate land use right certificates

of the Formed Land. As at 31 March 2009, investment
properties included Formed Land amounting to approximately
HK$1,893,424,000 (2008: HK$1,080,683,000) which the land
use right certificates had not been obtained. The directors of
the Company considered that there is no material impediment
to obtain those land use rights certificates for the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2009 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out as at that date by Greater China Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. In determining the fair value of
the investment properties, the comparison method is adopted
where comparison based on prices information of recent
transacted prices of comparable property is made. Comparable
property of similar size, character and location are analysed in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of capital values. The gain
on fair value changes amounting to HK$672,639,000 (2008:
HK$669,460,000) had been recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the current year.
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378,551,000/ 7T) - EB &R IEE E# -

BAEEMND FE LMD BRI T iR
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& o 22009438318 » #)1&1,893,424,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the revalued
investment properties are assessed on the basis that reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner

in which the Group expects to recover the carrying amounts
of the property at each balance sheet date. For Formed

Land held for undetermined future use located in the PRC,
management of the Company, for the purpose of deferred tax
calculation, has made a best estimate that half of the Formed
Land will be realised through sale in the long term. The
temporary difference of the relevant portion between the tax
base of the revalued investment properties and their carrying
amounts therefore would be subject to PRC LAT in addition to
enterprise income tax.

Investment properties of the Group other than the Formed
Land are situated in the PRC on land held under medium-term

leases.
Sea use rights V8 15150 FR A
Development costs BRKAR

The amount mainly relates to a development project located

in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The Group is undergoing the
reclamation of certain area of the sea and the construction of
bridge and ports. According to the sea use rights certificates,
the sea use rights are granted for terms ranging from 49 to 50
years commencing 2004.

RAAFEEELEREDEZBELEHRIALER
ZEE DRBASEEHNSEE KD
ZYMEREEZ D AMEL 2 RIBRER - B
fRFE - HEMEARRERKABEZEF
BLWmE  RFAFEELEHE AARERE
BEFRHREMFT  BREEF  EFBLH
RE—FHAHETAEE - Bt KEH
BREMERBA D 2T HELERHKREE
BTN ZREEHE LR EN Nk
EFSHETE

REBETREME (TEED FELH)
THIR AR HIEERE 2 PE L £ -

2008
HK$°000
THET
1,631,465
1,649,574
3,281,039

WERTBEGNPEIHE 2 ERIEAR
B - AEEERE T BEETEERER
BRMED - RBBEHERESR  BRZE
2 A #E 2 B A R 120045 8 H49F =
S50F T -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

At 1 April, at cost

Transfer to stock of properties
Expenditure incurred during the year
At 31 March, at cost

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the directors of the
Company determined the purpose of a property development
project located in Jiangsu Province, the PRC, as properties held
for sale in the ordinary course of business and the carrying
amount of HK$111,871,000 had been reclassified as stock

of properties. The remaining balance is related to a property
development project located in Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

RAR1E AR
BREWEFE
FRNEE X
M3A318 @ WA

2008
HK$'000
FHT
44,458
127,573
172,031

HZE2009F3A31MHIEFE  AAAIESR
ERERPBIHE —EWEERERE
HEEBRIEF o RHIEHEWE  MKEE
111,871,000 TEEHM D EAMERFE -
MEECNPEIHEZ —EAWEHRRA
BEEM -

2008

HK$'000

FHT

Properties under development for sale TEHER B ERPYE 173,626
Properties held for sale FEHE % -
173,626

During the year, the Group completed the reclamation of
certain sea area and obtained the Certificate in respect of
Formed Land. Those pieces of Formed Land are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business and have been classified
as stock of properties upon obtaining the Certificate. The
relevant costs, which include the cost of sea use rights,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and
other directly attributable costs, amounting to approximately
HK$137,595,000 (2008: Nil), have been transferred from
project under development.

At 31 March 2009, stock of properties includes an amount of
approximately HK$494,012,000 (2008: HK$153,830,000) are
expected to be completed and sold after more than twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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BRER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

AEEZENEBERBEARTEREE
RBFHEESAZ L EOMERSER

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land in the
PRC and Hong Kong held under medium-term leases and are

analysed for reporting purposes as follows: BT ¢
2008
HK$’000
FAT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BEBEZHE L 22,561
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong BBLIMER ZHE T 58,552
81,113
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A ERS AR
Current assets MEEE 2,343
Non-current assets FERBEE 78,770
81,113
HK$'000
FAT
COST R
At 1 April 2007 20074 H1H 61,646
Arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 46(b)) Wit B T 8 1 BB E AR (Y at46(b)) 2,323
At 31 March 2008 7200843 A31H 63,969
Arising on acquisition of additional interest in HEENI B A RIS T E A& (F75746(a)
a subsidiary (note 46(a)) 5
Adjustments to measurement of consideration for RRBAFEAERERBARZNRE
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years (note 46(b)) YEL AR (BT aF46(b)) 369
At 31 March 2009 #2009 3A31H 64,343
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 April 2007, 31 March 2008 and 2009 H2007F4 A 18 ~ 720084 &
2009F3A31H -
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2009 720093 A31H 64,343
At 31 March 2008 #2008 3A31H 63,969

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount

of goodwill at 31 March 2009 has been allocated to the
management contracting and property development
management’s cash generating units (“CGUs").

RBmEARET S - B MR2009F3A8318 2

FEHEDBAREEELREFTHEERE Y

BIZREAL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

Pr1

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated as follows:

Management contracting AEER
Property development management MEZERER

The recoverable amount of the above CGUs has been
determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next two
years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years
with a steady growth rate of 5% (2008: 5%). The rate used
to discount the forecast cash flows is 9.4% (2008: 9.0%). The
value in use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted
gross margin, which is determined using the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

BEZREEDSREMNT

2008
HK$'000
THET
61,646
2,323
63,969

Eit B3R B AL 2 A Uk B KB T IR B E AT
HREMET - A% BEREEEEMILE
ARMEZHENMVBRBEERULRES R
TR WHEARRAF RS RENIERE
5% (2008: 5%)iBE & - AR SR
IR 59.4% (2008: 9.0%) ° £ AEEEH
EZRBRTEEERNE - HARBAIRE B
BAXRBRREEBHMSER 2BBMmE
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

HZE200053831HLLEE
Motor vehicles Club
registration  membership  Premium on Rights of Customer
marks in Hong Kong leasehold land operation base  Know-how Total
RE RE#Z HEL
ERHR effeR i fd-y RFER RiTRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TAL TEn TAL
(Note fiita)  (NoteHfiFa)  (Notedizh)  (NoteHfizc)  (Notedfizd)  (NoteHiie)
cost BA
At 1 April 2007 #200744718 858 7,062 9,443 36,830 2,083 - 56,276
Additions AE - - - - - 2,366 2,366
Exchange redlignment ~ EHE%E - - 921 3,593 204 - 4718
At 31 March 2008 #2008%3A31A0 858 7,062 10,364 40,423 2,287 2,366 63,360
Additions AE
Disposal e

Exchange realignment X %
At 31 March 2009 #2009%3A318

AMORTISATION &

At 1 April 2007 7200744418 - - 12 368 21 - 501
Provided for the year ~ REEEHE - - 247 765 303 19 1334
Exchange realignment B X % - - 24 79 19 1 123
At 31 March 2008 2008534318 - - 383 1,212 343 20 1,958

Provided for theyear ~ AEEF3HE

Exchange realignment B3 @%

At 31 March 2009 72009534318

CARRYING VALUE REE

At 31 March 2009 20093431

At 31 March 2008 2008534318 858 7,062 9,981 39,211 1,944 2,346 61,402
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

Notes:
(@  The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of
the opinion that the club membership and motor vehicles
registration marks are worth at least their carrying amounts.

The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in
Wuhan, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through
the acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to
be amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease
payments over 36 to 41 years.

Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate
LPG business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the operation licence
period of 50 years.

Customer base represents the fair value of customers
relationship acquired for LPG business through acquisition of

business. The amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis (e)

over 10 years.

Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for
motor vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

REIE LM QA Z A
HIBRRE (A1)

B G URRE R m N R R
MBS S

Cost of unlisted investments in associates,
less impairment (note)

Share of post-acquisition profits and reserves,
net of dividends received

Note: As at 31 March 2009 and 2008, the unlisted investments
relate mainly to the Group’s 45% equity interest in Nantong
Port Group Limited (“Nantong Port Group”), which is a sino-
foreign joint venture enterprise registered in the PRC. Nantong
Port Group is principally engaged in providing cargo loading
and off loading, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, ship
anchoring, ship repairing, port machinery, shipping logistics
and ship piloting services in Nantong Port, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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ZEEERBEERACAFH -E=R
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KERRREDHETL LRI A
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BEAREHELEHS0F N -

EPERKRBBYIE R PIUEE R
AHREBEFPBEZIAFEE TR
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ERMARRZAFEE  HAERERE
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2008
HK$'000
THET

499,343

244,870
744,213

720094 200843 H31H + JE LW
BXZHAEERPEBEBOEEAFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

The financial year end date of Nantong Port Group is 31
December and its latest financial information that is available

to the Group is in respect of its financial year ended 31
December 2008. Accordingly, the Group’s share of results

and interest in this principal associate at 31 March 2009 and
2008 is determined based on the net assets of the associate
for the year ended and as at 31 December 2008 and 2007
respectively. No significant transaction or event is noted
between the year end dates of the associate and of the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of that principal

associate is set out below:

Post-acquisition result:

Turnover
Profit for the year
Group’s share of profit

Financial position:
Total assets
Total liabilities

Minority interests

Group's share of the associate’s net assets

Uig ks

BERE

F g

AN E2 B 15 4 7
FATRROR -

BEE
Bam

DR

REBEEIEHZ QA
BEFE

MABONEBEZVBFEAEAAR12A
3R AEEABCEHUBENAER
2008F 12 A3TBIEMABEE - At - A%EH
FA20094F 20083 A3 1B # Gz X Bt &
RAZ a9 Bl IR B & A Rl R 20084F
K2007F12A31A 2 EEFENE - £
BENRZEREBEAEEZ FE B HM
WESBEMEAZHHKERE -

Bz ERm 2R BEERIT

Year ended
31.12.2007
HZE2007F
12A31H
IEFE
HK$'000
FET

723,306
75,632
34,034

3,196,920
(1,632,973)
(479)
1,563,468

703,560
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

The combined summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s other associates is set out below:

Financial position
Total assets

Total liabilities
Minority interests

Net assets

Group's share of associates’ net assets

Post-acquisition results
Turnover

Profit (loss) for the year

Group's share of post-acquisition results of

associates for the year

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses
of one of the associates. The accumulated recognised share of
losses and the amount of (loss) profit for the year attributable

AR -

Bt BUR B

BEE

waE

D BBCR
BERE
AEEBEBMERRZ
BEFE

W B 1R AR

ES

FraH (B1R)
REBEAE 2 ABWER
FEEE

to the Group (based on unaudited management accounts) are

as follows:

Unrecognised share of (losses) profits of the

associate for the year

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses

of the associate

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2009 and 2008 are set out in note 56(b).

FYIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

RIERZ B E QB2
FE (BR) &

AERBEBZE AT 2
RETEBE

AEBEXTEY

FRASEEMBE AT ZAHBANE

2008
HK$°000
THETT

412,930
(364,054)
(2,214)
46,662

40,653

890,943
52,157

22,296

AEHEKLFERBIE KRB ERRZBE -
RACHERABEBEREASEEE (BR)
BN ESHE(BEREEXRERRE)MT

2008
HK$'000
THBTT

368

(50,632)

#42 N\ BR20094F 200843

HA31B 2 FHBE& TR M EE56(b) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B ER R MY EE
For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE200953831ALLEE
26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 26. H[EZ=EHEEERS
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly RHEREHIEEIE LT
controlled entities REKA - -
Share of post-acquisition profits, and reserves kWi 18 > % I S B -
net of dividends received MBS 2,730 1,987
2,730 1,987
The combined summarised financial information in respect of ERREERRITHIEEL &M EZME
the Group’s jointly controlled entities is set out below: BERESIET
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Total current assets BRBEE 10,843 11,279
Total current liabilities mREasE (5,383) (7,305)
Net assets BEFE 5,460 3,974
Group's share of net assets of jointly AR E L L RE G
controlled entities BEFE 2,730 1,987
Turnover = - -
Profit for the year F e A 1,486 117
Group’s share of profit of jointly controlled AN S B Ak B PR M A
entities for the year F 9 A 743 59
Particulars of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entity at 7N £ B = 2 AR 2 I i 720094 %2008
31 March 2009 and 2008 are set out in note 56(c). F3A31H ZFBEH IR FE56() ©
27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 27. AMEEERE
2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Listed equity securities BB LTIRAES
in Hong Kong 341 343
Unlisted equity securities JF AR AR 5
in Hong Kong ) 463 738
in overseas ST 37,127 56,635
37,590 57,373
37,931 57,716
Represented by: (-
Non-current JERED 804 1,081
Current ED 37,127 56,635
37,931 57,716
Market value of listed securities FHRESTE 341 343

pnly rExrmanam 0005w 177



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

YEINIE TR AN 7B 5 52009F3 A31H 2 4%
BURNREER ZRESTE  DTRAAT
BEZABMGAESEAKN  ARAAESR
BT BRI M E o

The investment in overseas unlisted equity security as at 31
March 2009 was measured at cost less impairment at the
balance sheet date because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates was so significant that the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that their fair values could not
ERAFESREHER 2 REEL BN
ZoMEZREZ TEREHHBBBEIRE
AEBRB/ELRNBINELETRAES
ZAHHEREFEREREEET MR
1B 518 4919,508,0007% 7T (2008: &) B R4R
SWRKRAER - AIRESEDRERER
the available-for-sale investment in overseas unlisted equity TEHETE -

be measured reliably.

Due to the general slowdown in the global economy brought
by the financial tsunami and the political instability in the
investment’s principal operating location during the year, the
Group considered these as indications of impairment loss for

securities and a respective impairment loss of approximately
HK$19,508,000 (2008: Nil) is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The recoverable amount has been
determined based on value in use calculations.

2008
HK$'000
FHET
The amounts, net of allowance, bear interest BREZIE (KR EE) AR
at the following rates: ATHEGTE
10.32% per annum (note a) FERMZE10.3212 (Ktita) 188,006
2% over HKBLR (note a) RETREREBEENEM2E
(Kizta) 102,261
2% per annum (note b) FRR2E (K 5Eb) 32,222
HKBLR BTRESBERNX -
15% per annum FFEISE 18,000
Total amount RIAKATE 340,489
Less: Amount due within one year shown W R —FERNEIES A
under current assets TENVEE 2 HIE (308,267)
Amount due after one year —FR T A 32,222
Analysed as: DR
Secured BHEA 18,000
Unsecured Edaig 322,489
340,489
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

Balance at beginning of the year FHEEH

Impairment losses recognised on loans receivable EREH 2 ERERREERE

Balance at end of the year FREH

Included in the carrying amount of loans receivable as

at 31 March 2009 was accumulated impairment loss of
HK$19,886,000 (2008: HK$19,886,000) in respect of the
balance, which was past due as at the balance sheet date and
the relevant debtors were in financial difficulties. Other than
the above, no significant loans receivable balance has been
past due at the balance sheet date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. No provision for impairment
loss for the balance not yet past due as at the balance sheet
date was considered necessary, since there has been no past
default history in respect of those receivables.

Notes:

(@  The amounts are due from related companies, associates of ITC
Corporation Limited (“ITC"). The substantial shareholder of the
Company is ITC. Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (“Dr Chan”) is,
in turn, the substantial shareholder of ITC and director of the
Company. He has significant influence over these related parties.

The amounts are unsecured loans receivable of HK$102,261,000
(2008: HK$102,261,000) and HK$187,281,000 (2008:
HK$188,006,000) which bear variable interest rate at 2% over
HKBLR (i.e. 7% to 7.25%) (2008: 2% over HKBLR (i.e. 7.25%

10 9.5%)) and at a fixed rate of 10.32% (2008: 10.32%) per
annum, respectively.

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group subscribed
for convertible bond with an aggregate face value of
HK$36,858,000 issued by a related company, Hanny Holdings
Limited, in which the substantial shareholder of the Company
has significant influence. The coupon interest of the convertible
bond is 2% per annum with maturity in June 2011. The amount
recognised in loans receivable represent the debt element of the
convertible bond and is determined using an effective interest
rate of 6.47% per annum at initial recognition. The embedded
conversion option of the convertible bond is separately
accounted for as derivative financial instrument and stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value.

2008
HK$'000
THET
4,773
15,113
19,886

MR2009F3A31H 2 EREFREEBED A
EEREERRPAHZ 2 RERIE

19,88

6,0007% 7t (2008: 19,886,0007% 7T) °

i A8 8 & 75 A H bR 81 BN 2 - B £ XOAT
S REHE AL EEBHAMAKE L REL
MEBEREIERNERER - ANZEE
WA A RACE: - MR EE B RBMZ
EHREFRELREEERE -

Hyaz

(a)

ZHEEBEAREHE  EHFLESE
BERARZHERE ([RFELE] -
ARBZETERRBEHDLE - RE®R
BE(REBLD ARHELEZETERR
REARBZEZ - RRZFMETT AR

N2 K

A B RIE R Em A e Y E 50102,261,000
77 (2008: 102,261,000 T) &
187,281,000/ 7T (2008: 188,006,000
7o) B9 Rl BA 7 T & B B A E A X n2E
(BI7EZE7.25[E) (2008: BTHEREE
F R 22 (BN7.25/E £9.5/8)) K& F Fl R

10.32/E (2008: 10.32/%) 2 & & 7 8 &t
S

REZE2007F3A318 LFE - AEER
BHADNRTZERFAFEATENZ
BEARREEERRACMET £
A T {836,858,000/% 7T 2 A] # i & % -
ARRESHSZEBRAFEFNRE - WM
20116 A SIH - RIBIRE R NTERZ &
BERNIBRRESZEBEIH  RIKX
HREAERFFEA7TEEBE - 7] &
REHFZHERREE FIEAITESR
ITESHAAR YRGEEERBRERA
AR FEETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE200953831ALEE
2008
HK$'000
FAT
Unsecured other receivables, interest free E KR R ORIE - 28 59,777
The balance is repayable on demand except an amount of ZEMRARERRER METBEESH Y
approximately HK$56,451,000 (2008: HK$43,595,000) has #956,451,0007% 7T (2008: 43,595,0007% 7T)
credit period of 60 days and is trade in nature with aged ZEEHER60R - MERRSTWOT :
analysis as follow:
2008
HK$'000
FAT
Within 90 days 90H K 6,849
More than 90 days and within 180 days FR3BI0H WH180H A 6,962
More than 180 days 381801 29,784
Total HBET 43,595
As part of the consideration for the disposal of certain EATEFEHESTHBATIZREZ —
subsidiaries in previous years, deferred consideration of %+ 15,000,000/ 7T 7 I & A (& 18 B B A
HK$15,000,000 is to be settled in cash by the purchaser E20065F 10 A30 8 U Hi IR £ (875 -
under four instalments commencing from 30 October 2006. LRI AEEIRR B E - RYIBEREIELE
The amount is unsecured and interest free. The fair value REZAFEBEDEEIRTE3%ME G
of the deferred consideration at date of initial recognition RRBEREMETE -
is determined based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted at 3% per annum. IREE ((ERE B H) 2T -
The carrying amounts are analysed for reporting purpose as
follows:
2008
HK$'000
FHET
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 2,863
Current assets (included in note 32 under mENEE FIAMERE S
trade and other debtors, deposits and REAEWER - 5] &
prepayments) RIERFRIEET) 7,932
10,795
The amount of deferred consideration receivable which is past 7200953 A31H - 8 BB SR (E 2 iR A 8
due but not impaired is approximately HK$8,000,000 (2008: W X {8 %9 %8,000,0007% 7T,(2008 : 4,000,000
HK$4,000,000) as at 31 March 2009. The directors of the B ARAIEEFRR HRERARI
Company consider the amounts will be recoverable because W0 - R REERE R ] o

the purchaser is of good financial position.

P(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZE2009F3A31HLLEE

31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR 3. Bl (B BEFEHNIRMIEA

CONTRACT WORKS
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date: WEEHZHERAHTIE
Contract costs incurred to date REEIHZEHNIRER 43,939,205 42,553,177
Recognised profits less recognised losses AT R BB AR FE AR 18 1,421,911 1,274,507
45,361,116 43,827,684
Less: Progress billings o EERR (45,901,438) (44,430,537)
(540,322) (602,853)
Represented by: xE
Amounts due from customers for EWEF&HITIRERIE
contract works 196,776 201,589
Amounts due to customers for contract works RN EFA K TI2FHIA (737,098) (804,442)
(540,322) (602,853)
32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 32. BESREMBWEER ST RFENARK
PREPAYMENTS bi]
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Debtors (note a) FEWBRTR (K 7ta) 536,940 882,254
Retentions held by customers for ERIREPHEAZRES
contract works (note b) (Htitb) 421,223 511,560
Interest-bearing advance (note ¢) R (B itc) 241,756 222,722
Other receivable (note d) H W RIE (f7 77 d) 136,054 133,038
Consideration receivable in connection with BRI E B E ERARE
a former investment 118,231 159,653
Amounts due from related companies (note )  FEURERE X 7IFUA (Kt ite) 42,271 6,486
Deferred consideration receivables FEYCRIE B 10,949 7,932
Others EAh 693,960 504,409
2,201,384 2,428,054

Py rEEMERAT 20005%
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

The balance of trade and other debtors, deposits and B RHEMBUIER 7] KB RELH
prepayments is net of allowance for doubtful debts and the OB REREME - MEEHOT -

movement is as follows:

2008
HK$'000
FET
Balance at beginning of the year FAHEER 37,686
Impairment losses recognised on receivables W U BR SR HE SRR (E B 1R 234
Amounts written off as uncollectible [ 7R B Uk [3] T i 4 2 7008 (1,818)
Amounts recovered during the year FRURE Z B (508)
Exchange realignment ME 5 3R 2 38
Balance at end of the year FREH 35,632
Included in the carrying amount of above receivable as M20094F3A31H « Fut U IR E
at 31 March 2009 was accumulated impairment loss of BEEFARLEERBRHZ Rt REERE
HK$35,645,000 (2008: HK$35,632,000), which was past due 35,645,0007% 7t (2008: 35,632,0007% 7T) -
as at the balance sheet date and the relevant debtors were in i AE 8 15 75 A T o B IR PR 8 o
financial difficulties.
Mt -
Notes:
(@ AEEREEESMBZEEHIHEES
(@  The Group’s credit terms for its management contracting BERRFEMEIS - B0 REERBZ
segment are negotiated at terms determined and agreed with EEHNETFRERKRET LM
its customers. Credit terms for port and infrastructure business MERRIREZ =TIBERAM - WXH
are negotiated at specific terms with customers or in connection BRT 2 ME W ABIL G 2 AR
with the completion of underlying construction work. Rental i A% 55 (B 5t 2 8 AR SRR 2 (5 B 1
income for property leasing business is payable according to the —MREE30E90H 15 ©
agreements and the credit terms granted by the Group to other
debtors normally range from 30 days to 90 days. P RAMBERER  5T& RAEMK
18 B 5t A #536,940,000/% JT (2008:
Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments 882,254,000/ 7T) 2 & 5 fE W AR 3N~ A
are trade debtors of approximately HK$536,940,000 (2008: REW R L EHEARFA TR R
HK$882,254,000). The Group does not hold any collateral over HERE AT -
these balances. Their aged analysis is as follows:
2008
HK$'000
THET
Within 90 days 90R N 807,265
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBBI0R WM 180H A 16,366
More than 180 days #Ei8180H 58,623
882,254
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BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

Notes: — continued

(a)

— continued

As at 31 March 2009, included in the Group’s trade debtor
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$41,931,000 (2008: HK$60,546,000) which were past due
at the balance sheet date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. There has not been significant change in
credit quality and the directors of the Company considered the
amounts are still recoverable.

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not
impaired

Within 90 days 90H A
More than 90 days and within 180 days #3A90H WM 180H
More than 180 days #1804

At the respective balance sheet dates, the directors considered
the debts not impaired nor past due are of good credit quality.

At 31 March 2009, an amount of approximately
HK$162,844,000 (2008: HK$249,651,000) are expected to
be recovered or settled in more than twelve months from the
balance sheet date.

The amount represented advances made to an independent
third party in previous years. The amount has no fixed
repayment terms and carries floating-rate interest at PBC plus
8% per annum which is approximately of 15.7% (2008: 15.5%)
per annum and is secured by properties interest in the PRC.
Fair value of the relevant properties interest is approximately
RMB403,536,000 (2008: RMB422,752,000) according to a
valuation report (prepared using direct comparison method)
issued by an independent property valuer. In the opinion of
the directors, the amount will be recovered in the next twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

B —&

(a)

4=

2009638310 AEBZE SRR
ERTAERAEOREIEmMAE
By EELRESEREBRKEER
41,931,000 7T (2008: 60,546,000/
L) cEEERUEBERNE(L AARE
RRAIEA TULE o

B EIE R TR E 2 B 5 W IR S IR ER

2008
HK$'000
THET
1,834
89
58,623
60,546

REGEHER EERA/BERBENED
HraBEARHEEER -

M2009F3A31H * 49162,844,0007% 7T
(2008 : 249,651,000/ 70) BHE R & E
AR+ =@ A%BEBENLES -

HEeBEITREFREBLE=HEL
ZRIE o Z R IE I AEE E R - U
ATREZFEFEMSEZ FFEL
15.7/2 (2008 : 15.5[F) &t & « I Az
FEZEERR - REABIME
HERMEE Z EERE (AEBELBA
mE)  HEDEERZATEENR
A R #403,536,0007T (20084 : A R ¥
422,752,0007T) - EERA  ZEFIEH
AREE BRI+ @A YKE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZE2009F3A31HILFE
Notes: — continued WiaF : —#&
(d)  The amount represented a receivable from a third party, which d) WeBED—BRE=F25E ZFE=

is also the convertible notes holder of the Company. The
amount is non-interest bearing. In the prior year, the convertible
notes holder had engaged the Company as an agent to look
for any potential buyer to purchase the convertible notes of
the Company from the convertible notes holder at a price not
lower than RMB120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$136,054,000). The receivable is secured by the convertible
notes of the Company. The directors of the Company consider
the Group will be able to identify a buyer to complete the
transaction within twelve months of the balance sheet date
and therefore the amount is classified as a current asset. As the
Group currently has the custody of the convertible notes, the
credit quality is considered satisfactory.

(e)  The amounts mainly represent interest receivable and are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Listed equity securities, at quoted bid price FARAES - REARE
in Hong Kong i
in overseas AN

WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

FNMBARBABRBRERZFEA XK
BYAHE - REBEE 2O BKRE
BREABBELAQRAREA  BZA
BREZEFEEAMCTMBEEES A
TE A A R #120,000,0007T (A E R4
136,054,000/ 7T) 2 B1& - B E AR &
Z AR R c ZEWRIBBIARR R Z
ABRBREEAEKF - AARESERE
ARRAIRBEEBR T —AARDEE
BERTERRS  AEENES AT
EE -BRASEBERBEZITRKRER
ZHEAER WEEEERRRART -

ZHRBTERERFE - THEER R
BRBRBEREE -

2008
HK$'000
THET

35,080
26,175
61,255
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The amount mainly represented the fair value of an equity
call option. In May 2007, the Group entered into a joint
development agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “joint development partner”) for
a property development project in Shanghai (the “Property
Interests”). Under the Agreement, the joint development
partner granted an unlisted equity call option to the

Group at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent

to approximately HK$11,338,000). The Group has a right

to acquire the Property Interests at a consideration of
approximately RMB254,204,000 plus all development costs
expended onto the Property Interests at any time from

the date of the Agreement to the expiry of 10 working

days upon issuance of report certifying 25% completion

of the development of the Property Interests. The joint
development partner has a right to cancel the option by giving
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$22,676,000) to the Group
at anytime. The equity call option is measured at fair value

at each balance sheet date, determined with reference to a
valuation performed by an independent valuer. In assessing
the fair value of the option, the valuer uses the comparison
method to assess the underlying asset value of the Property
Interests. The fair value of the option represented the lower
of the compensation from the cancellation of option and the
difference between fair value of the Property Interests and the
exercise price of the option.

ZRBEEERAREHREZAFEE - B
200758 AEER R LB 2 WERE
BIEE ((ME#=DB—BYE=H (&
EERBEDITICEXRZRBZE ((ZH
#) - BIEZIHFE - SEERRBHEUARE
10,000,0007T (8 & 7 11,338,0007% 7T) X 1&
MAEER LI ETRAREDE - NEEF
ERBZHZEAMEEREREZAZY
ERXZHERDTH25%E BIOELEB
A 1E - BERS A A R #254,204,000 R fE (B
MY EREFTAZ 2 REA) W E
B EEEBHERERGETAEEA
R #20,000,0007T (#8 & 722,676,000/ 7T)
HUGEEAME - RARBHERNSHEERRAT
BEMGE WRBYGEMAEGEET
EEE s AT EAER  HEMEALR
o BERS CBREEEE - B
AEEEDEREHAE BEIMEEZD
FEERHETEEERE  UREERE -
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BE2009F3R31ALEE

Pr1

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to

banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$183,439,000 (2008:
HK$34,269,000) have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities with maturity within one year of the balance sheet
date and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits with
maturity date of less than three months carry fixed interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.98% (2008: 0.75% to 2.15%)
per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing market interest
rates ranging nil to 1.17% (2008: nil to 1.15%) per annum.

The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors and
accrued expenses at the balance sheet date:

BEEMRTERERAERETAEEREY
—RBITEEMER FRITZER - BE
183,439,000/% 7T (2008: 34,269,000/ 7T) 2
FRETER (FAEREERE—FRE
B2 —MBATEEZER  AMEIIAR
BE o

BEHEARTERLIPEIR=ZEA 2
HIR 1777 SN 75 5 70.01% % 1.98% (2008:
0.75%%2.15%) 2 Bl & | & - R 17 & 77 Mt
WEBNEBTFEE117% (2008 TF
1.15%) °

BoOREMENERREARINEZR
AT

2008
HK$'000
FAET
Trade creditors aged: E S RENRRIRE
Within 90 days 90H N 450,612
More than 90 days and within 180 days #3B90H W H180A A 7,379
More than 180 days HBiB180H 13,031
471,022
Accrual of withholding tax on dividend MREWARFEHZ 2
income and interest charges TEHTEH 112,944
Retentions held by the Group for contract AEEREHNTIREERZ
works (note) REE (H5F) 392,298
Other payables due to suppliers in respect of BEAIE R 2 B E S
capital addition g A 404,886
Advance receipt from customers W ER % = 45K 234,605
Other accruals Hf st 3,137
Other payables E A & T RRIA 284,940
1,903,832

Note: At 31 March 2009, an amount of approximately
HK$74,077,000 (2008: HK$124,995,000) are expected to
be paid or settled after more than twelve months from the
balance sheet date.
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Bzt - 72009438318 @ £974,077,0007 7T
(2008: 124,995,000 7T) T8 H 15 70 45
EHREBAT_@EAREBHEE -
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BE200943831H ILFE
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on ZEFOAWEIER - 2B REREZRKEER -
demand.
The amounts are unsecured and carry interest as follows: ZEATEER WA T AR
2008
HK$'000
THET
Floating-rate interest at PBC (i.e. 5.31%) ATTRE R 2
per annum FEFHNE (A15.31%) -
Interest free S 1,041
Total amount IR 1,041
Less: Amount due within one year shown B —EREEIERE
under current liabilities BfE2 B (1,041)
Amount due after one year R—F1&E| B2 FIA -
2008
HK$'000
FHET
Unsecured loans payable bears interest e E R
at 2% over HKBLR per annum: REESEREEFNE
M2EEE
Subsidiary of ITC BHECEZHBAR 70,000
Associate of ITC BHECECHENR 50,000
120,000
Other payables: H At A 5RIR
Associates of ITC Rz BENT 9,571
Subsidiary of ITC EECEZMBAR 3,480
133,051
As at 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2008, the amounts are 720093 A318 k200863 A31H - £
unsecured, repayable on demand and interest free except for HREAEER  BARERSEEREE
loans payable of HK$120,000,000 which bear variable interest J& 1 B 5£120,000,0007% 7T A LA JF B) K| R &
rate at 2% over HKBLR (2008: 2% over HKBLR). The ranges BREBEEREMER S (2008 HE K
of effective interest rates of the loans payable during the year EEEEFEME) - & =2009F3A31H
ended 31 March 2009 are 7% to 7.25% (2008: 7.25% to IFFE - BNERZFMNENF7%ET.25%
9.5%) per annum. (2008: 7.25%29.5%) °
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Pr1

Bank and other borrowings comprise:

Bank loans
Other loans

Analysed as:

Secured
Unsecured

The bank and other borrowings are repayable

as follows:

Within one year or on demand

More than one year, but not exceeding
two years

More than two years, but not exceeding
three years

More than three years, but not exceeding
four years

More than four years, but not
exceeding five years

More than five years

Less: Amount due within one year or
on demand shown under
current liabilities

Amount due after one year

B
A

2008
HK$'000
THETT

1,779,449
26,159
1,805,608

1,225,901
579,707
1,805,608

RITREMEREERDOT

—EFARIZEM
BE—F  BTaRE

BBRE - BErE=F

Be=%F BTANF

BBNE - BENERF

HBEF

839,410

305,379

224,891

198,936

95,528

141,464
1,805,608

B —FARS SRR R
FIERE AE 2 A

— IR B H 2 FRA

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings of
approximately HK$113,379,000 (2008: HK$209,534,000)
repayable within one year carrying interest ranging from
7.97% t0 9.01% (2008: 6.39% to 8.96%) per annum.

"
—
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(839,410)
966,198

FERITE R EHI 113,379,000/ 7T (2008:
209,534,000/ 7T) A 2 E B 5K AR —
FREE  WIEN TF7.97%F9.01% (2008:
6.39%%8.96%) 2 FH K58 o



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 1.60% to 10.21% (2008: 2.25% to 7.94%) per
annum.

The above other borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$37,346,000 (2008: HK$16,008,000)
repayable within one year carrying interest ranging from
9.138% to 12% (2008: 12%) per annum.

The remaining other borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 3.00% to 6.00% (2008: 3.25%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company

issued zero coupon convertible notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$121,521,000 for settlement of

the consideration for the LPG assets acquired during the

year ended 31 March 2007. The convertible notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The notes entitled the
holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between 15th day after the date of issue of the
notes and 15 days prior to their respective maturity dates

on 18 April 2010 and 31 May 2010 at a conversion price of
HK$4.25 (adjusted to HK$4.135 on 19 September 2008 and
HK$2.139 subsequent to the balance sheet date regarding
the rights issue in note 57(a)) per share subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments in accordance with the agreement. If the notes
are not converted, they will be redeemed on maturity date at
114.167% of the principal amount of the notes outstanding.
The Company may at any time and from time to time
purchase the convertible notes at any price as agreed between
the Company and the noteholder. The respective liabilities
and equity portions of the convertible notes as at date of
initial recognition is HK$113,039,000 and HK$8,482,000.
The effective interest rate of the liability component of notes
issued on 19 April 2007 and 1 June 2007 are 7.02% and
7.58%, respectively.

ERBITERUEZBAESE  FHESH
1.60%%=10.21% (2008 : 2.25%E7.94% ) 5
B o

L8R 1T 15 BB 3E 4937,346,0005%8 7T (2008:
16,008,000% 7T) LA 2 E BE K - AR —F
RIEE PN T9.138%E12% (2008 :
12%) 2 FEFERETE -

HepHMERNFSNRGTE - FHEH
3.00%26.00% (2008 : 3.25%) &t & °

HZE2008F3A3MHIEFEERN  AARIET
MEEAR121,521,0008 T2 EE A RBKE
& LAVEEHE E2007F3A31HLEFEANE
WERIEAAREEZRE - ATRRERI
BILEE - RERE T REFEAER - ATR
ZRHTHPEE+TARAEES A ZEHA
(2010F4 5188 K2010F58318) Al + &
B HARE W BB B 2 B 384,258 7T (52200849 A
198 AER41358 0 RRNEEBERH
A% 38 ' 22,1398 7T (I 7557@)) (RI R & 17
FTURBHEENARE) 2HREKERE
BMARRARZERAR - WEBHARLER K
REBARERTEZEEASTE 2114.167%
FEE e KRR AR EMKBRETKEUAKRA
ARZEEHBEAREZEMEREEZ
BREE - RNOTHRER  ATRREEZ
BERRARIS 5 5 A113,039,000% 7T K&
8,482,0007% 7T » 20074E4 190 K% 200746
ABBOIZEBRZEBBEHSD 2 BRI ES
A 57.02%%7.58% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE2009F3A31HILEE

The movement of the liability component of the convertible

notes for the year is set out below:

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Effective interest charge

Carrying amount at the end of the year

FOREE
FARABETT
BB X H
FAREEE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

At 1 April 2007

Exchange realignment

Transfer

(Credit) charge to consolidated
income statement

At 31 March 2008

Exchange realignment

Transfer

Change in tax rate (credit)
charge to consolidated
income statement

(Credit) charge to consolidated
income statement

At 31 March 2009

#0074 517

Ei3E

a5

BakEy
(BA)1H

120083 A31H

Ei3E

Tk

BEEE(BAIA
BakEE

FRNERz (BA)
i
12009534318

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

WEHERE
HK$'000
T
5,245
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Recognition adjustmenton development

of contracting

Tax losses income
HEFE BRSHKA
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THIL
(4.158) (1,087)
(242) 274
(4.400) (813)

FRAABMBRERZARAD ZEBMOT

2008
HK$°000
TET
113,039
7,512
120,551

AT RARFE R AT F A # 5 6 IRE
BEEEE)  UREZHBEN -

Fair value
adjustmenton  Fair value
Fair value projectunder adjustments
on certain

investment and stock of  non-current
properties  properties assets Total

BRPEER  ATHRD

REMZATY WEHEELY KELYEE
BERE EERE it CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL L AL TEL
- 926,204 21,720 947,924
15,105 90,362 2,061 107,528
132,715 (132,715) - -
274,934 - (1,026) 273,908
422,754 883,851 22,155 1,329,360
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At 31 March 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$926,000,000 (2008: HK$853,000,000)
available to offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$17,000,000 (2008: HK$25,000,000) of such losses.

No deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$909,000,000 (2008: HK$828,000,000) has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not

200943 A31H  AEE B REAMRBEE
$8926,000,0007% 7T (2008: 853,000,000/
70) ATAREE SR E R FLE o iR E B4
17,000,000/% 7T 2 &5 45 (2008: 25,000,000
B MRECHIBEEE - AR B TEA
ZEWBRARKRAMNZEDBR - AW
I 4% gt H 4 85 8909,000,0007% 7T (2008:
828,000,000/ 7T.) MERIEIEFI B A E © KL
FA 2 %50 765 e 48 AT A PR B st A 8 o

REER - WEBARERD KB G R
AERECEHHERBEZBEEZREENR
31,000,0007% 7T (2008: 21,000,000 7T) ©
BTN SR B AR B B 2 F RS 8 0 M

FiER ZR A RLAE R R RS TR
i el % =R RERBARE -

been recognised was approximately HK$31,000,000 (2008:
HK$21,000,000). No liability has been recognised in respect
of these differences because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Number
of shares Value
g =] X
HK$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BARMEE0. 108 T2 BBk
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 April 2007, 31 March 2008 7200744A18
and 31 March 2009 2008%3A31H &
2009F3A31H
Issued and fully paid: B BT R IR
At 1 April 2007 M2007F4A1H 1,491,713,407 149,171
Issue of new shares pursuant to BRI B G & 81T
scrip dividend schemes ¥k 6,594,110 659
Issue of shares under share option scheme RIR R AR R T BB TR 10,620,000 1,062
Shares repurchased LRI (1,834,000) (183)
At 31 March 2008 2008F3H31H 1,507,093,517 150,709

IRIR AR T BIB1TAR
200943 A31H

Issue of shares under share option scheme
At 31 March 2009
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During the year, the Company issued 1,300,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription price ranging from
HK$1.24 to HK$1.50 under the share option scheme of the
Company.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date on 9 June 2009, an
ordinary resolution was passed to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$300,000,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the creation of 7,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each. In addition, details of a rights issue
of shares subsequent to the balance sheet date are set out in
note 57(a).

In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2008 distributed in the form of warrants as detailed in note
15, the Company issued warrants of HK$251,398,919

on 26 September 2008 to shareholders of the Company
conferring the rights to the holders thereof to subscribe in
cash for 251,398,919 new shares of the Company at an initial
exercise price of HK$1.00 per share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments) at any time during the period from 26 September
2008 to 25 September 2009.

The subscription rights attaching to the warrants are measured
at fair value of approximately HK$12,833,000 on initial
recognition and are recognised in equity in the warrants
reserve.

The fair value of the warrants issued during the year was
calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing model performed
by RHL, independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. RHL have necessary qualifications
and recent experiences to perform the valuation of warrants.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of valuation 5 September 2008

Share price HK$0.680
Exercise price HK$1.000
Time to maturity 1 year
Expected volatility 56.32%
Expected dividend yield 4.41%
Risk free rate 1.640%

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

FARARARBEARAE ZBEBRE D
BN F1.248 T 21508 T 2 RIBEEAIT
1,300,0004% # A EI{H0.10/8 7T 2 E iR °

REEE B 22009F6 A9 @« —HEBERZE
EEEEB - L2 ER7,000,000,0000% & Bk
0.108 T2 MR - AR A ZEEMR
7K E§300,000,0005% 7T 4 /1 2 1,000,000,000
BT o WLAh - BB BB AR R EITRG
2 EH M E57@)

BEE2008F3A31B L FEURBEE T
KDk Z REAMRE (M T 15FTaH) M= -
AN A)E R2008F9 A26 B [A) 4 A &) ik 3 5%
1T R HEFE251,398,9195% 7T - B B R HE
BT E A AR - AT 320089 A26H
Z2009F9A25R I AR A E MR - A E
H%1.0078 7T 2 ¥ #5170 18 (R 1 H R #54 5f
) LR $R8E251,398,91 90 AN A RIFTAR D °

RREFEMH 2 RBERV T ERERAD
F{E{E4912,833,000/%8 Lt 2 WHEZRH
2R REEEEER

FRBETZRABEE Z AT EERKNIT
(RAEETEBEZ BUIABREEME
fb) A —TRCEIRE E BREGHE - K FTTA
BRAREIZEEZMTEXRERROHR
5o MELZEABMT

18 A A 2008F9 A5H
iR 1E 0.680/8 T
TEE 1.0007% 7T
LS 148
TEERR 18 56.32%
TBHIMR B X 4.41%
% 2 By ) 1.640%
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The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the warrants are based on the management’s best
estimate.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company
adjusted the subscription price of the outstanding warrants
from HK$1.00 per share to HK$0.51 per share as a result

of the rights issue in July 2009 as set out in note 57(a). The
maximum number of shares issuable assuming full exercise of
the subscription rights attaching to the outstanding warrants
is also adjusted from 251,398,919 to 492,939,056.

On 27 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to any employees, executives

or officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member of
the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed or

will contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from that
date.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in the Company without consideration.
The directors may at their discretion determine the specific
exercise period which should expire in any event no later than
ten years from date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription
price as is permissible under the Listing Rules from time to
time; and (ii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

ARERREREATEEMAZEHERRR
TYAERR 8 2 SAEfh Ft BIKIE ©

HE B 1% - R EE57(a)FT 3 7420097 A
BATHAR - ANA BB ot s R 1T 68 R AR A %
ZRBEELAE AFRI.00BTARE
BAR0.51B T - RFEEITEE M ARITERAR
BN REE  ATETRG RIS
251,398,9198% % {5 78 2 £492,939,056/% ik

,T/\ ®

2002458 A27 8 AN A B 49 3 BE AR dE AT
Z(TEREED)  UmYgedsE
B IR ERBIELEM 2 AEERE
MR ERE 2 EMEE - TTRA B m AR
B EEREZALT  AEBEMFKERF
IR BB AN  BERSRE(E
BERAT D RGUAE S IRE - BT B
BB RERARTE -

RIBBREE > ARARESABIBEEM
BEBALTRLBRE RARH 2 BRE
BEXNEMER - EFAHITEETEH
B EEEMIERT - LA TEHR S8
BEBRESERAE B +F 768
BERARAEEUTIBRGENEE 2
AORE TR RN 2 REE  Ri)
ARRBRED ZEIE
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The maximum number of shares which may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
as at its adoption date, i.e. 103,674,492 shares. Subject

to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval

by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meetings

of the Company in 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the
10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at the respective dates of
such meetings. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the Company’s annual general meeting held on 5 September
2008, the 10% scheme limit was further refreshed to
150,839,351 representing 10% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted to each Eligible Person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including those exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time unless such grant has been duly approved
by shareholders of the Company at general meeting at
which the Eligible Person and his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder and/or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10%
of total number of shares in issue and have an aggregate
value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting in advance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

HZE2009F3831HILFE
@@ AN BIR2004F12 A28 8 1R I B % #
(a) Details of the share options granted on 28 December AERMAEBZETEERZAAR
2004 to certain directors and advisors of the Company HrBREZHFBERRENZEEH I
under the Share Option Scheme and movements in such T

holdings during the year are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options
BREGEREFRT2ALARBER
Outstanding  Exercised Outstanding  Exercised Adjustments Outstanding

Exercise
price per as at during asat during made during asat
Date of grant  Exercise period share 142007  theyear 3132008  theyear  theyear*  31.3.2009
#1.4.2007 1431.3.2008 #31.3.2009
RHBH s ERTEE HARATE ERiTE HRITE ERiTE FAELEE  HAGE
HK$
BT
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 t0 26.8.2012 1.0628* 8,450,000 - 8,450,000
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012 1.2857* 12,580,000 (350,000) 12,230,000
21,030,000 (350,000) 20,680,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
ERRTTIE 20,680,000
*  As aresult of the warrants issued relating to the & AR HIKE £2008F3A8318 EFE
distribution of final dividend for the year ended 31 March TR B MRTRABREE (FHNKM
2008 as set out in note 15, on 19 September 2008, the 15) » A2008F9 A 198 * KR RFE B
Company adjusted the exercise price of the outstanding TEERLEHTARAEERITEER
share options by reducing it by a factor of 6/7 and BZTEE WHAERESTEERERE
adjusted the number of shares to be issued upon exercise TERITIZBROHBE L ZIEMEHRTG -

of the share options by increasing it by a factor of 7/6.
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Pr1

(b) ARAIREEBRETEIRASE KRR
(b) Details of the share options granted to certain directors, BERBZETEE EERBHAR
employees and advisors of the Group and invested 2 AR RE S IE R 20074 R18 &
entities under the Share Option Scheme during the 20094F3 A3 1A B 2 BT -
period from 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2009 and
movements in such holdings are as follows:
Number of shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise of the share options
BREGERATRA2ANARGHE
Adjustments
made during
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Granted  Exercised  the year Lapsed
duringthe  duringthe  during the duringthe ~ during the ended  during the
Evercise price  Outstanding  yearended yearended  yearended Outstanding yearended  yearended  31.3.2009% yearended Outstanding
Type Dateofgrant  Vestingdate**  Exercise period per share at142007 313208 3132008 3132008 at3132008 3132009 3132009 EZ3132009 3132009 at313.2009
142007 EZ3132008 £Z313.2008 HZ3132008 73132008 £%31.3.2009 §Z313.2009 LFE BE3132000 3132009
£H BB 1 LA SRiRE HATE  LEERE  LERAE  LEEAN  MAGE LEERE LEEGE  FLEE LEEAN  MAGE
() 622006 6.2.2006 6.2.2006105.2.2007 178 - = N N =
(i) 622006 6.2.2007 6.2.2007105.2.2008 250 7,155,000 - (14490000 (5,706,000 -
(i) 6.2.2006 6.2.2008 6.2.2008 t05.2.2009 25714 7,675,000 - - (75,0000 7,600,000
() 622006 6.2.2009 6.2.2009t05.2.2010 3.00% 7,675,000 - - (75,0000 7,600,000
(v 2432006 2432006 24320060 5.2.2007 2305 = N = = -
(v) 2432006 6.2.2007 6.2.2007t05.2.2008 250 2,950,000 - (14210000 (1,529,000 -
(i) 2432006 6.2.2008 6.2.2008t05.2.2009 25714 3,000,000 - - (375,000 2,625,000
(vil) -~ 243.2006 6.2.2009 6.2.2009105.2.2010 3.00* 3,000,000 - - (375,000 2,625,000
() 892006 8.9.2006 8.9.2006t0 7.9.2007 248 4,600,000 - (4600,000) - -
X 892006 8.9.2007 8.9.2007t07.9.2008 248 4,600,000 - - - 4,600,000
() 89.2006 8.9.2008 8.9.2008t07.9.2009 21257 4,600,000 - - - 4,600,000
(i) 892006 8.9.2006 8.9.2006t0 268.2012 2.0828* 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000
(xil) ~ 89.2006 8.9.2006 8.9.2006t0 7.9.2007 183 3,450,000 - (2,550,000 (900,000) -
(xiy)  89.2006 18.2007 1.8.20071031.7.2008 183 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
() 892006 18.2008 1.8.20081031.7.2009 243 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
(i)~ 892006 18.2007 1.8.20071031.7.2008 3.00 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
(xvi) - 89.2006 18.2008 1.8.20081031.7.2009 350 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
(i) 89.2006 8.9.2007 8.9.2007107.9.2008 3.00 2,750,000 = N (900,000 1,850,000
(xix) ~ 89.2006 8.9.2008 8.9.2008 t0 7.9.2009 3.00% 2,000,000 - - (1,200,000) 800,000
() 622007 6.2.2007 6.2.2007t0268.2012 25714 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000
(o) 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 6.2.2007105.2.2008 400 2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) -
(xd)  6.22007 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 0 5.2.2008 3.00 1,020,000 - (250,000 (770,000) -
(e 6.2.2007 6.2.2008 6.2.2008t05.2.2009 25714 1,190,000 - - - 1,190,000
(xeiv) - 6.2.2007 6.2.2009 6.2.2009105.2.2010 3.00% 1,190,000 - - - 1,190,000
(o) 3042007 18.2007 1.8.2007 10 30.4.2008 350 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
o) 15.5.2007 15.5.2007 155200710 145.2008 350 - 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
(owi)  15.5.2007 15.5.2007 155200710 1452009 3.00* - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
(xwii) 1.82007 18.2007 1.8.20071031.7.2008 350 - 550,000 - - 550,000
(o) 1.82007 18.2008 1.8.20081031.7.2009 34285 - 450,000 - - 450,000
() 1.8.2007 18.2009 18.20091031.7.2010 38571 - 450,000 - - 450,000
(xex) 189.2007 189.2007 189200710 17.9.2008 3546 - 3,900,000 - - 3,900,000
(xei) - 189.2007 18.9.2008 189200810 17.9.2009  3.03%4* - 3,900,000 - - 3,900,000
(oexii) 189.2007 189.2009 189.20091017.9.2010 30394 - 3,900,000 - - 3,900,000
(ki) 11.10.2007 11.10.2007 11.10.20071010.10.2008 ~ 2.5714* = 250,000 = = 250,000
(xexy)11.10.2007 114.2008 114200810 10.10.2008 25714 - 150,000 - - 150,000
"

{4

P PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

(b) - continued

(b)

AR

Number of shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise of the share options

BREGRERTRTZALARMGAA

Adjustments
made during
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Granted  Exercised  the year Lapsed
duringthe  duringthe  during the duringthe  during the ended  during the
Exerciseprice  Outstanding ~ yearended yearended yearended Outstanding yearended yearended  31.32009* yearended Outstanding
Type Dateofgrant  Vestingdate** Exercise period per share at142007 3132008 3132008 3132008 at3132008 3132009 3132009 EZ3132009 3132009 at313.2009
142007 £Z3132008 £%313.2008 HZ3132008 73132008 £%31.3.2009 £Z313.2009 LEE BE3132000 3132009
£H RuEH REEe  fkH BRARE HATE LFERY LEEME  LEEAN  HAGR LEERE LEEGE  FLER LEEAN BAGR
(ki) 11.10.2007 11.10.2008 1110200810 10.10.2009 ~ 3.00* - 150,000 - - 150,000
(oenil) 11.10.2007 11.10.2009 1110200910 10.10.2010 34285 - 200,000 - 200,000
(oevii) 3.6.2008 1.10.2008 1102008 t02.6.2011 17142 - - - -
(xex) 36,2008 1.10.2009 1102009t 2.6.2011 17142 - - - -
() 36.2008 142010 1420101026201 17142* - - - -
() 36.2008 1.10.2010 110201010 26.2011 1742 - - - -
(i)~ 36.2008 36.2008 36.2008t0 2.6.2009 17142 - - - -
(xii) -~ 3.6.2008 36.2008 36.20081026.2010 2.1428* - - - -
(i) 362008 36.2009 36.2009102.6.2010 2.1428* - - - -
() 36.2008 36.2009 36.2009t02.6.2011 2.1428¢ - - - -
(xhi)  36.2008 36.2010 36.20101026.2011 25714 - - = -
67955000 30,400,000  (10270,000) (14,405,000) 73,680,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
EERTFR 44,665,000
*  As aresult of the warrants issued relating to the L R 5L 9 R & =2008F3A318 1t
distribution of final dividend for the year ended 31 March FREZARBREMEITRREE
2008 as set out in notes 15 and 44, on 19 September (B A K sE158%44) 7200849 8
2008, the Company adjusted the exercise price of the 198 AARIBEBBITEERDZE
outstanding share options by reducing it by a factor of He/7TUA B M RITREBIRE 21T
6/7 and adjusted the number of shares to be issued upon B8 WHABEITERERERST
exercise of the share options by increasing it by a factor of BITZROHBBEZEBMEHRTE -
7/6.
> P ERRBARRREARITR  BIRE
*%

All the above outstanding share options of the Company
were vested in the relevant grantees upon the first date
of their respective exercise periods, except for vesting of
the 16,253,999 outstanding share options which were
conditional on such grantees satisfying the conditions
attached to each grant.

During the year, the Company granted 85,684,000

share options to directors and employees at exercise

prices ranging from HK$2.00 to HK$3.00 per share
(adjusted to HK$1.7142* to HK$2.5714* per share).
The fair value of the share options granted during the

year is approximately HK$15,942,000. The share options

granted are subject to vesting conditions from zero to 2.3

years.

HEEZBZTTHREHANER  BE
THEBEEA  $R16,253,99917 i
RITE 2B - AFARARET
HLE ) 55 3 B PR A P B A 0 A6k
TR -

FR-ARRBANFER2.008 T
£3.008 T (ABZER1.7142%
TL*E25714F L) 2T EERE
85,684,000 flE Ik ETEERIES °
RENFMBEBEREZ AFEBRDN

15,942,000/ JT © T % ) & A% 4 % &

REE23F

B -
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BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

(b) - continued
The fair values determination at the grant date were
carried out by RHL using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing
Model (the “Model”). The key inputs into the Model
were summarised as follows:

Options granted during the year

Type Type Type Type
EHl EHl EHl EHl

(oovii) — (xxxix) (x) (xli)

Closing share price at Rt BE 2R

date of grant (HK9) g (B
Expected volatility BHRE
Expected life (year) BESH ()
Risk-free interest rate EERAE
Expected annual dividend ~ BEHEFERS

yield EER
Fair value per share option ~ SRERIEZ

(HKS) ATEEET)

The expected volatility used in the Model was determined
by using the annualised standard derivation of the
continuously compounded rate of return on the ordinary
shares of the Company. The expected life used in the
Model has been adjusted, based on management’s

best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability and
behavioural considerations.

The amount of cost of share options charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year was
HK$14,859,000 (2008: HK$15,170,000).

In respect of the share options granted during the year,

the closing share price immediately before date of grant is
HK$1.53 (2008: ranged from HK$2.90 to HK$3.49).

WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report
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BT

FRAREZBRE

Type Type Type Type Type
5l 5l E5l E5l &5l
(xlii) (xlii) (xliv) (xIv) (xIvi)

ZEAMA ARG DRAALR
AEBRZEEEN DR 2 FE
BREZET AR FERALERTR
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FARERBRMHRZBRERASER
14,859,000/ 7t (2008: 15,170,000/ 7T) °
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BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,

the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is
HK$1.53 (2008: HK$3.26) and the weighted average closing
price at the date immediately before exercise date is HK$1.52
(2008: HK$3.25).

There was no consideration received during the year from
Eligible Persons for taking up the options granted.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company adjusted
the exercise price of the outstanding options from the range
of HK$1.0628 to HK$3.8571 per share to HK$0.43762 to
HK$1.58821 per share as a result of the rights issue in July
2009 detailed in note 57(a). The adjustment became effective
on 3 July 2009 and the total number of outstanding options
had been increased to 279,443,972.

On 7 September 2005, PYE adopted a share option scheme
(the “PYE Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentive

or reward to any employees, executives or directors of PYE
and its subsidiaries or any invested entity and any consultant,
adviser or agent of any member of PYE and its subsidiaries or
any invested entity, who have contributed or will contribute to
the growth and development of PYE and its subsidiaries or any
invested entity (“PYE Eligible Person”). The PYE Scheme will
remain in force for a period of ten years from that date.

Under the PYE Scheme, the directors of PYE may at their
discretion grant options to any PYE Eligible Person to subscribe
for shares in PYE. Consideration to be paid on each grant of
option is HK$1.00. The directors of PYE may at their discretion
determine the specific exercise period which should expire in
any event no later than ten years from date of adoption of the
PYE Scheme. The exercise price is determined by the directors
of PYE and will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription
price as is permissible under the Listing Rules from time to
time; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of PYE.

FRITE 2 BRE - W1TEE B 2 T
% {8 &1.538 7T (2008: 3.267 L) ' KRB
IEEBZAI—BZMEFHRTRER
1.527% 7€ (2008: 3.2587T) °

WEEEEBRATEAER 28BN K
BEMRAE -

HER% &M ES7(a)FT # KR2009F7
AETHR  RAREHER1TERRE
BZATEEELAE  AERN F1.0628
PEILE3.857 178 TR E F RN T0.43762
7 T E1.58821% 7T © #8 B 7200947 A3
HAR s RITEBRE . BEIREE
279,443,97217% °

M2005F9RA7H - IRERFIRA —IAMRE
STEI(MREREBRESED - UmEsk
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BIZ2009F3R31ALFEE

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the PYE
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted by PYE
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
issued shares of PYE, as at its adoption date i.e. 57,669,939
shares of PYE. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of
PYE in general meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10%

of the total number of shares of PYE in issue as at the date

of approval by the shareholders of PYE in general meeting.
Notwithstanding the forgoing, the maximum number of shares
of PYE which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the PYE Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of PYE must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of shares of PYE

in issue from time to time. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at PYE's annual general meeting held on 4 September
2008, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to 60,131,206,
representing 10% of the total number of issued shares of PYE
as at the date of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of PYE in respect of which
options may be granted to each PYE Eligible Person under
the PYE Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
PYE (including those exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of

the total number of shares of PYE in issue from time to time
unless such grant has been duly approved by shareholders of
PYE in general meeting at which the PYE Eligible Person and
his associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained from
voting. Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/

or an independent non-executive director of PYE or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
any 12-month period in excess of 0.10% of the total number
of PYE in issue and have an aggregate value exceeding
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the shareholders of PYE
in general meeting in advance.
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BIZ2009F3RB31ALLFE

FARLATFEE  RIEBREZEBRETS
Details of movements in share options of PYE granted under Rz BREEs  FE0T
the PYE Scheme during the current and prior years are as

follows:
Number of shares of PYE to be issued upon exercise of the share options
BRETREAFROLRERRRAEE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Exercised Lapsed
duringthe  duringthe  during the duringthe  during the
Exercise price Outstanding yearended  yearended yearended Outstanding yearended  yearended Outstanding

Type  Dateofgrant Vestingdate  Exercise period pershare  at14.2007 3132008 3132008 3132008 at3132008 3132009 3132009 at31.3.2009

#4207 EZ3132008 HE3132008 EE3132008 3132008 HZE3132000 EZ3132000 7#313.2009
EF  REed BEAH it SRAEE  HAGE LEERY LEEGR  LEEXR HAGR  LEERE  LEERN HAGE

HK$
AT

| 3.2.2006 3.2.2006 3.2.2006-6.9.2015 0.70 1,500,000 - (1,000,000) - 500,000
I 3.2.2006 1.1.2007 1.1.2007-69.2015 0.85 1,500,000 - (1,000,000 - 500,000
fi 3.2.2006 1.1.2008 1.1.2008-6.9.2015 1.00 1,500,000 - - (1,000,000) 500,000
1] 9.2.2006 9.2.2008 9.2.2008-8.2.2009 0.90 5,600,000 - - (2800,0000 2,800,000
Vv 13.7.2006 13.7.2006 13.7.2006 - 12.7.2008 1.00 1,500,000 - (1,286,000 - 214,000
Vl 13.7.2006 13.7.2007 13.7.2007 - 12.7.2009 1.00 3,000,000 - - (1,500,000 1,500,000
Vi 13.7.2006 13.7.2008 13.7.2008 - 12.7.2009 100 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Vil 30.5.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007-30.6.2008 134 - 1500000 - - 1500,000
X 30.5.2007 172008 1.7.2008 - 30.6.2009 134 - 1500000 - - 1500,000
X 305.2007 9.2.2008 9.2.2008 -8.2.2009 134 - 13,000,000 - (1,700,000) 11,300,000
X 8.6.2007 1.7.2007 1.7.2007 - 306.2009 136 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Xi 28122007 1.6.2008 16.2008-315.2009 140 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Xl 28.12.2007 19.2008 19.2008 - 31.8.2009 140 - 600,000 - - 600,000

16600000 19600000 (32860000  (7,000,000)  25914,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
EERAFOR 20,814,000
In respect of the 4,014,000 (2008: 3,286,000) share options F N1T{#,24,014,000 (2008 : 3,286,000) 15
exercised during the year, the weighted average share price at BAE - WITES B2 MEFARER.224
the respective dates of exercise is HK1.224 (2008: HK$1.30). 7T (2008 : 1.30%7T)
The total estimated fair value of approximately HK$436,000 BYTREZEXETRER ZBREZ AR
(2008: HK$4,697,000) with respect to share options granted ~ ¥ {E 18 #436,00078 7T (2008 : 4,697,000
to directors and employees of PYE were charged to the BT ERAFE 2GR WERP R -

consolidated income statement during the year.
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Pr1

"
v

In September 2008, the Group increased its interest in D
& C Engineering (H.K.) Limited from 55% to 100% at a
consideration of HK$800,000. Goodwill of HK$5,000 has
been recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.

On 11 June 2007, the Group acquired the entire
interest in PY Property Consultants Limited (formerly
known as Fexon Property Consultants Limited), PY (Asia
Pacific) Limited (formerly known as China Land (Asia
Pacific) Limited) and PY Investments (Samoa) Limited
(formerly known as Fexon Investment Limited) (the
“Acquirees”), which are engaged in the provision of
property consultancy services, at a net consideration of
HK$1,793,000 (subject to adjustments). The acquisition
was accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting during the year ended 31 March 2008. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of this acquisition
is approximately HK$2,323,000.

20089 A + A& B8 E R EARK R &
IR (%) BRAAZERH55%%
INZE100% X {8 /800,000 7T ° 7
B5,0008 TEREEEBBERAE

R e

7200746 A 118  A&EBA1,793,000
BT (A THRE)FREWBRERE
ERBEMARAR (AIBEEHESE
BEBEBRLA) RE (X)) AR
AR (AT EER (2 X) AR D EF) &PY
Investments (Samoa) Limited (B #8 £ =
BREARAR) ([ ELE]) 220
= ZER BN R EL AR o
EHE2008F3A31ALEE  RERS
N g A5k - RBWERES
2 EE#) 52,323,000 T °

2008
HK$'000
FET
(Note)
(Htst)
Net assets acquired: BAKEFE -
Trade and other debtors, deposits B REMBYKERR - 5T& RFEMNKIEA
and prepayments 1,290
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFERES 1
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B REMEMRREETRAX (1,628)
Taxation payable e 5 35 18 (193)
(530)
Goodwill (SRS 2,323
Consideration RE 1,793
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of We B BT B8 2 R EE A 2 IR & SRR
subsidiaries:
Bank balances and cash acquired Wiz RiTEFERR S 1
Cash consideration paid EfRERE (1,793)
(1,792)

Note: Carrying amount of the Acquirees’ net assets acquired

before combination was the same as its fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

The goodwill on acquisition represents the value
obtainable from synergies with the Group on the
economy of scale on the property development
management services of the Group.

The subsidiaries acquired did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
ended 31 March 2008.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2007,
total group revenue and profit for the period would
approximate the amounts disclosed in the consolidated
income statement.

The acquisition was completed at an adjusted
consideration of approximately HK$2,162,000 after
taking into the effect of adjustment on fluctuations

of various projects within 18 months counted

from acquisition date. The additional goodwill of
approximately HK$369,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet at 31 March 2009.

WEREEASEEEMERRER
AR 2 ARG E AR b 2 155 B 2
ARZEE-

BRI B A R HAREEE =2008
FIANBUEFEZEERRERE -
WET(TEARTE -

ERBEWER2007F4B81H K @ &
BRIz 20k 3 K RS B AR A IR
mREBRZSEMAEE -

WHEEEE =K st RRKESEIER
HEs8E AR ZEIER 2 K&
AR VER  KRERENAR
2,162,000/ 7t ° 7200943 A31H 5
N 49369,0008 TTERGEEER
BRATER o
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

(@ On 9 September 2008, the Group was granted an option
by the other shareholder of Feeder Port Holdings Limited
(“Feeder Port”), which is engaged in logistic network
solution to increase its interest in Feeder Port from 50%
to 87.5% at a consideration of HK$15,000,000. The
Group exercised the above option on 17 September
2008 and the consideration was satisfied by converting
its loan receivable into equity interests in Feeder Port.
The acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition
of assets and liabilities. The net assets acquired in the

transaction was summarised as follows:

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Project under development

Trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses

Less: Minority interests

Total consideration satisfied by:

Interests in associates

Amounts due from associates

Derivative financial instrument
(fair value of option)

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

Bank balances and cash acquired

WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

(@) T2008F9A9H FEEE —R#
E W) 4 2 B & A AlFeeder Port
Holdings Limited ([ Feeder Port |) 2 &
AR R AR T B AR AE - 7§ H 7 Feeder Port
Z W AR50%IE N E87.5% « KE R
15,000,000/ 7T © 7~ £ [# 74200849 A
17B17E Lt iE R REUERE
JE U B 3 A HAFeeder PortZ PR AN 25
AR - WHEEREARRWESE
ERBBE RRXGPBAZEEFE
Bt

2009
HK$°000
THET
BAEEFE:
M W RERE
BN EE A
HRPIEA
B 5 NREWRN - Re RFAN KA

RITEEFERS
B 5 MM RR R ER R

B DB R A AR

BAREA TN

REE & AR 27

& Wi Bt 2 2 B RIA

TESRTA(BREZAFER)

WERELZRSREFE

BARTEFLRE



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

(b)

The final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 was
distributed in the form of warrants as set out in notes 15 and
44.

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group
acquired two subsidiaries from certain independent

property for rental purpose at a consideration of
approximately HK$47,109,000. The acquisition had been
accounted for as an acquisition of assets and liabilities.
The effect of the acquisition is summarised as follows:

Net assets acquired:

Investment properties

Trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses

Bank and other borrowings

Consideration

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of
assets through a subsidiary:

Bank balances and cash acquired
Cash consideration paid

Net cash outflow

third parties which were mainly holding an investment

HZE2008F3A31BILEFEAN  AEH
LA #947,109,000% st X B » M & T8
VE=FREMREEHE —BEM
ERBCREMEZWB AR - Lt
WEBEAKBEEEABZ A ALK
WiE 2 o BRIBFENT ¢

2008
HK$'000
THETT
BAEERE:
REME 118,549
B 5 MEMBWIER - e AR
1,066
RITHEFMAS 990
B 5 REMENRREER X (2,056)
SRIT M E A 5 R (71,440)
RE 47,109
FRWENBARKEEEMEL Y
Bemd
Wiz RITEFERRS 990
ENRERE (47,109)
B mFRE (46,119)

B E2008F3A31H L FE 2 R HBAR 8 LAK

1S RAAFE 2 RREE ST X DK ©

AEERSERREERACS AEHRIERNK

BHGE ZEMBZEERIREAEEZ
LRECHIFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government. The subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to contribute a specified percentage of their payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where
there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no material forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the
schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions
becoming fully vested and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group in future years.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in
the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions paid and payable to the funds by the
Group at the rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$15,128,000 (2008:
HK$15,152,000).
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AEBETPENBARZES  RHETEK
Tz AR ERRABTEZKE -
BB AR AR R 2 FELA - MR
PRAEA G BIEH HR - REBER KB G
BB RRELEBESEMRK -

REFaWERBEZER  AAKEZZ
B ZRRMEZ PN FREESZHRK -
e BER =6 AL B HFKAN 2 MER
AR B EA ) AEBEEMETGE I RZ
Yt Rz £ BEIRR ©

ey
=

REER TERREENEENZALAEHE
HHFAH 2 EEAMRNZEEMESL
ZEREBEFREAEAEERRREE
AR R BRI -

F20005F 12 A1 H & » A& B A0 AR 1 2
Berrd ((RESFFI)) - BRESFIC
RIFREIE A E S BURPI RS IERTE
SEBRERL BESHIZEEBINE
SECEE ABYRFTABEGZESR
B RERESHEZRY BEIXEEY
AR BIRARATHZ L RAEtEIHR - RNE
EEHEREeHEZEEREERREE
TEHEE 2 HE50 - B A& B BRIt 7]
AR B R B R -

F 38 18 & 5 81 W 1 2 R KR FI R 81 R
BiRE Wam R MR - HERANEEBZE SR
ARTRAZ L RRAES N REMNZ H#5K -

FR-RNEARIRALEZRKEF
2t F 48 %8 49 515,128,000 JT( 2008 :
15,152,000 7T) ©



For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE200953831ALLEE
2008
HK$'000
FHET
Guarantees given to banks in respect of RETFTIALZBITEE
banking facilities granted to: MERTTIE L 2 1R -
— an associate — BN A 10,481
— a third party =] -
10,481
At the initial date of providing these guarantees, the directors RREERER  ESRRMBERZIATF
consider that the fair value of the financial guarantees is BEXTERKX -
insignificant.
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REER  AEBESATREZEH
for future minimum lease payments under non- Tz HMERFEEE  BRYELK
cancellable operating leases in respect of leasehold ERERCERLNFTEHERRRE
interest in land, rented premises and plant and machinery TH & FRIEEHE o b5 AW 2 T E AN
which fall due as follows: s 8
2008
HK$'000
THET
Within one year —F R 30,785
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF
(ERMEBREEN) 33,264
Over five years HBid T F 4,397
68,446
Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for BHzEd kS AELEE @ 51 F 58
terms ranging from one to thirty years. RAE—FE=TFT%-
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE200953831ALEE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted REEB AEEEEAKREWE A
with tenants in respect of its investment properties PERARZKERSRIEITL - X
for future minimum lease payments which fall due as BiAOR :
follows:
2008
HK$'000
FAET
Within one year —FA 2,693
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF
(BEMFERIEEN) 3,656
6,349
Operating lease arrangements represent rentals REHERBEAREEREMEE W
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises. Leases ZHEE MO AN EBMRAIFER
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 6 years. 6FIEF o
At the balance sheet date, the following assets were pledged REEH  THEEDRKIFTFIRITRY B
to banks and financial institutions to secure the general credit B EABAEERE—REERE ZIER
facilities granted to the Group:
2008
HK$'000
FET
Investment properties REW* 149,667
Property, plant and equipment ME - M R 482,195
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERIEA 49,836
Bank deposits RITIFH 34,269
Other intangible assets Htv@mEEaE 9,981
Project under development BRHIAR 17,007
Stock of properties mMERFE 172,863
915,818
In addition, the Group’s benefits under certain construction SN AEBEREBETERESDZF=E TE

contracts were pledged to secure the facilities granted. B ERMERERE 2 R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

HZE200063831HILEE
2008
HK$'000
FET
Expenditure contracted for but not provided MUFEATIEE 2FTA
in the consolidated financial statements BARRGE T B]RRA
in respect of acquisition of: BmBzMX
— Property, plant and equipment —WE - W R R 279,066
— Project under development —#REPIEE 449,536
— Properties under development —BEPYE 425,995
— Acquisition of a non-wholly owned —WEFEERE
subsidiary NN -
1,154,597
(@) The Group entered into the following significant (@ FERN - AEEEEBEEATFLNT
transactions with certain related parties during the year: R
2008
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$'000
BEALZER ZEMHE FET
Associates of the Group Interest income charged by the Group
REEZBERT RNEBEWERFBHA 1,170
Rentals and related building management
fee charged to the Group
REBZNHERIEBYEERE 5,974
Rentals and consultancy fee charged
by the Group
REBYHEE RFHAE 401
Building manager remuneration fee
charged by the Group
REBWE Y ELIZ S 243
Project management fees charged by
the Group
AEBYHIEEERE 28,874
Net rental guarantee income charged
by the Group
REBERBESREWAFE 713
Jointly controlled entities Subcontracting fees charged to the Group
of the Group REEXNO%RBE 3,861
M 2 RIS Service fees charged by the Group
REBRBREE 17
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3RB31BALFEE

(@ —%&
(a) - continued
2008
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$'000
BEALTZEH ZHME TET
Subsidiaries of ITC Carpark rental charged by the Group
EHrEZHMERR REBEWEBFEZES WA 32
Interest income charged by the Group
AN EBEWERF B M A 1,922
Interest charged to the Group
AR B XA HE 3,517
Coupon interest of bonds entitled by
the Group
AEBEZEEEFZME 95
Rentals charged to the Group
AEEZNES 360
Motor vehicles rental charged to
the Group
REEZEMR 190
Associates of ITC Interest income charged by the Group
B EEZBENT AN B UERF B A 16,151
Interest charged to the Group
REBEZAFE 1,691
Service fees charged by the Group
REEWEBRGE 166
Service fees charged to the Group
REEMZ A RBE 1,439
Carpark rental fee charged by the Group
REBWRBREFESES 61
Coupon interest of bonds entitled by
the Group
AEBZEEFZHE 643
Disposal of a motor vehicle by the Group
REBEHERE -
Construction work charged by the Group
REBWBRERTIZER -
Other related companies Rental and related building management
(Note) fee charged by the Group
¥ b =NCING 7 D) AEBEWBREE RIEBYXERE 48
Service fees charged to the Group
REBX N REE 1,509
Service fees charged by the Group
REBEWERSE E 136
Note:  Dr Chan has significant influence over these related Met - RIETHLFREARAGERXN
companies. 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

(b) The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management, which is determined by the remuneration

committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends, is as follows:

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

Share-based payment expense

Details of the share options for the Company’s shares

2 HRE A
RKREF
AR XA RIA 2 B

granted to the directors during the year are set out

below:

Name of director Date of grant

g5t RUELAH

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28.12.2004

HER 28.12.2004
8.9.2006
8.9.2006
8.9.2006
18.9.2007
18.9.2007
18.9.2007
3.6.2008

Kwok Shiu Keung, 28.12.2004

Ernest 28.12.2004

iDL

Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004

REE 28.12.2004

Leung Po Wing, 8.9.2006

Bowen Joseph
Li Chang An 6.2.2007
FE%

Exercise period

18

28.12.2004 t0 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 t0 26.8.2012
8.9.2006 0 7.9.2007
8.9.2007 t07.9.2008
8.9.2008 0 7.9.2009
18.9.2007 to 17.9.2008
18.9.2008 to 17.9.2009
18.9.2009 0 17.9.2010
3.6.2008 to 2.6.2009

28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012

28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012

28.12.2004 t0 26.8.2012

28.12.2004 t0 26.8.2012

8.9.2006 10 26.8.2012

6.2.2007 10 26.8.2012

Exercise price
per share

SRiTER
ks
o

10628
12857
248
248
2157
3546
3.0394¢
3.0394¢
171424

124

150

1.0628*

1.2857*

2.0828*

25714*

Outstanding
asat 1.4.2008
1#1.4.2008
HATTE

(b)

EERTI2EREREZME oM
MWEEE2EEIABZRARTS
ERMEE - FHIFWT

2008
HK$'000
TET
22,673
562
10,461
33,696

FARTESERLARARND 2BREZ

BT -
Granted Exercised Adjustment
during during Lapsed during made during  Outstanding
the year the year the year the year* as at 31.3.2009
1#313.2009
FRRY  ERfIR FRAN FRELER BHROR
pld rEsmERLm 200075



For the year ended 31 March 2009

BE2009F3R31ALEE

(b) - continued by —#&

*  In accordance with the Share Option Scheme, the range of = XA B 7R20084F9 H B 17 7R AR 1
the exercise price of the share options was adjusted from B2 R R2008F9H 19 1R
HK$1.24 and HK$3.546 to HK$1.0628 and HK$3.0394 BRERESE - BRECITERER
and the total number of the then outstanding share EH1.248 T E3546B THAESR
options under the Share Option Scheme was also adjusted 1.0628% 7T 2£3.0394% 7T ° 1M fE X
correspondingly on 19 September 2008, as a result of the BT B R M RITR 2 FE R B
warrants issued by the Company in September 2008. B IMEEEL AR -

(c) Details of the balances with related companies, associates (0 MREERHEBEELR BEARRD
and minority shareholders at the balance sheet date are FREZXGEAFBHII N T
set out in notes 28, 29, 32, 37, 38 and 39. 28293237 38%39°

2008
HK$'000
FHET
Assets BE 3,027,107
Liabilities BfE (1,188,291)
1,838,816

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGEE
Share capital & A 150,709
Reserves (Note) [ (7 77) 1,688,107
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS BRRES 1,838,816
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Note:

At 1 April 2007

Share repurchased and
cancelled

Issue of shares under scrip
dividend schemes

Credit arising on scrip
dividends

Share issue expenses

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment
expense

Issue of shares under share
option scheme

Recognition of equity
component of convertible
notes

Release upon lapse of vested
share options

Profit for the year

Distribution

At 31 March 2008

Share issue expenses

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment
expense

Issue of shares under share
option scheme

Release upon lapse of vested
options

Loss for the year

Dividends recognised as
distribution

At 31 March 2009

For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

#2007464A18
RN &S e

AR 2 E
E1 )

DA SR E 2 R

EIBRNER
B A RAD AT R
ZER

RiBE R
)
RABRRELZ
i)

B RBBRE R
L gc

EFH

Pk

#2008F3A31H

BAIRNER

TERARD T FE
ZER

R R 3
ESiv)

CREBRERNE
B

FEBER

BRED RS

A200963A31H

Share

premium
R4 E1E
HK$'000
TET
415,627

(5,954)

(659)

(388)

30,088

438,714
(510)

1,651

439,855

Convertible
notes reserve
ARRRE
1

HK$'000
THT

8,482

8,482

Bat

Share-based

payment Warrants
reserve reserve
MR XA
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL
21,962 -
15,478 -
(5,095) -
(4,085) -
28,260 -
14,985 -
(15,226) -
- 12,833
28,019 12,833

Retained
profits

REERN
HK$'000
TET

1,150,805

18,509

4,085
84,305

(45,053)
1,212,651

15,226
(101,124)

(12,833)
1,113,920

BEERQ

Total

AL
=1

HK$'000

TET

1,588,394

(5,954)

(659)

18,509

(388)

15,478

24,993

8,482

84,305
(45,053)
1,688,107
(510)

14,985

1,651

(101,124)

1,603,109

20095 %



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 (@ ARAEZEME D FR20094F %2008

March 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

1

China Earth Limited
ERERAR

Corless Limited

Feeder Port Holdings Limited

Glory Well Limited
BERRAR

Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
IREERNEREERAA

Jiangsu YangKou Port Development
and Investment Co., Ltd.
TEFOEREFEBRAA

Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.
THFRREREFRAA

Jiaxing International Container
Feeder Port Limited
FENTAREREBEERAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

AV Ve -}k

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
ARRLES

British Virgin Islands
AERLES

Hong Kong

PRC
7

PRC
G

PRC
i

PRC
i

R(IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital

BRORARRE/
ERER

HK$1 ordinary share
1R TEBRRG

US$2 ordinary shares
ETEBRRG

US$8,800 ordinary shares
8,800 L BB (D

HK$10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 70 & BRI

US$8,800,000
registered capital
(note (i) below)
8,800,000% 7
HMER(TXAH))

US$136,650,000

registered capital

(notes (i) and (1) below)
136,650,005 ¢
HMER(FXA 2R M)

US$30,000,000

registered capital

(notes (i) and (1) below)
30,000,000

AR (TR )

RMB128,800,000
registered capital

(notes (ii) and (vi) below)
128,800,000 A K H
SEMER(TFXHR()R M)

FIAMHZFHBUOT ¢

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital
held by the attributable to
Subsidiaries the Group Principal activities
BRORE/HRELEAL
HNEAE
o] AEEEE  TEER
2008 2008
% %
100 62.92 Investment holding
RERR
100 62.92 Investment holding
REER
50 50 Investment holding
REZR
100 100 Investment holding
REER
100 100 Property investment
NERE
75 75 Port development
BOER
75 75 Port development
BOER
45 45 Port development
BOERR



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

— continued

Name of subsidiary

2%

Nation Cheer Investment Limited
FEREERAR

Paul Y. Building Materials Company
Limited

Paul Y. Corporation Limited

REEERRAT

Paul Y. - Concentric Joint Venture

Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture

Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors Limited
RERESTRARATF

Paul Y. Builders Group Limited
REREEEFRAR

Paul Y. Builders Limited
REZEBRAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

EAVE:VE ] ok

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
&R
Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital

BRTRARRE/
EUEES

HK$1,200,000
ordinary shares
1,200,000 7

LERRG

HK$2 ordinary shares
2ETERRRG

HK$2 ordinary shares
VETLRRRSH

(note (i) below)
(FXHEHii)

(note (iii) below)
(FXHiz(i))

HK$20,000,000
ordinary shares
20,000,000/ 7T

ERRRH

HK$2 ordinary shares
VETEBRRH

HK$1,000,000

non-voting deferred shares
(note (iv) below)
1,000,000 7
ERZRETRRN
(FXH )

HK$102,000,000
ordinary shares
102,000,000 7
LERRG

(@

=
—&

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital
held by the attributable to
Subsidiaries the Group
BRORA/HREAT AL
HKMEAR
%A AEEER
2008 2008
% %
100 100
100 62.92
100 100
51 32.09
60 37.75
99.9998 62.92
100 62.92
100 62.92

Principal activities

TEER

Securities investment

Trading and installation of
building materials
REMHESRER

Investment holding
RERR

Civil engineering
TAIR

Civil engineering
TAIR

Provision of electrical,
mechanical and building
services

RESHREERS

Investment holding
RERR

Building construction
BTYRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZ200953H31 A LLEE
@ —#&
(@) - continued
Place of Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid registered capital
registration/ share capital/ held by the attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Subsidiaries the Group  Principal activities
BRORA/HREATALL
BRIRARRE/ ] PN
£ RY/HM/ EE% EMER ®E AEEEE  TEER
2008 2008
% %
Paul Y. Construction & Engineering Hong Kong HK$42,000,000 100 62.92 Building construction and
Co. Limited B ordinary shares specialist works
RERETRARAA 42,000,000 7 BTREREETR
ERRRG
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited Bermuda HK$301,339,000  62.92 62.92 Investment holding
RERZLXEEFRAT BRE ordinary shares REER
301,339,000% T
DU
Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 62.92 Provision of finance
RENBERLA B 1RTEBRRG RftEE
Paul Y. General Contractors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100 62.92 Civil engineering and building
RERELERRAT El ordinary shares construction
200,000,000 7 TRIRRETRE
ERRR N
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 62.92 Interior decoration works
RERHIRARAA £ 2ETEBRRG ERKELR
Paul Y. Management Contracting British Virgin Islands US$2,000 ordinary shares 100 62.92 Investment holding
Group Limited ERRNES 2,000 T EBRRR R RERR
REEZZIREEFRAT
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 62.92 Hire of motor vehicles and
RERWEEERAT £ 2ETEBRRG plant and machinery

Pr1

"
v

P PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

AE - RERBHEE



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

@ —#

(@) - continued

Place of Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid registered capital
registration/ share capital/ held by the attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Subsidiaries the Group  Principal activities
BRORA/HREAEAL
BRIRMRRE/ ] PN
£ RY/HM/ EE% EMER %A AEEEE  TEER
2008 2008
% CVD
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 62.92 Civil engineering, building
Company, Limited B 2ETERRRG construction and investment
REREERDA holding
TAIR BFRERRARR
HK$50,000,000 - -
non-voting preferred shares
(note (v) below)
50,000,000 7T
ERZRELRRY
(FXHE)
Paul Y. Construction PRC RMB120,000,000 100 62.92 Civil engineering and
(China) Limited # registered capital building construction
RERE(PE)FRAT (note () below) TARIRRETRE
120,000,007 A K1
EMER(FXAH))
Paul Y. Facilities Management Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 62.92 Facilities management services
Co. Limited Eh BT ERRRG RiEERRS
REZHERBRAF
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands US$1 ordinary share 100 62.92 Investment holding
ERRLES 1RTERBRA REER
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 62.92 Civil engineering and
REMEFRAA El ordinary shares foundation works
10,000,000 7 IATRRETE
LRRRH
Paul Y. Foundation (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 registered capital 100 62.92 Civil engineering and
RENE(RF) BRAR #FA 25,0008 foundation works
HMER IAIRRHETR
Paul Y. Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 ordinary shares 100 62.92 Management and secretarial
REEBERLA B 2ETERRRG services
BB RWERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2009

BZE2009F3A31HILFE
(@) - continued
Name of subsidiary
8

Pr1

"
v

Paul Y. Project Management
International Limited
REARIREERFRAT

PY! Infrastructure Group Limited

PYI Management Limited
RELEERARATA

PYI Min Sheng Investment Limited
REREREARAA

PYI Properties (HK) Limited
RERE(ER)ERAA

PY! Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu)
Limited
REAREZ(IH)ERAA

Unistress Concrete Products
(H.K.) Limited
B RRLER(BE)BERAR

P PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

AV Ve -}k

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands

ARELES

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

PRC
T

Hong Kong
El

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital

BRTRARRE/
ERER

HK$2 ordinary shares
2ETEBRRG

US$1 ordinary share
1ETEBRREG

HK$2 ordinary shares
BT ERRRG

HK$2 ordinary shares
2ELEBRRG

HK$1 ordinary share
1RTEBRRG

US$12,500,000
registered capital
(note (i) below)
12,500,000% ¢
EMER(FXAH))

HK$2 ordinary shares
2ELEBRRG

HK$10,000 non-voting
deferred shares

(note (iv) below)
10,0007
BREREERRN
(FXHi )

(a

=
—&

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital
held by the
Subsidiaries/ attributable to
Company* the Group
BRORE/HREFEAL
AKEAR/ AR
®E AEEER
2008 2008
% %
100 62.92
100* 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 62.92
100 62.92

Principal activities

TREH

Project management services
and investment holding
BREBRERRERR

Investment holding
REZR

Management services
ERRE

Investment holding
RAZR

Investment holding
RERR

Property investment
NERE

Manufacturing and trading of
concrete products and
property investment

RRIERREREIR
nERE



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIE2009F3R831ALLFEE

(@ —#&
(@) - continued
Place of Percentage of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid registered capital
registration/ share capital/ held by the attributable to
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Subsidiaries the Group  Principal activities
BRTRE/HREFES L
BROTRBERE/ HKEAR
8 RY/2M/ €En% EMER 58 AEEEL  TEEH
2008 2008
% %
Yangtze Feeder Port Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 50 50 Investment holding
R=ANTEERAT b AT EBRRGR REER
MERERRREABRAF PRC US§41,000,000 100 100 LPG distribution and logistics
i registered capital RICRRREE R
(notes (i) and (vi) below)
41,000,000% 7
HMER (TR W)
AERERRERRTERBRAF  PRC US$4,300,000 100 100 LPG technical development
M registered capital BCBRRENE R
(notes (i) and (vi) below)
4,300,000% 7
AR (FXAEE M)
HIEBEZERAA PRC RMB30,000,000 100 81.46 Investment holding
fE registered capital RERR
(notes () and (vi) below)
30,000,000 A K
EMER (TR M)
MM EEHNERERRAR PRC RMB10,000,000 100 8146 Property holding
# registered capital BENE
(note (i) below)
10,000,007 A &8
HMER(TXAH))
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

(@) - continued
All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies except
Paul Y. — Concentric Joint Venture and Paul Y. — CREC(HK)
Joint Venture which are unincorporated business. Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited is listed in Hong Kong.
Notes:
(i) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.

(i)  Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(iii)  There is no issued share capital/registered capital for the
joint ventures as they are unincorporated business.

(iv)  The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are

=
—&

Lipr BB AR RMABRAT -

MEPau

| Y. — Concentric Joint Venture X

Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture/&3E%
ANEBZEE REZESBERA
RIERB LM -

wiiz -

not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or

otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the
holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

(v)  The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not
entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless
the net profits of the company available for dividend
exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they should
be entitled to a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the
rate of 5% per annum for any financial year and are, on
winding up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of
the ordinary shares of the company.

(vi)  As at 31 March 2009, the registered capital of Jiangsu
YangKou Port Development and Investment Co., Ltd.,
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd., Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited,
AR E EARAR, MItREARRIERBERAF]
and it RERRELIREMEE AR AR are paid up
to US$80,699,221, US$16,677,730, US$51,018,732,
RMB 14,084,680, US$30,922,591 and US$3,500,000,
respectively. The registered capital of all other principal
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are fully paid up as at 31
March 2009.

WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

(vi)

WERBRINEBERE -
WERRBPIIAEGERT -

HRAEZERRTIIFAAERE - 8
BEBITRA EMEL -

HWEEREREERIFTAAE
IR - UN R R ] B AR
EZRE BREEEZRRE
BENIEEMBLT DK EH
100,000,000,000,0007%& 7T F 7% A A
TRRBEARSERBREEZE
AT EREEARN -

HEERZRELRIEE AEER
= NERERRS  RIEZAR]
A 4R S 48 | #8%82100,000,000,000
BT BERBERAT  BEBRERE
AP BREFEER—EHFEARAEY
BElEE2ERS BRBEEEZA
A)7E 8 B 9 )k 48 §810,000,000,000
BILTFZARLBERIFEAREE
FIREEZIBAT  BREER -

M2009F3A31H @ T & F A B K
BRBERAR IR FBAER
BEHRAR  ZEATEEREEMS
WEARAR WNIEXHEEER
AR HIERERBRERERA
AR RERRERBIMERE
R AR B #1F 5 5l £80,699,2213%
JT ~ 16,677,730% 7t * 51,018,732
EJT - 14,084,6807T A R ¥ -
30,922,5913 T &3,500,0003 JT 2.
AfMER - HaRP Rz EE
M8 A & R2009F3A31H E B
AR -



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

(b) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates indirectly
held by the Company at 31 March 2009 and 2008 are as

follows:

Name of associate

&

CSCEC - Paul Y. Construction
Company Limited
FEREEZEFREMLA

Nantong Port Group Limited
ERENEEERAR

Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project
Management Company Limited
TRPFREIREBERERAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration

gl

PRC

HE

PRC
i

PRC
&

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BERTRARKRE/
HEMER

US$10,000,000
registered capital
(note below)
10,000,000 7
AMER (T xHE)

RMB966,004,400
registered capital
(note below)
966,004,4007T A %
FMER(TXH)

US$500,000
registered capital
(note below)
500,000% T
AMER(FxhE)

All of the above associates are held by the Company

indirectly.

Note:

The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture.

b) ARFRAFEHAZEIEBRLIAR
20094 K2008F3A31H ZFHBEMT :

Percentage of
issued share capital/
registered capital
attributable to the Group
AEBELERTRE/
HAMEEF DL
2008
%
19.7

45

25.2

Principal activities

TRER

Civil engineering and
building construction
TARIBREFRE

Port operation
EOEY

Project management and
consultancy services
HEER REARS

AP A B N R AR R R R

ZARRFIEERERT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2009
BE2009F3R31ALEE

Pr1

() Particulars of the Company’s principal jointly controlled
entity at 31 March are as follows:

Place of Issued and fully paid
Name of jointly controlled entity incorporation
HEEHBESRE B3 30 B
Paul Y. - Penta-Ocean Joint Venture  Hong Kong

% (note below)

(Fxhizz)

Note: There is no issued share capital for the joint venture as it
is an unincorporated business.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entity of the Company which, in the opinion of

the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

(@) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company
proposed to raise approximately HK$362 million to
HK$431 million before expenses by way of the rights
issue of not less than 3,016,787,034 rights shares and
not more than 3,588,897,924 rights shares on the basis
of two rights shares for every share of the Company
currently held (the “Rights Issue”) at the subscription
price of HK$0.12 per rights share payable in full on
acceptance. The Rights Issue was approved by the
Company’s shareholders in a special general meeting
held on 9 June 2009 and 3,019,350,218 rights shares
were allotted. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$350 million are intended to be used on the Group’s
investment in port and port-related projects and general
working capital of the Group. Details of the Rights Issue
are set out in the circular and prospectus of the Company
dated 22 May 2009 and 12 June 2009, respectively.

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2009 Annual Report

share capital
BRTRARKRE

© AARNEEBAREHEBRIANEZ
I :

Percentage of interest

attributable to the Group  Principal activities
AEEELEREDL TEEH
2008
%
315 Civil engineering
TARIR

Hrat . ARAELETIEABRRE W
WEEEITRA -

ERAIREERBREIZVEAEERFE
EEREARAEBRFHEEFEZAR
GILGY NI N DS B 2
ERR FIEMMBLAR  BEATRK
Rl HIHE 2 R < RIEILEK

(@ HERE AAREFEHREED
3.62BB T ENAZVES T CRINEK
FX) A RAABUBEREHE —BRA
RAIRMDAREMRMERKG 2 E
% RABETRERKH0.12E T
HEATHAR - 171 2 503,016,787,034
A& 4 AR AR 19 2 T 2% 743,588,897,924 %
HAR AR (THAR]) - IRFE N
BR o A% E 72009F6 A9R 1T 2
BREFR ARG EBEARDFRFIE -
3,019,350,2 18/ Ak ik 5 B F AL & o
T8 RIBFELNAB3S0BAE T BA
EARSERBOREORBERA 2K
BRAEEZ —REEEF - ftIREF
BER AR R BE S B A200945 A
228 %2009%6 A12A 2 B R ER -



For the year ended 31 March 2009
BIZ2009F3R831ALFEE

(b)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group (b)
paid 60% of the new capital in sum of RMB68 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$78 million) towards

the investment for 51% interest in Yichang Port Group
Limited (“Yichang Port Group”). Yichang Port Group is
principally engaged in transport logistics and properties
investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and
discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, port
logistics and port equipment rental services in Yichang
port. Upon completion of the conditional agreements
relating to acquisition of the investment, the Group will
settle the remaining 40% of the new capital amounting
to RMB46 million (equivalent to approximately HK$52
million) and Yichang Port Group will become a subsidiary
of the Group.

FEHE AEERRENREEE
BEBEREIRAR ([EEAKE
® ) 251% X H60% % & % -
& # AR #68,000,0007T (#8 & 74
78,000,000%7t) - EE A B EE x
EEHEARFERYEREMER
B REER B ORE  ARRE
BOMMARE EVRE - BOYDR
RBEOZEHERSE FHEARENE
EEZ B BRERETRE KRB
BEEBE T ZA0%MEE - Bl AR
46,000,0007T (18 & 7 #952,000,000/%
T MEERBEERKARER L
(=PI
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For the year ended 31 March

BZE3HA31ALEE
2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FHET
RESULTS ¥E
Turnover | 3,317,550 3,242,806 4,643,712 5,502,543
Profit before taxation T8 A% A 497,163 367,128 326,595 833,297
Taxation credit (charge) #iIE#K0 (FAs) 23,772 (52,804) 50,552 (315,186)
Profit for the year FEm 520,935 314,324 377,147 518,111
Attributable to: FEAh -
Equity holders of RRBERFTFEA
the Company 521,920 278,861 345,665 359,982
Minority interests DBUR R R (985) 35,463 31,482 158,129
520,935 314,324 377,147 518,111
At 31 March
M3A31H
2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAER
Total assets WEE 7,110,379 5,981,678 7,621,447 10,361,473
Total liabilities weE (3,395,658) (2,971,741) (4,372,598) (6,252,163)
3,714,721 3,009,937 3,248,849 4,109,310
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to  AAFREREZFE A
equity holders of FEAE R
the Company 3,178,826 2,570,632 2,771,852 3,377,085
Share-based payment BB A B 2 LARR 1D
reserve of a subsidiary X TEIERE - 137 981 5,280
Minority interests DERR RS 535,895 439,168 476,016 726,945
3,714,721 3,009,937 3,248,849 4,109,310
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Location
NE

5.16 sq km formed land located at
the north of Changsha Town,
Rudong County, Nantong City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

BT #RA

38 T A0 R %

R HEIAIE

5165F R E

[k 1

1.95 sq km formed land located at
the west of the outer gate of
Yangkou Town, Rudong County,
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

HET#E AT

BTN F O SO LA R
1.95F A RE

SR b

Existing use
BEAR

Undetermined use
AR E A

Undetermined use
i AR RTE i

Lease term Group interest

bizhi AEBFLER

Leasehold with 75%
medium term
FEfERE

Leasehold with 75%
medium term
REEERAE
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Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ost, JEBAHE osE, Jp

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ZlmR

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles ok [ 58

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest ok

Chan Shu Kin PR A B2

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, s R GBS, P

Li Chang An FEX

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) BRAGHER (F /%)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose, i JEBAHE osBE, Jp

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest g

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, s L GBS, P

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ot sp (Chairman) [EVBR#& osE, P (F/E)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest g

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, s B GBS, P

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ot sp (Chairman) [EVRR#E ost, sp (F/E)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 2= R

Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest g

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom) BRESR (B EER)
Chan Shu Kin (Alternate to Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest) PRAE BR (B 20 5%)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose, s (Chairman) JERRHE o8 P (E£ /)
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest g

Chan Shu Kin PR A B2

Ko Hiu Fung =g

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman) PRGIER (£ /)
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ose s (Alternate to Chan Shu Kin) EIRRHE osE, P (B S 1R
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ZER
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Ko Hiu Fung

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Ko Hiu Fung
Wong Yiu Hung
(Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Ko Hiu Fung)

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Bank of Jiangsu

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank Corporation
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

DBS Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

Dewell & Partners (PRC)

DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong)

Herbert Smith (Hong Kong)

JC Master Law Offices (PRC)

Richards Butler (Hong Kong)

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co. (Hong Kong)

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited

KPMG Corporate Finance Limited
PricewaterhouseCoopers (Shenzhen) Consulting Limited
Somerley Limited

gmR
Yl
(BESIBREEREEIE)

mE e WER &FHENTT

HERTT (BB BRQA
ZBIRITAIR D AR A A
TTERIRTT

EBEERIRTT

B RIRITR D BR A A
BERITROARAR
RERERTERAR
ERIRTT
BARTARAT
PEIBRTROERDAF
RERITABRRDA]
KFRITARRA]

Conyers Dill & Pearman ( & Z2#)
SRR S EMBBET (FE])
BUERMEBAT (FE)
SR B R RN T (BE)
RAMERNE P (FE)
AR R T (FE)
REREREMERET (BF)

ReMBEEAERDR
EFRERMBERAR
EBEIGEFEA RIDBERAA
MBENERRT
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BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(Share Award Scheme — Trustee)

BOCI Securities Limited
(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;
Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

31/F, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel:  +852 2831 8338
Fax:  +852 2372 0641

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke HM 08
Bermuda

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

WWWw.pyicorp.com

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
American Depository Receipt
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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FEREIFR RBRBIETEER R A
(R1p 2Rt — ZFEA)

HIREERES B R AR
(ROOBETE — REA -
B ERT 2 — BHEA)

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

7B

NEEEE

B B85 15%
REREFLINE
EE +852 28318338
fEH: +8522372 0641

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

SEMERBERQA
)

B tr

SR AREFR285
EIBE 02612

WWW.pyicorp.com

EER S
EEEEES
A TR T

BEBRHH

498
PYIFY
PYW

849
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31/F, Paul V. Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BB NEEEBEBSIRRERETO31E
Tel E5E: +852 2831 8338 Fax {HE: +852 2372 0641

WWW.pyicorp.com
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